
Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 02, 2024 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of December 18, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

2. Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem for 2024. 

3. Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Standing Committees for 
2024. 

4. Receive and file Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest for elected officials. 

5. Receive and file the City Council Goal Setting Report of November 27 & 30 and December 7, 11 & 
20, 2023. 

6. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Peggy Larson, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2025. 
b) Gary Winterhof, Housing Commission, term ending 12/31/2025. 

7. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of November 2023. 

8. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 
b) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

9. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

1



Page 2 of 2 

10. Resolution approving and adopting the FY2025 City Council Goals, Work Program and Financial 
Plan. 

11. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
925 West 22nd Street. 

12. Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Policy & Administration 
Specialist in the Administration Division. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting a Recreation Fee Schedule to become effective January 2, 2024. 

14. Resolution approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction with 523 West 1st Street. 

15. Resolution approving a grant agreement with the Black Hawk County Gaming Association relative to 
the Community Natatorium Project. 

16. Resolution approving the Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work of Lodge 
Construction, Inc. for the Union Road Recreation Trail Project. 

17. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting January 16, 2024 as the date of public hearing on, the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2024 CDBG Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

18. Resolution setting January 16, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed FY2024-FY2029 
Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

Allow Bills and Claims 

19. Allow Bills and Claims for January 2, 2024. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Executive Session 

20. Executive Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss strategy 
with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation in imminent where its 
disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that 
litigation. 

Adjournment 

2



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, DECEMBER 18, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54568 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of December 4, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54569 - The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Kerr noted 

that item #36 on the Resolution Calendar was being removed from the agenda. 
 
54570 - Elana Aldrich, Cedar Falls, expressed appreciation for the immediate attention to 

the safety concerns at the intersection of 1st Street and Union Road.  She asked 
for continued attention to the intersection and a long-term solution that addresses 
safety concerns. 

 
  Public Works Director Schrage provided photos and an update of changes made 

at the intersection, and an update of the DOT safety analysis study. 
 
  Jim Sheerer, Cedar Falls, echoed the comments of Ms. Aldrich and expressed 

concerns with the safety of the intersection. He requested that this issue be kept 
on the front burner and that the concerned citizens be kept informed of updates. 
Mayor Green and Councilmember Sires commented. 

 
  Alex, Cedar Falls, requested the City of Cedar Falls show solidarity with the 

Palestinians and that City Council pass a resolution demanding an immediate 
and permanent ceasefire in Gaza. Mayor Green commented. 

  
  Noah Hackbart, UNI Student Liaison, expressed his excitement with the Panthers 

on Parade project. 
 
54571 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 

5, 2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed 
amendments to the City’s FY2024 Budget. It was then moved by Ganfield and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54572 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Controller/City 
Treasurer Roeding provided an update on the amendments. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposed amendments, the Mayor 

3

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 
 
54573 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #23,416, 

approving and adopting amendments to the City's FY2024 Budget, be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,416 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54574-    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3046, 

amending Chapter 9, Fire Prevention and Protection, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to installation of post indicator valves, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #3046 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
54575 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed, and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of December 4, 
2023 relative to the following items: 
a) Youth Commission Update. 
b) Human Rights Commission Annual Report. 
c) Grow Cedar Valley Update. 

 Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Rick Mott, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
b) Jerry Bjerke, Board of Electrical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
c) Julie Gardner, Board of Mechanical Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
d) Nate Gruber, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 
e) Andrew Tink, Board of Plumbing Appeals, term ending 12/31/2027. 

 Receive and file the following resignations of members from Boards and 
Commissions: 
a) Robert Wright, Human Rights Commission. 

 Receive and file Reformatted and Renumbered Administrative Policies. 

 Receive and file the Abstract of Votes for the November 7, 2023 Municipal 
Election. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol 
- renewal. 
b) Rancho Chico, 618 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
c) Sharky's Fun House, 2223 College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

service - renewal. 

 Motion carried unanimously.   

54576 - Following comments by Councilmembers Schultz and Ganfield, and response by 
City Attorney Rogers, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to pull 
items #16 - #33 on the resolution calendar and suspend the rules and vote on 
these items together. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following 

resolutions be introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #23,417, approving and adopting CFD 1007: Admin Policy - Standard 
Municipal Index Management. 

 Resolution #23,418, approving and adopting CFD 1020: Admin Policy - 
Formatting of City Policies. 

 Resolution #23,419, designating authorized signatories for financial accounts and 
vehicles of the City. 

 Resolution #23,420, approving and authorizing an Agreement with Brycer, LLC, 
relative to compliance administration, including acceptance of electronic 
compliance filings and collecting filing fees. 

 Resolution #23,421, approving and adopting an amendment to the FY24 Fee 
Schedule relative to establishing fees for the filing of reports with the City’s third-
party administrator relative to Fire Code compliance.  

 Resolution #23,422, approving the final plat of Ashworth North Subdivision. 

 Resolution #23,423, approving the repair of one pump at 17th Street Lift Station 
and the purchase of two pumps at Cedar Heights Lift Station.  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,417 and #23,423 duly passed 
and adopted. 

54577 - It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following 
resolutions be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,424, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 

Services Agreement with Alex Miller relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,425, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Amanda Stout relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 Resolution #23,426, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Amber Wegner relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,427, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Amelia Gotera relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,428, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Bret Miller relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,429, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Caitlyn Bardle relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,430, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Casey Slack relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,431, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Chad McKinzie relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,432, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Jaylin Vander Wiel relative to fiberglass TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,433, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Leah Runyan relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,434, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Karin Desnoyers relative to fiberglass TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,435, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Mary Ingamells relative to fiberglass TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,436, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Rachel Heine relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,437, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Rachael "Rose" Smith relative to fiberglass TC mascots 
for the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,438, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Salina Gavin relative to fiberglass TC mascots for the 
Panthers on Parade Project. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

 Resolution #23,439, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Sara Fitzgerald relative to fiberglass TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,440, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Stephanie Fever relative to fiberglass TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project. 

 Resolution #23,441, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Services Agreement with Susan Rolinger relative to fiberglass TC mascots for 
the Panthers on Parade Project.  

Tourism & Cultural Programs Manager Pickar provided an overview of the 
project. Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr, and response by 
Pickar, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Sires, Ganfield, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolutions #23,424 and #23,441 duly passed and adopted. 

54578 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,442, setting 
January 2, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed amendment to the 
Land Use Map by changing the designation from Low Density Residential Use, 
Greenways and Floodplain Use, and Neighborhood Commercial & Mixed Use to 
Low Density Residential Use and adjust the Greenways and Floodplain Use of 
property located North of Aldrich Elementary School and South of West Greenhill 
Road, be adopted. Following comments by Councilmember deBuhr, it was 
moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding to amend the motion to strike 
January 2, 2024 and change it to January 16, 2024. Following a question by 
Councilmember Dunn and response by Community Development Director 
Sheetz, the motion to amend carried unanimously. The Mayor then put the 
question on the original motion as amended and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #23,442 duly passed and adopted. 

54579 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #23,443, 
setting January 2, 2024 as the date of public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from R-1, Residential District & MU, Mixed Use Residential to RP, Planned 
Residence District of property located North of Aldrich Elementary School and 
South of West Greenhill Road, be adopted. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Harding to amend the motion to change the date from January 2, 
2024 to January 16, 2024. Motion carried unanimously. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the original motion 
as amended and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,443 duly passed and 
adopted. 

54580 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
December 18, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54581 -    Councilmember Sires expressed appreciation to the Operations & Maintenance 

Division for their quick action at the 1st Street and Union Road intersection and 
requested an update on 27th Street. Director Schrage responded.  Sires stated 
he was honored to serve the citizens of Cedar Falls. 

 
    Councilmember Harding stated he was honored to serve and thanked citizens, 

staff and Council. 
         
    Councilmember deBuhr stated she was honored to serve the last 20 years and 

thanked staff. 
 
    Mayor Green expressed gratitude to staff and citizens and his hopes for the 

future of Cedar Falls. 
        
54582 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be 

adjourned at 7:35 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
                                                           __________________________________ 
                                                           Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

 

8

Item 1.



MAYOR DANNY LAUDICK 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 FROM: Mayor Daniel Laudick 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: December 21, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Designation of Council Member Latta as Mayor Pro Tem for CY 2024 

 REF: (a) Iowa Code 372.14:  The mayor – the mayor pro tem  

  (b) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-187, 9(b)(9) 

 

1. In accordance with references (a) and (b), I hereby designate Council Member 

Chris Latta as mayor pro tem for CY2024. 

2. As mayor pro tem, Council Member Latta shall be the vice president of the 

council as specified in reference (a) and shall perform the duties of the mayor 

in cases of my absence or incapacity, with exceptions noted in reference (b).  

 

Xc: City Administrator 

      City Clerk 

 

### 

 

9

Item 2.



MAYOR DANNY LAUDICK 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

  

  

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Daniel Laudick 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: December 21, 2023 

  

 SUBJECT: Annual Appointment of Standing Committees for CY 2024 

  

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa §2-68 

  (b) CFD 1121.22b: Council Meeting Procedures, Rule 6.4 & 6.5 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a) and (b), I hereby appoint the following standing 

committees of the Cedar Falls City Council for Calendar Year 2024: 

1. Committee of the Whole: Chris Latta, Aaron Hawbaker, Kelly Dunn, Dustin 

Ganfield, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Hannah Crisman. 

2. Finance & Business Operations Committee: Kelly Dunn, Chris Latta, Dustin 

Ganfield, Aaron Hawbaker, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Hannah Crisman. 

3. Public Safety Committee: Dustin Ganfield, Chris Latta, Kelly Dunn, Aaron 

Hawbaker, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Hannah Crisman. 

4. Public Works: Gil Schultz, Chris Latta, Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Aaron 

Hawbaker, Daryl Kruse, Hannah Crisman. 

5. Community Development Committee: Hannah Crisman, Chris Latta, Kelly 

Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, Daryl Kruse, Gil Schultz, Aaron Hawbaker. 

6. Administration Committee: Daryl Kruse, Chris Latta, Kelly Dunn, Dustin 

Ganfield, Aaron Hawbaker, Gil Schultz, Hannah Crisman. 

2. The first person named on each committee shall be the chair of that committee.  

Xc:  City Administrator 

10

Item 3.



 

 

  City Clerk 

 

### 

11

Item 3.



12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 1                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting Work Sessions | Report 

Session 1 | November 27, 2023 

 
Overview 
 

The City of Cedar Falls scheduled goal setting work sessions for Nov 27 & 30, Dec 7, 11 & 20, 2023, 
to identify and prioritize the City’s goals and priorities for FY 2025.  
 
 

Visioning 
 
During the work session, the mayor-elect and city council members were asked to respond to the 
question: In five years, as a result of your leadership, what will Cedar Falls be recognized for? Their 
responses are listed below. 
 

 
In five years, as a result of your leadership, what will Cedar Falls be recognized for? 
 

 Collaborative and Innovative 
 Relational and Representative 
 Best Places – to live, to retire, for recreation, etc. 
 Quality of Life 
 Hospitality, Honor All, Humor 
 Vibrant College neighborhood 
 Foster Community Spirit 
 Best Cities to work with 
 North Cedar and River project 
 Downtown – historical and parking 
 Positive relationship with University of Northern Iowa 
 College town of choice for students 
 Innovative zoning changes 
 Support economic development and growth 
 Revitalize University Avenue and College Hill 
 Strong shares vision – genuine and resident driven 
 Reputation as quaint town with neighborhoods with restaurants and retail (including 

North Cedar) 
 Innovative, smart growth 
 Mix of housing options 
 Family oriented – safe neighborhoods 

 
 

20

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 2                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

2023 Accomplishments 
 
Participants reviewed the list of 2024 goal accomplishments compiled by city staff and were asked 
to identify what they considered to be their top three accomplishments. Their responses are noted 
with red stars below.  
 
 
Short Term Financial Plan: 

 ***Maintained AAA bond rating  
 A 5-year CIP was adopted by Council 
 *A FY24 Budget was adopted by Council  
 Seek minimum private donations match of 25% for recreation & quality of life projects – 

Seerley Park, Orchard Hill Park Pickleball Expansion 
 
 
Goal #1: Foster Organizational Excellence 

 **City Administrator and Human Resources Manager worked with each department to 
determine their top goals as a result of the workforce climate assessment survey and 
reviewed the progress of those goals  

 *Reviewed and updated the Police Policy Manual, Fire Policy Manual, and City’s Emergency 
Operations Plan  

 Maximized the use of Police Reservists to staff large events/celebrations 
 
 
Goal #2: Deliver Responsible Local Government 

 Implemented a standardized municipal index for all major city plans, policies, and 
documents 

 Website was updated and designed to be more mobile friendly, and the new mobile app 
was also launched. QR codes are used on council agendas and various public 
communication 

 **Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion (DEI) Specialist was hired and has created relationships with 
several community organizations  

 Implement the Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the Iowa DNR to update the 
existing Wastewater Treatment Facility – Contract with Strand 

 Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan – Disc Golf, Petanque Courts, etc. 
 Continued to work with the Emergency Management Commission with the goal of having 

emergency dispatch costs funded through a County EMA levy 
 *Committee presentation on Community-Wide Strategic Plan on progress in achieving 

goals  
 
 
  

21

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 3                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Goal #3: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness 
 A new City Clerk was appointed upon the retirement of previous City Clerk 
 A new Water Reclamation Manager was appointed 
 **A new Police Chief was appointed  
 **A new Fire Chief was appointed  
 A new Community Services Supervisor was hired, to support CDBG, HOME and the Housing 

Choice Voucher Program 
 Initiated a police canine program in the police division 
 *Put a new EMA/Rescue SUV in service in the Fire Division to reduce mileage and 

wear/tear on large, expensive fire apparatuses while improving response times  
 *Increased the number of hours that fire personnel have supplemented police shifts and 

police personnel have supplemented fire shifts to reduce overtime and harness the 
benefits of a public safety model  

 *A vendor was selected for a new ERP (Financial & Payroll) system  
 A legislative session was held with local legislators 
 Proactive code enforcement occurred in zones/neighborhoods, including adherence to 

Landlord Accountability 
 
 
Goal #4: Promote Economic Development 

 Evaluate one-way streets and traffic flow – Royal Drive & Seerley Blvd 
 *Street Improvement Objectives  

o Main Street Reconstruction – Under Construction 
o Ridgeway & Hwy 58 – Under Construction 
o North Cedar Heights Area – Under Construction 

 **Establish Agreements with Developers to complete street connections  
o Aldrich Connection Agreement – Ashworth, Ironwood, Arbors 

 *Slope Repairs – West Ridgewood Ave, repair of failing slope in North Cedar Heights Area  
 ***City acquired 76 acres of farmland located adjacent to the West Viking Road Industrial 

Park to create future industrial lots  
 Provided property tax abatement for projects meeting adopted job creation and tax 

growth criteria, including redevelopment projects on College Hill, Downtown, and Northern 
Cedar Falls 

 Continued economic development partnerships 
 **Coordinated with UNI to increase recognition of the Iowa High School Football Playoffs 

to retain this event in Cedar Falls  
 Zoning code amendments to provide new opportunities for repurposing obsolete 

institutional buildings, signs for civic uses, parking for institutional uses, use of vinyl siding 
 Major Thoroughfare Plan under staff review and will come forward to Council in 2024 
 Committee presentation on the progress in achieving goals of 2012 Comprehensive Plan 
 Habitat project on Sands Ave completed, assisted with federal HOME funds. Exploring 

project on Clay St 
 ***Worked with CFEDC on priorities from Housing Needs Assessment.  

22

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 4                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Goal #5: Enhance Community Quality of Life 
 Implement the Bike Network Plan – Updated Map in 2023 
 Coordinated a comprehensive public education campaign to limit fireworks use to the 

day(s) allowed by ordinance 
 Conducted bi-annual open houses at the Public Safety Center to connect with the 

community in fire and crime prevention efforts 
 Hearst Master Plan initiated in March 2023, open house October 2023 
 Great American Rail Trail: Tourism staff serves on stakeholder committee, hosted the 

project manager from Rails-to-Trails Conservancy for a visit to Cedar Falls in May, 
supported connections in George Wyth Park and Benton County, promoting trail use and 
into downtown with QR codes on trail signs, Visitor Guide, expos/events, & hosting editor 
of Minnesota Trails Magazine in May 2023 

 28E Agreement with the School District for shared Community Natatorium for facility 
sharing and minimizing duplication of services 

 Improvements to Orchard Hill Park underway for new shelter, 8 additional pickleball 
courts, paved parking (and additional amount), & landscaping. 

 ***Cedar River Recreational Project underway (construction oversight & grant 
administration occurring)  

 * Bike Network Plan implementation:  
o 27th Street Trail between Hudson and Union is underway and will be completed by 

the end of the year. 
o Lake Street Trail is paved and will be finaled by the end of the year. 
o Union Road Trail between 1st and 27th Streets is paved and will be finaled by the 

end of the year. 
o 18th Street Sharrows between Hudson and Campus Streets were added this year. 
o Main Street Bike Lanes: 
o Between 6th and 11th Streets will be done by the end of the year. 
o Between 18th and Seerley will be done by the end of the year. 
o Cedar Heights Trails south of Greenhill Road is paved but won’t be finaled until 

sometime next year. 
 
 
 
 
Preparation for FY 2025 Goal Setting  
 
Participants reviewed the FY 2024 goal document and were asked to 1) identify their top three 
priority items under each goal, and 2) identify up to three new items they would like to include in 
the FY 2025 goal document. Their responses were distributed to council members and used as a 
reference during the goal setting process.   
  

23

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 5                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Session 2 | November 30, 2023 

 
Short Term Financial Plan 
 

During the November 30 work session, the Mayor-Elect, City Council members and staff reviewed 
financial policies and the following items from the Short-Term Financial Plan section of the FY2024 
goal document.  
 
1) Council members agreed to continue to use the following financial policies to develop the CIP: 

 Issue only replacement debt 
 Maintain a debt strategy that protects at least 25-30%$ of capacity 

 
2) Council would like further discussion on the amount the city is designating to support UNI 

dome renovations. 
 
3) Council members agreed to support the following items in FY 2025 with additions noted in 

underline and bold:   
 
CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 
 
SHORT TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 

A. FY2025 Budget Policies. 

1). Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for 
controllable costs. NOTE: Council will revisit when new data is received from the county 
in early 2025. 

2). City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF 
debt annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within 
the TIF Districts to better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF 
release funds from expired TIFs to economic development fund to cash-flow economic 
development projects.   

3). Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures 
or non-reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4).   

5).   

24

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 6                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

6).   

7). Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a 
restricted account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

c. The City will continue to fully fund not un-fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these 
include severance, payroll, liability insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, 
workmen's compensation, long-term disability, and all pensions. 

8). Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by Council. 

9).   

10). The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income 
generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal 
equal to the rate of inflation in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating 
a development agreement for a new hospital or a health care provider.  

11). Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay 
the required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall 
be used for operating purposes. 

12). Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use 
limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13).   
14). Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set 

aside to pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users 
contributing (examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, 
Beach House, Big Woods Campground, and golf courses). 

15). The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the 
General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be 
set aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16). Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by 
law or policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. NOTE: Council will look in to 
this in future work sessions.  

25

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 7                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

17).   

18). TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District 
will be allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for 
City TIF debt payments. 

19). Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County 
Gaming Association. 

20). Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment, health insurance fund support, or other one-time allocations 
approved by the City Council.  

B. FY2025 Budget Contingency Policies. 

C. FY2025 Cash Reserves Policy. 

1). 1. The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by 
Council to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  
 

Fund Type Percent Minimum Absolute Minimum 

General Fund 15-25%1 Not specified 

Refuse Fund 20-30% $500,000 

Sewer Fund 65-75% $1,500,000 

Street Fund 20-30% $1,000,000 

Storm Water Fund 10-20% $200,000 

Emergency Reserve 
Fund 

N/A $1,500,000 - 
$2,000,000 

 

D. FY2025 Revenues Policy. 

1).   

 

 

26

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 8                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

2).   

3). Revenue Source Policies.  
a.   
b.   
c.   
d.   
e.   
f.   
g.   
h.     
i. Sales Tax. The City collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. The revenues 

and expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund. 
 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income 
generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism 
Division. The other 50% is devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and 
recreational/cultural facilities. 

k.       
l.   
m.   
n.   
 

E. FY2025 Expenditures Policies. 

1).   
2).   
3).   
4). Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in 

accordance with the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution2.  
  

F. FY2024 Long Term Debt Policies. 

G. FY2024 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

1).   
2).   

 
 

27

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 9                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

3).    
4).   
5).   
6).   
7).   
8).   
9).   
10).  
11).   
12).   
13).   
14).   
15).   
16).    
17). The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for new recreation & 

quality of life projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council 
needs to be executed prior to the project bid letting.  

 
  

28

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 10                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Session 3 | December 7, 2023 

 
During the December 7 work session, the Mayor-Elect, City Council members and staff reviewed 
the following items from the Goals and Objectives section of the FY2024 goal document. Council 
members agreed to support the following items in FY 2025 with additions noted in underline and 
bold:   
 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

1. GOAL #1: Foster Organizational Excellence. Select, train, motivate and retain highly qualified 
employees who represent the city in a professional manner. 

A. Supporting Policies. 

1).  Ensure that employee wages and benefits are competitive with other municipalities in 
the state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

2). Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and staff. 

3). Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with respect. 

4). Encourage and management and supervisory employees to be creative and innovative 
in the delivery of city services. 

5). Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

6). Conduct employee survey annually beginning in 2025.   

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

2).   

3).   

4).   

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Review results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate assessment / 
employee satisfaction survey to improve human resources management and employee 
relations. 

2).   

29

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 11                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

3). Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating vacant positions. 

4).   

5).  

6). Continue to fund the City’s employee educational assistance program (CFD 2254).  

7). Continue to fund the City’s employee assistance program.  

8).   

9). Encourage employees to participate in the employee DEI committee.  

10). Update the staffing plan to address employment attrition, retirements and the use of 
PT, PSOs, POCs, Police Reservists, volunteers or other cross-training programs to 
respond to long-term staffing needs. 

11). Continue to use a Develop a review standard review tool to annually evaluate 
the performance of the City Administrator.  

 

2. GOAL #2: Deliver Responsible Local Government. Provide a representative system which 
identifies and anticipates concerns, problems, and opportunities which are effectively addressed 
with thoughtful and decisive governmental actions for the benefit of citizens. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1).  Provide broad direction to the City Administrator, who in turn formulates management 
decisions to provide efficient service offerings and operations. 

2). As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to City 
staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

3). Continue to provide a forum for active public engagement related to City actions through 
open public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces and broadcast 
media. 

4). Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens to 
inform them of City activities and accomplishments. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1).   

2).   

30

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 12                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

3). Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black Hawk 
County Supervisors, Cedar Falls Community School District and the University of 
Northern Iowa on matters of mutual interest. 

4).   

5). Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black Hawk 
County, and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public services at lower 
cost; examples include art & culture services, airport operations, public safety services, 
transit systems, economic development coordination, emergency response, sewer 
infrastructure, and shared facilities / equipment. 

6).   

7). Continue to support the development of a five-year Community-Wide Strategic Plan (CFD 
4005) to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many stakeholders, including 
a new plan for 2025-2030. 

8). Continue using the city’s quarterly Currents newsletter, websites, cable television, social 
media and other technologies to provide relevant information about City services, 
activities, and schedules to residents. 

9). Continue expanding the Communication Specialist role and centralize efforts with 
other departments to facilitate increased communications with the public about all 
aspects of city government. 

10).   

11).   

12).   

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). City of Waterloo Objectives. 

a.   

b.   

2). University of Northern Iowa Objectives. 

a. Continue to collaborate with UNI to address public safety, parking, College Hill 
neighborhood, equitable payment for City services, sharing of facilities and 
elimination of duplicated governmental services. 

b.   

31

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 13                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

c.   

d. Engage with Iowa Workforce Development, UNI, Cedar Falls Economic 
Development Corporation, Grow Cedar Valley, and other relevant entities to 
explore opportunities to retain recent UNI graduates in Cedar Falls. 

e.   

3). Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) Objectives. 

a.   

b. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic near public schools in 
accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools Study (CFD 4106.11); examples of such 
design are Orchard Hill Elementary, Southdale Elementary, and Lincoln Elementary.  

c. Continue to coordinate with CFCSD on the completion of the new Cedar Falls 
High School; identify local, county and state facilities, programs and property which 
can minimize duplication of services. 

d.   

e. Build collaboration between CFCSD and the City to highlight and celebrate the 
many cultures in the community and how they add value to our city.  

f.   

g.   

4). Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) Objectives. 

a.   

b. Support CFU in the implementation of water service programs, as CFU is the sole 
governmental entity authorized by code to provide these services.  Reimbursement 
would be subject to CFU maintaining a fair and updated annual transfer that equitably 
compensates the City for return on investment from City ownership, property taxes, 
franchise fees and use of city right-of-way (ROW). 

c. Implement public water special assessment programs (if requested by CFU) to install 
a public water system in un-serviced areas, if requested and financially supported by 
a majority of benefited property owners. Examples include parts of northern Cedar 
Falls, Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and some rural properties. 

d. Use federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding (if eligible) 
to pay for water service line connection for all residents who are income-eligible 

32

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 14                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

and property taxes to pay for fire hydrant installation; CFU will pay for all water line 
over-sizing and property owners will pay all other expenses, less any other funding 
sources. 

e.   

5). Community Resiliency Objectives. 

a.   

b.   

c.   

d.   

e. Continue to support the conversion of select gravel alleys to permeable alleys (when 
funds permit) to reduce gravel erosion and pollution from storm runoff. 

6). Racial Equity and Human Rights Objectives.  

a.   

b. Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health Department, Cedar 
Falls Community School District, UNI, and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated 
and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

c.   

d.   

e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion 
(DEI) subcommittee or determine best approach to establishing a Cedar Falls Equity 
Committee. 

f.   

7). General Governance Objectives. 

a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City Council, Cedar Falls 
residents and stakeholders of the status of Council priorities, City projects, upcoming 
activities and key information.  

b.   

c.   

33

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 15                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

d.   

e. Hold city council committee or work sessions on council meeting Mondays to discuss 
complex or potentially contentious matters. 

3. GOAL #3: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness. Equitably deliver services in a 
cost effective, efficient, professional, and timely manner. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1).   

2). Ensure that community health, safety, and welfare are protected through provision of 
essential cost-effective, efficient, professional, and timely public services. 

3).   

4).    

5).   

6). Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

7).    

8). Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF 
funds) in a capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public 
land acquisition, redevelopment, health insurance fund support, or other one-time 
allocations approved by the City Council. 

9). Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and 
value of each service, and to identify unnecessary duplication within City-sponsored 
programs. 

10). Identify and implement cost-effective methods to save energy within City operations. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its growing 
infrastructure. Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a contingency plan to 
respond to any long-term reductions in maintenance funds.  

2).   

3). Continue to dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future 
economic development projects.  

34

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 16                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

4).   

5). Continue the annual street repair program using RUT and LOST revenues.  

6). Ensure that essential services (public safety, parks, sewers, roads, refuse collection) are 
offered, while constantly exploring ways to increase efficiency in delivery. 

7). Encourage civic involvement and volunteerism by citizens to reduce costs, including 
recycling, picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with efficient snowplowing, cleaning 
sidewalks, Friends of the Library, Friends of the Hearst Center, and Police Reservists.  

8). Maintain the appropriate number of alternative staff in police and fire while improving 
services and reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting, if necessary new Police 
Reservists, volunteers, PSOs and POC staff. 

9). Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the County 
Consolidated Communications Center and CJIS. Determine the fair share of costs that 
should be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" system. 

10).    

11).    

12).   

C. FY2024 Detailed Objectives. 

1).    

a.   

b.   

c.   

d.   

e.   

2). Public Safety Objectives. 

a.   

b. Continue to evaluate the City’s Public Safety model, ensuring cost effective and 
efficient law enforcement, firefighting, and rescue operations. 

c.   

35

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 17                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

d.   

e.   

f.   

g. Pursue the establishment of a new public safety station along W. 1st Street / Highway 
57.  

h.   

i.   

j.   

k. Investigate options for additional staffing or contracting out for crisis 
intervention services 

3). Code Enforcement Objectives. 

a.   

b. Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better coordinate 
inspections while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, rental housing, 
and zoning and nuisance ordinance violations citywide with cooperative and 
coordinated actions by the City’s departments. 

c. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce property 
maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building, and nuisances. 

d.   

e.   

f.   

g.    

h.          

i.   

j.   

k.   

l.   

36

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 18                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

m.   

4).   

a.   

b.    

c.      

d.   

e. Continue to review refuse fees, when timely, to ensure that sufficient revenues exist 
to cover all collection costs. 

f. Continue to plan for future relocation of transfer station outside of the floodplain 

5). Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 

a.   

b.   

c.   

6). General Legislative Objectives. 

a.   

(1)   

(2)   

b.   

c. Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into current 
legislative directions, and to apprise them of the City's revenue generation challenges, 
as well as the negative impact of legislation (including unfunded mandates, tax 
exempt and rollbacks).  

d.   

 

  

37

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 19                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Session 4 | December 11, 2023 

During the December 11 work session, the Mayor-Elect, City Council members and staff reviewed 
the following items from the Goals and Objectives section of the FY2024 goal document. Council 
members agreed to support the following items in FY 2025 with additions noted in underline and 
bold:   
 

GOAL #4: Promote Economic Development. Create an environment conducive to economic 
development for the long-term financial prosperity and growth of the community. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 
1). Function as a catalyst to encourage business development/expansion in Cedar Falls. 

a.   
B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives 

1). Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development goals 
contained in the city’s Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

2). Implement a long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts. This plan should 
include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing cooperative 
efforts with other groups and agencies. 

3).   
4). Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 

benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture; the analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial assets. 
 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Economic Development Objectives. 
a. Offer economic development incentives on par with other Iowa cities to remain 

competitive in the site selection process. 
b.   
c.   
d.   
e.   
f.   
g.   
h.   
i.    
j.   
k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently separated military members 

willing to relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s Home Base Iowa initiative. 
 

l. Explore the establishment of an incentive policy for residential districts.  

38

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 20                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

 
2). Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

a.   

b.   

c. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 
in advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3). Regional Tourism Objectives. 

a. Continue to maintain a dedicated Cedar Falls Visitors & Tourism Bureau. 

b. Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts between UNI, and with 
tourism-related organizations throughout the Cedar Valley. Cedar Falls and 
Waterloo Visitors and Tourism Bureaus for all Metro tourist events. 

c. Showcase Cedar Falls as premier destination for meetings, conferences, sports 
and business travel in Iowa.  

d. Continuously evaluate and grow the budget for a sponsorship program 
(modeled after competing communities) for offering financial incentives to 
prospective event organizers. 

e. Maintain and enhance Cedar Falls as a preferred destination for leisure 
travelers. 

f. Encourage the development of new attractions and assets that would enhance 
Cedar Falls as a tourism destination. 

g. Advocate for the construction of a new multi-purpose indoor turf facility to meet 
the increasing demands youth and amateur athletic events and competitions.  

h. Facilitate consistent communications with members of the hospitality industry, 
providing local, statewide and national training opportunities, information and 
updates.  

  

39

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 21                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Session 5 | December 20, 2023 

 

4.) Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 
a.   

b.   

(1)   

(2)   

(3)     

(4)   

(5) Development of neighborhood traffic program guide 

(i) Traffic calming devices and design approaches to address neighborhood 
traffic concerns, when practical. 

(6)   

(7)   

5.) Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance to update the 
Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970. Consider new zoning and traffic control 
regulations to control density and parking problems by reducing the number of 
multiple family and duplex conversions. 

1. Continue to work on College Hill zoning ordinance. 

2. Initiate work to develop neighborhood plan exploring the redevelopment of 
the old High School and the Sartori Hospital sites (and subsequent zoning 
changes if identified.) 

3. Develop a University Avenue neighborhood plan (and subsequent zoning 
changes if identified.)B.  

c.   

d.   

40

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 22                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

e.   

f.   

g.   

6.) Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 

a.Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to residents by: 

(1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as possible, 
given HUD guidance. 

(2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as Community 
Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

(3) Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in every 
neighborhood, e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

(4) Encouraging the Housing Commission to evaluate initiatives to balance 
investments in market rate and low-income housing (e.g., tax abatements, 
forgivable loans, gap payments on rent or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

b. Review City construction standards to identify possible changes which can promote the 
construction of affordable housing. 

c. Identify existing older homes which can provide a market to meet affordable housing 
demand.  

d.   

e.   

f. Consider the results of the Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide 
housing variety to promote housing options for all. 

g.   

h.   

i.   

j.   

k.   

 

41

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 23                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

7.)Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

a.   

b.   

c.   

8.) College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 
Carry out the recommendations of the College Hill Parking Study (CFD 
1602.19) 

a. Continue to enact the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (CFD 1852.12). 

9).Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to support the development of commercial uses in the northeast corner 
of Lone Tree Road/Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road interchange. 

d. Continue to promote the development of commercial growth along Center 
Street through streetscaping and beautification efforts in the ROW. 

10)Downtown Area Economic Development Objectives. 

1.   

2. Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in 
conjunction with a feasibility study and continual re-evaluation of 
paid parking options. 

11.) Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 

 a. 

 b. 

 c. 

12.) Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

a.  

b. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic systems 
(i.e. South Main Street). 

 

42

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 24                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

13)Street Improvement Objectives. 

a.   

1.   

2. Greenhill Road/Highway 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of 
Transportation’s project in FY2027. 

3. West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2024. 

4.  

5. West Viking Road Reconstruction – Use TIF and LOST to complete this project 
for construction in 2024-2025. 

6.  Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Intersection Improvements – Use TIF, LOST, and 
RUT for construction in FY2024-2025. 

7. Northern Cedar Heights Area – Use LOST and SCF to complete this project 

b. Complete the street connections per agreements with developers to complete the 
connection of the following streets: 

8. Arbors Drive -- Aldrich Elementary to Greenhill Road 

9. Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 

10. Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

11. Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

b.  West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2022-2024. 

c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road from 27th Street to 
University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to complete this project.  Timing of project 
dependent on receipt of grant funding sources. 

14. Miscellaneous Infrastructure Repairs. 

a.  

 

 

43

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 25                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

GOAL #5: Enhance Community Quality of Life. Preserve the community’s physical, human, and 
aesthetic assets by assuring that Quality of Life services are available for leisure, educational, 
cultural and personal enrichment of residents. 

A. Supporting Council Policies.  

1. Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 
features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

2. Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

3. Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1. Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City can enhance racial and 
cultural diversity and inclusion in Cedar Falls. 

2. Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs 
and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1. Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation. 

2.    

3. Implement, when financially feasible, an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Development Master Plan (CFD 4102). 

4. Coordinate with the Cedar Falls Community School District to purchase land for future 
parks in developing areas, as appropriate.  

5. Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including dam 
safety improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

6.   

7. Improve the Big Woods Campground (cabins, campground expansion, playground, and 
landscaping) as funding becomes available and as floodplain development ordinances 
allow. 

8. Develop an annual street right-of-way beautification, wayfinding signage, bike network 
signage, and city entrance signage & monument program using hotel/motel taxes. 

9. Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative roadway designs are 

44

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 26                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

appropriate based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible; typically, these 
opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction allowing 
the City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, transit, bike and 
vehicular traffic. 

10. Protect areas identified in the Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey (CFD 
4551.07) as city finances allow. 

11.   

12.   

13. Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a new indoor 
community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School. 

14.    

15.   

16. Implement facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

17.   

18. Implement the Bike Network Plan as funding and construction allows. 

19. Consider potential for new quality of life projects 

a. Eco Loop 
b. Campground/RV Park in Northern Cedar Falls 
c. Trail Connection (behind CFU, contingent upon railroad grant)  
d. Pickleball Courts 
e. Birdsall Park Renovations 
f. Historic Reconnaissance Survey of Overman Park Neighborhood 

20. Consider funding for quality-of-life projects with other entities 

a. Historical Society 
b. UNI Dome Renovations 
c.  Cedar Valley Placemaking Project (bridge lighting) 

 

  

45

Item 5.



City of Cedar Falls | Goal Setting FY 2025 | Work Sessions Report | 12.21.23 | Page 27                                                                                         
Facilitated by Aimee Viniard-Weideman | Iowa State University Extension | aimeevw@iastate.edu   

 
 

Work Sessions 

The following items were recommended for council work sessions in 2024: 

 Hiring practices and staffing, including wages and benefits, volunteer tie off, drug 
screening,  

 DEI Update 
 Public Transit 
 Refuse rates 
 HF718 on libraries and other entities 
 Residential Incentives (green space, infill development, home ownership for LMI or 1st time 

owners) 
 Resiliency plan 
 TIF Economic Development Plans for other areas of the city 
 College Hill 
 Housing Needs Assessment – Joint meeting with Housing Commission 

 

 

Mayor Commitment/Responsibilities 

 Strategic Planning 
 Improvements to City Council/Mayor/Staff communication 

o Quarterly Review of Goals 
 Strengthening external partnerships 
 Staffing  
 Economic development partners 
 Fireworks Display 

 

 
  

 

 

 

46

Item 5.



 MAYOR DANIEL LAUDICK 

  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Daniel Laudick  

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: December 21, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment of Housing Commissioners 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §11-1: Housing Commission 

  (b) CFD 1201.22: Process for Appointment to City Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), and 

process set forth in reference (b) I hereby nominate the following individuals for 

reappointment to the Housing Commission for two-year terms: 

 

a. Ms. Peggy Larson – term ends 12/31/2025 

b. Mr. Gary Winterhof – term ends 12/31/2025 

 

2. These two candidates have carried out their commissioner roles ably and have met 

minimum attendance requirements. My thanks go to these two citizens for their willingness 

to serve the public through this important role. 

  

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director of Community Development 

  Planning and Community Services Manager 

  Housing Commission Chair 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

47

Item 6.



OFFICE OF CITY ADMINISTRATOR

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

220 CLAY STREET

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

PHONE 319- 273- 8600

FAX 319- 268- 5126

7 kY  
www. cedarfalls. com

TO: Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council Members

FROM: Ron Gaines, City Administrator

DATE: December 21, 2023

SUBJECT: Departmental Monthly Reports Submission— November 2023

Please contact Administrator Gaines with any questions about the accomplishments of city staff
contained in this monthly report.

Encl: ( 1) City of Cedar Falls Departmental Monthly Reports.

OUR CITIZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS" 48

Item 7.



C    E    D    A    R

F     A      L      L     S

49

Item 7.



NOVEMBER 2023 MONTHLY REPORTS

Table of Contents

Finance & Business Operations

Financial Services Division......................................................................... I

Human Resources Division......................................................................... 2

Information Systems Division...................................................................... 4

LegalServices Division.............................................................................. 6

Public Records Division............................................................................. 7

Cedar Falls Library & Community Center........................................................ 8

Community Development

Inspection Services Division........................................................................ 9

Planning& Community Services Division...................................................... I 1

Recreation & Community Programs.............................................................. 17

Visitors & Tourism and Cultural Programs...................................................... 19

Municipal Operations & Programs

Engineering Division............................................................................... 22

Public Works & Parks Division................................................................... 25

Water Reclamation Division....................................................................... 26

Public Safety Services

Police/ Fire Operations.............................................................................. 28

50

Item 7.



Finance & Business Operations

Financial Services

November 2023

Treasury

The Finance Division is responsible for maintaining accounting and cashflow as it relates
to the city treasury, monitoring securities held by the City Clerk and investing idle cash
to provide safe investments while maximizing interest earnings.  Currently, the City has

92, 743, 370 invested in CD' s and $ 300,000 in a liquid money market.

Investments Transactions Amount

CD' s Matured 2 8, 000, 000. 00

CD' s Purchased 2 8, 000, 000. 00

PFMM Withdrawal 0 0. 00

CD/ Investment Interest 389, 116. 63

FY24 Capital Improvements Plan

All departments submitted their FY2024- 2029 Capital Improvement Plan ( CIP) requests.

The CIP will be presented to the Committee of the Whole and the public hearing set in
January with formal approval occurring in January as well.

FY25 Budget

The FY25 budget process was started in November.  All departments will submit their

budget requests in early December.   The budgets will be compiled in December and

January and revenue projections will also be completed at that time.

TIF & Urban Renewal Reporting

Certifications for the five active TIF districts were filed with Black Hawk County prior to
the December 1st deadline. The annual Urban Renewal Report was also filed with the
Iowa Department of Management before the December 1st deadline.

Miscellaneous Financial Activities

For November, 41 payroll checks and 712 direct deposits were processed. Accounts
receivables were processed and 20 invoices were mailed out to customers.   1 , 660

transactions for accounts payable were processed and approved by the City Council for
payment and 487 checks were mailed out to vendors.

1

51

Item 7.



FINANCE& BUSINESS OPERATIONS

HUMAN RESOURCES

November 2023

SUMMARY OF PROJECTS, TRAINING & STAFF ACTIVITIES

Risk Management Committee meeting held November 15
Review of 3 contracts/ agreements for required insurance

Review and follow-up of 2 public event permits
Recruitment/ Employment tasks related to:

o FT positions: Administrative Supervisor,  City Clerk, Civil CAD/ GIS Technician,
Engineering Technician ll, Equipment Mechanic, Information Systems Technician
II, Library Assistant ( Circulation), Maintenance Worker ( WRF), Principal Engineer,

Public Safety Officer, Public Safety Supervisor-Captain, Public Safety Supervisor-
Lieutenant,  Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I,  and Water Reclamation

Supervisor

o PT positions:  Community Service Officer,  Laborer  ( Parks),  Library Assistant
Circulation), Maintenance Worker ( Refuse), Office Assistant- Recreation Center,

Police Reserve ( external and internal, POC/ paid on call)
o Seasonal/Special Purpose/ Misc. positions for Community Development and Public

Works departments:   Aquatics,   Recreation Front Desk and Programming,
Seasonal Laborers, and contracted Custodians

o Discussion continued with staff and legal regarding PERM/ Green Card processing
and an H- 1 B visa renewal.

o Job classification updates and preparations were finalized for December 4 City
Council approval for Principal Engineer, Construction Project Manager, and Policy

Administration Specialist.

DEI specialist held demos with Cedar Rapids- based interpretive service, Hands Up
Communications, with staff from various departments.

DEI specialist attended educational webinars on the following topics: background

screening comp iance; hybrid work; and self- care.

Along with the ADA team, the DEI specialist performed an ADA assessment of City Hall.
Two videos were added to new hire onboarding and the video training acknowledgement
form was updated and emailed to all onboarding staff with video links.
A Human Resources Specialist attended the Cedar Falls Community School District
Career Connections Event with other City staff to meet with Holmes and Peet Junior High
School students about the City of Cedar Falls and its career opportunities.
Human Resources staff continued to mentor a Human Resources student working for a

nearby municipality.

BENEFITS & COMPENSATION

Staff, in coordination with our benefits consultant, continued gathering information related
to a potential PBM and/ or Administrator change for the City' s prescription drug plan for the
2024 plan year. A non- disclosure and business associate agreement with RxBenefits, Inc.
were approved by City Council to further discuss a potential agreement.
Cafeteria benefits plan renewal was initiated with iSolved Benefit Services.
Cafeteria benefits plan enrollment materials were received back from employees. Staff will
enter employee elections into the payroll system and upload to iSolved Benefit Services.

2

52

Item 7.



COBRA administration renewal related to cafeteria plan was initiated with WEX Health,
Inc.

Cafeteria participation information was assembled by City staff and forwarded to iSolved
Benefit Services for non- discrimination testing of the City's flexible spending and HRA
plans. Both plans passed testing.
Employee intranet was updated for new summary plan descriptions received from
Wellmark related to the City' s health insurance plan. Hard copies were ordered and
expected to be received in December.

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION

Preparations for and follow- up to the November 13 and 29 meetings were completed.
Certified lists for Equipment Mechanic, Public Safety Officer, and Wastewater Treatment
Plant Operator I were approved.

Testing processes and documents were approved for Public Safety Supervisor- Captain
and Public Safety Supervisor- Lieutenant.
Proposed Civil Service job classifications were presented for review.
An update to Appendix B from the Cedar Falls Local Rules &  Regulations and the

examination status for two new Civil Service positions were approved.
Removal of a candidate from the Engineering Technician I certified list was completed.

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

Preparations for and follow up to the Nov.  13 regular commission meeting were

completed.

Preparations for and assistance with holding the Human Rights Commission' s Inaugural
Fall Summit were completed.  The Inaugural Fall Summit was held on November 17th at

Central Rivers Area Education Agency.

Preparations for and follow up to the Nov. 29 executive committee meeting were
completed.

Completed HRC Fiscal Year 2023 annual report for submission to Dec. 4 Standing

Committee meeting.

3

53

Item 7.



Finance and Business Operations

Information Systems Division

Monthly Report November 2023

Summary of projects, training and staff activities
Continued work on a new Laserfiche Public Portal to allow our Standard

Municipal Index of City Documents viewable from ourwebsite.
Our staff worked with Public Safety creating an RFP for body worn and car
camera replacements and worked on the presentation to council.
We held a planning meeting to gather requirements for cameras and fiberwork
on 27th street.  We anticipate installation before the school year starts.

Staff continues to assist in testing and project work for the County Wide dispatch
software.

Network Administrator and Manager continued a 12- week training course on

Cyber Security Leadership.
We set up Multifactor Authentication for web- based software via the new
Microsoft Tenant.

Finished ourtelecom expense auditwith Spyglass; they found a savings of$ 749

for the City.

Software Purchase/ Installation/ Upgrade Activities

42 software installations for 11 different departments

Installed 12 new software for 3 department

Equipment Purchase/Installation/ Upgrade Activities/Repairs

11 new pieces of equipment purchased for 5 different department and inventory.
4 new equipment installations for 2 different departments.

Problem Resolution Activities & Assistance Activities

67 problem resolution or assistant activities took place for 11 different
departments

Graphic Design Activities

Hearst Center: seasonal brochure, vinyl, event postcard, event posters

Tourism: travel guide ad, annual report, banners, holiday card,
Other: website updates, social media maintenance/graphics/series, business
cards, Cable TV graphics, promotional/ communications graphics, laminating,
Currents articles, recycle signs, acquisition material changes, HRC event
materials, finance logo, Public Safety flier

Channel 15 Programming Activities

Cable TV Summary of projects
This month we produced 6 public meetings, 1 High School Sporting Event, 3
UNI Sporting events and 2 new City News shows.
Continued testing CFU TV app for Firestick TV apps and Androids.

4

54

Item 7.



Continued weekly encoding & programming of church services for Public
Access of 8 different churches.

Drone Flights

Cedar River Recreational Project

Cedar Falls High School New Campus

West 27th Street Construction

South Main & Greenhill Roundabout

Main Street Reconstruction Project ( two flights)

Holiday Hoopla Kickoff, River Place Plaza
Unity Point, Viking Road

Geographical Information Systems ( GIS) Activities

GIS Summary of projects
Continued converting existing projects to new desktop platform
Continued converting web applications to new platform
Began adding users to single sign on

Met with parking vendor to discuss data schema for parking ramp study
Met with engineering and legal to acquire property for sewer easement
Met with planning on proposed federal functional class roads
Updated future land use for proposed development
Assisted legal on property transfer error for Prairie Lakes Park
Converted nightly scripts to the updated python runtime
Met with various departments to prepare exhibits for goal setting
Upgraded GIS application software

Upgraded and patched GIS server software and applications
Completed 16 web and database projects for 10 departments
Attended regional GIS training
Completed 6 different data requests for 4 entities

Provided 22 maps for different 6 departments.

Created 16 new addresses

5

55

Item 7.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

LEGAL SERVICES

November 2023

REPORT FROM SWISHER & COHRT — SAM ANDERSON AND AUSTIN MCMAHON:

Traffic Court:

City Cases Filed:       119     ( this number includes both City and State tickets)

Cases Set:       5 ( Traffic)     0 ( Code Enforcement)

Trials Held:     1 ( Traffic)     0 ( Code Enforcement)

REPORT FROM KEVIN ROGERS, CITY ATTORNEY

Review, revise, drafting or advice on 7 agreements
Update Acquisition manual

Advise Administration committee; Draft dangerous animal appeal decision

Advise on Greenhill 9t'' settlement documents; drafting

Research and Drafting of Motion to Dismiss and Brief

6

56

Item 7.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

PUBLIC RECORDS

NOVEMBER 2023

Public Records Activity

Staff prepared agendas, minutes, and electronic packets for two Regular City
Council meetings and one Standing Council Committee meeting, two Planning &
Zoning Commission meetings, and two Technical Review meetings. Meeting
follow- up communications, minutes and legal documents were drafted,
processed, recorded, and filed.

Responded to one ( 1) request for public records.

Licenses / Permits Processed & Issued

43 Pet licenses

2 Annual Paw Park permits
0 Poultry licenses
1 Public Event permits
0 Sidewalk Cafe permits
0 Table & Chairs permits
0 Mobile Merchant permits
0 Tree Trimmer Licenses

0 Dumpster Permits

8 Cemetery Interment Rights
9 Liquor licenses and beer/ wine permits
1 Tobacco/ Nicotine permit

The unemployment rates for the month of October 2023 were 2. 9% for the

Waterloo- Cedar Falls Metropolitan Area, 3. 2% in Iowa, and 3. 6% in the U. S.

Management/ Supervisory staff attended a Hands Up Communication Demo and
Iowa League of Cities budget workshop.

Parking Activity

Enforcement

855 Parking citations issued.
8, 487. 00 Citations paid.

Collection Efforts

1, 540. 00 Collections from delinquent parking accounts.
700. 00 Vehicle immobilizations ( 13 vehicles).

Permits

2, 818. 00 Parking permits issued ( 62).

Meter Collections

1, 197. 42 Paid parking.

57

Item 7.



FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS

LIBRARY& COMMUNITY CENTER

NOVEMBER 2023

Library Activity

Usage Statistics September 2023 October 2023 October 2022

Customer Count 13, 193 13, 883 12, 345

Circulation 32, 064 33, 886 33, 225

Event 940 11775 1, 901

Attendance

Special events in November included the following:

Presentation by author Linda McCann

Native American Heritage Month: Milk' s Camp, a Chief' s Vision, a talk by Sonja Lee Bock.
Teen NalloWriMo events ( National Novel Writing Month)

Reading Pals with Cedar Valley Pet Pals for children

Community Center Activity

Programs at the Community Center included line dancing, cards, billiards, senior fitness classes,
live music, and ceramics. Council Goal Setting sessions were held in the Community Center
beginning in late November.

8

58

Item 7.



C O O   +
t

O j O O O O f O C)      O

O O i O O O O   ]   O O

I
O O

V

C

O O O O O I O O O O O

O O O O O O O O O O O

v O O O O O O O O O O

f
C

I

O U)

O O O O O O O O O O O O Cl

O O O O N O 00 on O O O

0o m 1\  00 Ol O tD rV V)       Co m
4

vl Vl

N N N cn m C)       n O N co O Ih h

M M 00 O i O C

I li Cl O N 00 v1 O      .-- 1

Q O N I-     ! O i 1`       r Ln n m       '      m ID

w N 00 ID C
QI m O N 00 Q N CC)      N

Q rl C Ol C LL
D  , D ID Ih E

N N

N T
a~it_ aMn 3 1

7 i 3

tD
O o o O o O o O O o

NY N T C)       N O co CDN N
C

m
Q Q CO Ol N 00 C)       C,       O N C)       M

C 01
w w Ol a0       .- i iD O N h       1 O

O  }  } }   N e- i 00 00 ID       1 N I       M N

3
N lD Q'       00 rl

N N N td
Q O

N
t`       lD lD

O 11 Q Q N N N

mY 0

4

L

O m
C)       O O O O O O O O O

CQ
0)  pD

aj

m a 1
u

3 
E LL
m

lD 00 Q Ol ID

m —   N
m

V
N tl1 Q

lD

o
m

H

n O O O O

w

O O O

N O O O O O O O

0)       
O O O O O O O

N N N N N N L?

CO
u

O.

C

K

O O O O O O O O

0)      O O O O O O O

3 0)     N N N N N N       ?

m

Y  >_

O 0)

1

o o 0 o o O o

i a0 O 00 O lD lD

ro
M 00

Cc pOj n Q Vl

1
N C

C
0)       

N N N N N ui

h LL N N

N           

p CD O O C) CD C,

Z
o 0 0 C)   !    o 0 0

D O o 0 0 co

Vl m lD Q m N N

O
m 00 M

Cd
@ a)       m O   ,    V' 00 10

O
O 1 O m Q

N N I N
ID

117 N

0 0 0N

O
3

Q
N Z s=     a 0

n

QJ
0J QI-
U

LL_  o v o 0 3 3 1 U I

m i N

o ti 1 c,

L7, u 4 5 u o a c u u u a u i u     -  ti i a

59

Item 7.



o p
o p

o p

o p
O O

o p

O O O O O CD j O o O O

W O O O o0 O O O O M ei

a

O O 0

i`      i`      n ID O 0
N

Ol Ol O
N

m
vl vl 1 rl ID

Ua,    N N N

LL M N f//      1/ T y 1 t/ 1 V1

I       ! 
V

o0
CD
0

0
0 o 0 0 o 0

C aOn voi oit f0 on I   . oir      . on N N
C C E C M NM
f=  O CD

O

7 r 3 v f N

N 7 Ln 310 t

M cu

on
o 0 0 0 CD o CD 0 0

CUOC Y
3 3 

0

e- i O N      .- 1 V M 00 M V1

Ql V1 00 N
M t0

m a

f

O O O O

O O O O

O O O O

O O O O

O O O O

O O O o

1

O O O O k O O lD cf
m o Un o0

r`      00      ' T m o j o m m
V 1

11
n 00

Dp
I-      cl tito

00

n M
r`

mN

O     (
9 O O O O O O

Z

E O CDO CDi 00 00

to V}      to
m

O O
M

to ro N @ j V UO

3
I

3

1
L  > I

L   >  
I vpi

C

O

O
0 0

v

m 1 I

i
O0 rnM

0

O i
o

n
a-j

v o       ?       i°-    i   u
H o o

ti Q O

c O an

a

o W
Y

CCC Q-

U U

60

Item 7.



PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

MONTHLY REPORT

November 2023

MONTHLY MEETINGS:

Planning & Zoning Commission — Meetings were held on November 8 and November 21.

November 8, 2023 Meeting

Applicant Project Recommendation Action Taken

B. N. K. D., Inc., Owner,    Preliminary Plat for Autumn Approval Recommended

CGA Engineering,  Ridge 12th Addition — 1. 06 approval to City
Engineer acre of property located east Council

of Golden Lane PP23- 005

B. N. K. D., Inc., Owner,    Final Plat for Autumn Ridge Approval Recommended

CGA Engineering,  12th Addition — 1. 06 acre of approval to City
Engineer property located east of Council

Golden Lane FP23- 003

Panther Builders LLC,    Land Use Map Amendment Discuss and set Public hearing set
Applicant LUMA) for 54. 79 acre of

public hearing for November 21

property located North of
Aldrich Elementary School
and South of W. Greenhill

Road. LUMA from " Low

Density Residential",
Greenways & Floodplain

Use" and " Neighborhood

Commercial & Mixed Use" to

Low Density Residential Use
and ( a reduced)

Greenways/ Floodplain"

LU23- 002

Panther Builders LLC,    Rezoning from R- 1 & MU to Discuss and set Public hearing set

Applicant RP for 54. 79 acre of property public hearing for November 21

located North of Aldrich

Elementary School and South
of W. Greenhill Road ( RZ23-

003

November 21, 2023 Meeting

Panther Builders LLC,    Land Use Map Amendment Approval Recommended

Applicant LUMA) for 54. 79 acre of approval to City
property located North of Council

Aldrich Elementary School
and South of W. Greenhill

Road. LUMA from " Low

Density Residential",
Greenwa s & Flood lain

61

Item 7.



Use" and " Neighborhood

Commercial & Mixed Use" to

Low Density Residential Use
and ( a reduced)

Greenways/ Floodplain"

LU23- 002

Panther Builders LLC,    Rezoning from R- 1 & MU to Approval Recommended

Applicant RP for 54. 79 acre of property approval to City
located North of Aldrich Council

Elementary School and South
of W. Greenhill Road ( RZ23-

003

Mark lehl, CL College Hill Neighborhood Approval Recommended

Ventures, LLC -     Overlay District site plan for approval to City
Owner modification of a parking area Council

2704 College Street ( DR23-

005

Group Rental Committee — Meetings were held on November 8 and November 21 .

Requested Approved

Address Units Owner Occupancy for GRC BRHA

Brent 2 per unit ( 6 1, 2, and 1 ( 4

501 W 2nd 3 Dahlstrom total)       total)   11/ 8/ 2023 NA

Alyx

1510 Madison 1 Sandbothe 3 3 11/ 8/ 2023 NA

708 W 18t"    1 Kel- Mar LLC 4 4 11/ 8/ 2023 NA

1903 Olive 1 Kel- Mar LLC 3 2 11/ 8/ 2023 NA

Request

more

2103 Walnut 1 Kel- Mar LLC 4 information 11/ 8/ 2023 NA

3504 Panther 1 Kel- Mar LLC 4 4 11/ 8/ 2023 NA

Request

Casa deVine, more

504 W Seerley 1 LLC 4 information 11/ 21/ 2023 NA

Request

Greg 3 and 2 more

1003 Bluff 2 Schneider 5 total information 11/ 21/ 2023 NA

Full Throttle Request

1409 Investments, 3 and 2 more

Washington 2 LLC 5 total information 11/ 21/ 2023 NA

Kelly Property
2009 Merner 1 Investments 4 4 11/ 21/ 2023 NA

3 per unit 2 per unit
2315 Olive 3 HenryYoder 9 total 6 total 11/ 21/ 2023 NA

Board of Rental Housing Appeals — There was no scheduled meeting.

Board of Adjustment — There was no scheduled meeting.
12

62

Item 7.



Other Commissions, Board Meetings & Staff Liaison Responsibilities:

Date Notes/ Actions

Bicycle and Pedestrian 11/ 7/ 23 The commission discussed safety concerns
Commission at: 1st & Eagle Ridge, and 12th & Clay. Matt

Tolan gave an update of the measures that
have been taken since concern about 12th &

Clay was raised in Council, including flashing
yellow light, sign in the middle of the road,
etc. The commission would like to review

designs when 12th Street is in planning stages
for repaving. The commission also discussed
eBikes and the difficulty of policing any
regulations regarding them. They agreed on
the need for education regarding trail
etiquette and safety considerations. What that
education effort should look like is still TBD
but the commission will continue to discuss
this issue.

College Hill Partnership 11/ 16/ 23 College Hill Partnership reviewed the options
to place their Panther statue for the Parade of
Panthers.  President Crisman has let the

group know she will be resigning since she
was just elected to serve on City Council and
is anticipated they will elect a new president
in the next meeting.

Historic Preservation 11/ 14/ 23 Mr. Pearson shared his recent project, an
Commission interactive tour to highlight African American

history on the UNI campus and asked the
commission' s thoughts on how they can help
him preserve the Seerley House. The
Commission said they believed it is worthy of
preservation, but he would need to work with
UNI because it is on the campus. The
Commission discussed and approved the

prepared CLG grant application with minor
changes for pre- application review by SHPO.
The Commission will be present at the City
Council meeting on 4th December to get
approval to submit the CLG application for a
Reconnaissance level survey of the Overman
Park Neighborhood. The Commission also
decided that for the next educational event,

they would like to focus on the North Cedar
Neighborhood area after discussing their
research findings and learning about the
neighborhood from the North Cedar
Neighborhood Association members at the

meeting.

13

63

Item 7.



Housing Commission 11/ 20/ 23 The Housing Commission provided a
recommendation to the City Council on the
priorities from the Housing Needs
Assessment.

Community Main Street N/ A No meeting was held in the month of
Design Committee November.

North Cedar Neighborhood 11/ 13/ 23 NCNA invited Brian Heath, Brett Morris, and
Association ( NCNA)      Mike Henderickson to talk about the future of

Big Wood Park. Mr. Heath explained that they
are looking into adding more camping sites at
Big Woods.  The preliminary plan was

reviewed by the Parks and Recreation
Commission, but that plan is not the final
design for the project.  The City Council still
needs to add the project to the Council Goals
and the budget for the project will need to be
part of the final CIP.

Mr. Heath shared that the Heath Family has

promised $ 50, 000 for the improvements.  If

City Council approves funding for the project
in the CIP, then they will create a scaled
drawing verifying that each site and access
road will be able to have a large camper on it.

Mr. Morris shared that they will be starting to
thin and remove invasive species and poison

ivy and poison oak in the park.  This will help

the existing vegetation grow heathier.

The community shared that they had
concerns about the thinning, removing

screening, and environmental effects of the
new sites.

Jim Newcomb announced that he is stepping
down from the North Cedar Natural Resource
Project lead.

Parking Tech Committee N/ A No meeting was held in the month of
November.

LAND USE INQUIRIES AND PERMITTING

267 general inquiries, including walk- ins, and staff responses with information/ assistance.
62 land use permits were issued.

OTHER PROJECTS FOR NOVEMBER INCLUDED:

14

64

Item 7.



The Federal Rail Administration is expected to publish another notice of funding opportunity
this Fall for the Railroad Crossing Elimination Grant which the City applied for in Fall 2022.
Preparations are underway to update our application, include additional partners, and
resubmit by the anticipated deadline.
Ongoing effort to address enforcement of rental paving ordinance.
Working on the Major Thoroughfare Plan and related street standards and associated
subdivision code street connectivity standards.

Various enforcement actions related to zoning and rental code violations.
The second phase of the North Cedar Floodplain Buyout has started with the approval of the
appraisal contract.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:

Continued coordination with consultant on design work for the expansion of the West Viking
Road Industrial Park.

Met with an existing Cedar Falls business regarding expansion plans in the Cedar Falls
Industrial Park.

Attended monthly Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation board of directors
meeting.

Provided industrial park site information for an out of state company looking to potentially
locate in Iowa.

Attended ribbon cutting for a new business that located within the Cedar Falls
Industrial/ Technology Park.
Had a discussion with IEDA officials regarding state incentives for an out of state prospect.
Prepared a development agreement for a proposed project in the West Viking Road
Industrial Park.

City Council approved a tax abatement ordinance for KL Iowa 01, LLC, which recently
finished construction on a new industrial building in the industrial park.

CDBG

CAPER was approved by City Council on their November 61h meeting.
Work with Waterloo on HOME allocations and additional funding through ARP.
Continue to work on the next 5- year Consolidated Plan, partnering with Waterloo as a
consortium, as required by HUD.  Representatives from Mosaic came to Cedar

Falls/ Waterloo on the last week of November for public engagement.  They held three public

meetings, three focus groups and engaged citizens in different pop ups around the
communities.

HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM

Waiting List 728 Rent Subsidies ( HAP payments) $ 92, 779

New Applications Taken 27 Utility Payments 1, 502

Units under Contract 174 Admin Fees 14, 945

Initial Vouchers Issued 6 Pulled from Waitlist 0

Current Open Vouchers 20 Top of List Letters currently out 0

New Admissions 2 Lease Up Goal 220

Ongoing
All active files have been scanned. Continuing to scan in terminated files.

15
65

Item 7.



Added new landlords

Continuing to issue new vouchers/ pulling from waitlist

Working with HUD on transferring 80 clients from a project- based Section 8 Building
located on Boulder Drive that is currently administered by a State agency.

ADD A DOLLAR REPORT

There were 2 applications received for utility assistance in November for a total of$ 392. 84 paid
out. There was a balance of $ 59, 126. 72 left as of November 30, 2023.

16

66

Item 7.



RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS

Monthly Report for November

Administrative:

Worked with IT Division and Finance to update our credit card system.

We are in the works of replacing an Office Assistant.
We had a new front desk worker start.

Sold over $2, 000 in products from our new concession area in the first month of
operation.

Rec & Fitness Center October November

Rec Center Daily Admission 5, 200. 62 5, 995. 06

Rec Memberships Sold 31, 447. 34 34, 995. 21

Daily Member Check In 9, 765 10, 748

Beach House Reservations 6 0

Shelter Reservations 15 0

Pickleball Court Reservations 5 0

Dance 48 0

Concessions Sold 0 391

Aquatics:

Two swim meets and one holiday closed the pools for three days in November.
Programming is set for online/ in- person registration for Spring and Summer
swimming lessons, Stretching Aqua Trim and Lifeguarding course.

Indoor

Swim Passes Sold 3 4

Open Recreational Swimming/ Lap Swimming 329 453

Aquatic Program Usage 1, 708 1346

swim clubs, lessons, lifeguarding, training)

17

67

Item 7.



Recreation Programs:

Public Works did some infield resurfacing on our ballfields.
Fall Programs continued in November.

Started registration for Winter Leagues.

Program est.   Meetings 20231 22
team members     / Games Contacts Contacts

Adult Basketball 8 18 288 240

Adult Pickleball League 2 47 188 N/ A

Racquetball League 16 4 64 96

Indoor Park 8 221 174

Basketball Co- Ed Kin 76 3 228 128

Basketball 1st Girls 40 3 120 64

Basketball 3rd & 4t" Boys 70 3 210 195

Volleyball Adult Mix Mon 8 32 512 416

Volleyball Adult Mix Wen 8 12 192 192

Volleyball Adult Women' s 8 24 384 288

Fitness/ Wellness:

The Rec partnered with the Northeast Iowa Foodbank again this year to host a
food drive.

We had great enrollment in our Turkey Burner fitness classes on Thanksgiving
Day.
We held a specialty cycling class for the Cedar Falls Dance Team.
Wellness sent out a survey to see what type of activities employees wanted to
get involved in.

Fitness/ Wellness 2023 Participation1

Fitness Classes Offered 321 248

Fitness Class Attendance 2, 660 2, 401

Personal Training Sessions 84 66

Massages: 67 54

Child Care 38 55

Rec Facility Rentals 19 19

18

68

Item 7.



CEDAR FALLS
TOURISM & VISITORS BUREAU

November 2023

MEETINGS/ CONVENTIONS/ SPORTS/ GROUPS

Cedar Falls hosted the IHSAA Football Playoffs ( grant funded), Cedar Valley Wrestling Fall Classic
grant funded) and more for an estimated economic impact of over$ 4, 344, 931 for November

events that had CF Tourism staff engagement.

Secured three events for 2024.

Generated one new lead and submitted three proposals for potential future events.
Worked with UNI, Community Main Street, Public Works on signage for IHSAA Football.
Promoted IHSAA Football/ Playoff Parkway and economic impact on KWWL.

Promoted Big Soil Health Event with KWWL interview.

Provided tourism volunteers to assist with IHSAA program sales.

LEISURE

Met with all Panthers on Parade sponsors to connect them with artists.

A new digital ad campaign is underway promoting Holiday activities in Cedar Falls.

Secured a $ 10, 000 Iowa Tourism grant to assist with spring advertising.
Finalized the 2024 Cedar Falls Visitor Guide.

COLLABORATION

Volunteers provided visitor information at UNI Visit Days.

Attended Iowa Travel Industry Partners committee meetings.

Attended CV Trails Partnership meetings.
Attended two Rails to Trails webinars— mapping and advocacy topics.

Attended Iowa DOT Signing Committee meeting.

Assisted with partner updates on Travellowa. com.

Worked on FY23 annual report.

Published Hospitality Highlights newsletter x4. Will be revamping all newsletters in 2024.

November 2023 November 2022

Visitor Center Traffic 367 451

Website Traffic+ CV365. com 10, 754 8, 043

Facebook 10, 939 9, 779

Instagram 21717 2, 416

Linkedln 789 481

Visitor Guide Distribution 492 526

Ad Campaign Impressions n/ a 175, 481

Volunteer Hours 160 136

19
69

Item 7.



CEDAR FALLS CULTURAL PROGRAMS

Monthly Report I November 2023
Cory Hurless ( she/ her), Cultural Programs Supervisor hears 4ik,

r=       S

r

Iowa Chamber Music Collective Concert, Exhibition of Indo Fulcher: Obsession Collection: How Far We' ve Come; Memoir Writing Workshop

HEARST HIGHLIGHTS

Small Gallery installation and opening reception of Indo Fulcher' s Obsession Collection: How Far
We' ve Come took place in November with a reception attendance of 57.

Big Gallery installation of our Hearst New Acquisitions show took place in November, show runs

through January 28, 2024.

Final Thursday series finale for the season took place on November 30 with author Monica Leo
and a demonstration of her puppetry to an audience of 33.
Iowa Chamber Music Collective concert took place on November 14 to a full Mae Latta 148 in
attendance, the audience gave a 3 minute standing ovation to the performers!
The Hearst hosted a free memoir writing workshop featuring author Beth Hoffman in
November to a full classroom of attendees.

Midday Melodies concert took place November 10 with UNI Bass students.
Messy Mornings, Teen Art Club, Intro to Watercolor, and Wheel classes continued in November.
Hearst Winter Brochure dropped at the end of November, with new class registrations available.

New Public Art Sculpture, entitled " The Beginning" from UNI artist Rachel Heine was installed
and debut took place November 11 — located on the Miller Pad in front of the Pump Haus.

1

20
70

Item 7.



Hearst By The Numbers

September October November

OVERALL ATTENDANCE

of Days Open to Public 26 26 22

Door Counter+ any virtual events 1021 1426 975

Sculpture Garden( est.)       300 250 200

Average visits per day 50.81 64. 46 53. 41

ATTENDANCEFREESERVICES-

Exhibition ( walk- in)    247 278 162

Special Events( lectures, concerts, film, performance, free workshops)   208 263 124

Regular Monthly Public Programs( Final Thursday, Mid- day Melodies,)   151 39 56

Community Meetings( ACB, Friends, etc.)    12 12 30

Thursday Painters+ Majong( add both together)   119 115 107

Tours 0 0 18

Total Free Services Attendance 737 707 497

OUTREACH& VOLUNTEER

Volunteers( total number)     4 5 4

Volunteer Hours 1 11 7. 75

Offsite Outreach Attendance 359 42 16

Offsite Outreach Number of Events 2 4 2

ATTENDANCEPAIDSERVICES-

Family Workshops 0 0 1 0

Youth Classes 13 349 1 11

Adult Classes 88 164 66

Messy Mornings 49 77 65

Camps 0 38 0

Birthday Parties 0 0 0

Rentals 65 43 44

Ceramics Lab 24 18 37

Total Paid Services Attendance 239 689 223

MEMBERSHIPS

Total Friends Memberships 278 280 12

New/ Renewed this month 5 6     ;$

6450Total Revenue from New Memberships 235

425E-News Subscriptions 1, 085 1, 094

Newsletter click throughs 70 48 48

Facebook Followers 3, 439 3, 456 31468

Instagram Followers 1, 178 1, 193 1, 200

Web views 892 1, 063 843

OF .

Newspaper article 1 1 1

Radio interviews 1 2 3

Press Releases 0 0 0

Social Media Paid ads 1 3 2

2

21

71

Item 7.



ENGINEERING DIVISION

Type Project No. Project Description Status Budget ContractorlDeveloper'

Alley/ Storm Water RC- 000- 3298 2023 Alley Reconstruction Reconstruction Final Out Remains     $ 256. 640.00 Veith

Bridge BR- 106- 3215 Olive Street Box Culvert Box Culvert Active 1. 160. 000 PCI

Flood FL- 033- 3088 Cedar River Safety& Recreation Recreation Active S6. 300, 000 PCI

Sanitary SA- 002- 3182 Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Sanitary Sewer Active 800. 000 PCI

Sidewalk RT- 000- 3217 2021 CDBG INFILLS Sidewalks& Trails Final Out Remains      $ 181, 492 OEL

Sidewalk SW- 000- 3301 2023 Sidewalk Assessment Sidewalks& Trails Final Out Remains TBD Boulder

Sidewalk SW- 000- 3217 Union Road Trail Sidewalks& Trails Final Out Remains      $ 510. 299 Lodge

Sidewalk SW- 000- 3293 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Sidewalks& Trails Final Out 49. 143. 69 Iowa Flatworks

Storm Water ST- 115- 3147 University Ave Biocell Storm Water Punch List Remains     $ 108. 647 Benton' s Sand and Gravel

Streets RC- 000- 3272 2021 Street Construction Street Repair Completed       $ 4.030. 000. 00 PCI

Streets RC- 000- 3230 2022 Street Construction Street Repair Completed S3, 266. 000.00 PCI

Streets SC- 000- 3311 2023 Seal Coat Resudacing Final Out 200.000 Blacktop Services

Streets RC- 000- 3299 2023 Street Construction Reconstruction Active 2. 664. 000. 00 PCI

Streets CP- 197- 3244 Ashworth Drive Extension New Construction Active 1. 249. 087. 31 Dave Schmitt

Streets RC- 092- 3271 Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase 1A Reconstruction Active 3,400, 000 Dave Schmitt

Streets RC- 000- 3171 Cedar Heights Drive Recon.       Street Repair Punch List Remains     $ 6.000, 000 PCI

Streets RC- 000- 3242 Downtown Street- Scape& Reconstruction Phase It Reconstruction Punch List Remains     $ 2. 450. 000 Owen

Streets RC- 173- 3228 Greenhill Rd& S Main Intersection Improvements Reconstruction Punch List Remains     $ 3,400. 000 PCI

Streets RC- 000- 3283 Main Street Reconstruction Reconstruction Active 29, 900, 000. 00 PCI

Streets RC-000- 1963 W. let Street Reconstruction Reconstruction Final Out Remains     $ 6.500. 000 PCI

Sneeze RC- 362- 3212 W. Viking Road Recon Reconstruction ROW& Final Design TBD TBD

Streets RC- 000- 3240 27th Street Improvements Reconstruction Active TBD PCI

Streets MC-000- 3206 Center Street Street Scape Recon Punch List Remains TBD Owen

Subdivision SU- 364- 3189 W. Viking Industrial Park New Construction Punch List Remains     $ 8, 700. 000 PCI

22

72

Item 7.



ENGINEERING DIVISION

Contractor/

Project No, Project Title Description Status Budget Developer

SU- 000- 3212 Arbors Fifth Addition New Subdivision Construction Plan Review      -------- Skogman/ CGA

SU- 000- 3219 Hidden Pines New Subdivision Construction Plan Review      ---------      LGC/ Fehr Graham

SU- 442- 3165 Autumn Ridge 10th Addition New Subdivision Construction Underway       ---------       BNKD Inc./ CGA

SU- 385- 3258 West Fork Crossings New Subdivision Construction Underway       ---------    ISG

SU- 217-3193 Western Homes 10th Addition New Subdivision Construction Underway       ---------   Claassen/ Western Homes

SU- 330-3151 Arbors Fourth Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Skogman/ CGA

SU- 445- 3021 Greenhill Village Estates New Subdivision Maintenance Bond
Nelson Construction&

Development

SU- 379- 3207 Pheasant Hollow 7th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond CGA

SU- 168-3187 Prairie Winds 5th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond
Brian

WingertCGA
SU- 413- 3199

Terraces at West Glen, New Aldea
New Subdivision Maintenance Bond New Aldea/ Fehr Graham

West Campus, 1st Addition

SU- 413-3199
Terraces at West Glen, New Aldea

New Subdivision Maintenance Bond New Aldea/ Fehr Graham
West Campus, 2nd Addition

SU- 217-3193 Western Homes 9th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond Claassen/ Western Homes

SU- 454- 3257 Wild Horse 5th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond CGA

SU- 454-3257 Wild Horse 6th Addition New Subdivision Maintenance Bond CGA

SU- 440. 3239 Autumn Ridge 9th Addition New Subdivision Preliminary Plat CGA

SU- 184- 3160
Greenhill Village

New Subdivision Preliminary Plat Panther Farms/ CGA
Townhomesll

Panther Farms/ Brewer
TBD Panther West New Subdivision Preliminary Plat

Engineering

23

73

Item 7.



ENGINEERING DIVISION

Detention
Project

Project Description SWPPP Status Calcs Developer/ Engineer
Status

Status

ATS Addition 712 LeClair S1 Approved Approved Owner/ Fehr Graham Active

Bethany Bible Church Rownd Street Approved Approved OwnerNJ Active

Casey' s General Store 1612 W 1st St Approved Approved Casey' s/ CDA Active

CF Storage LLC 2811 Technology Parkway Approved Approved Owner/ Synder Active

Clay Street Cottages Clay/ 9th St Approved Wingert Active

Community United Child Care Nordic Drive Approved Approved Owner Active

Creekside Condos Cedar HeightsNalley High Approved Approved Larson/ Fehr Graham Active

D& D Midwest Investments 5630 Westminster Drive Approved Approved Owner/ JV Active

High School W 27th Street Approved Approved City of Cedar Falls/ AECOM Active

Levi Architecture 3228 Cedar Heights Dr Approved Owner Active

Midway Drive Storage Units 3717 Midway Drive Approved OwnerNJ Active

Oak Park Assisted Living II Greenhill Circle Approved Owner Active

Pinncle Prairie Senior Living Prairie Parkway Approved Approved Nelson/ Axiom Active

Simple Mining 2715 Technology Parkway Approved Approved Owner/ Brewer Civil Active

Stickfort Electric Addition 201 E 22nd Street Approved Owner Active

Triplex on Lot 4( Hanna Park)  Valley High Drive Approved Approved Larson/ CGA Active

B& D Distribution Warehouse West Viking Industrial Park Approved Owner/ Snyder Pending

Popeyes Brandilynn Boulevard Approved Owner Pending

Retail on Brandilynn 703 Brandilynn Boulveard Approved Owner Pending

918 Viking Road 918 Viking Road Approved Dahlstrom Complete

Cove at Spruce Hills Spruce Hills Dr Approved Owner/Snyder Complete

McWing Storage Units 3015/ 3035 Capital Way Approved Approved Owner Complete

Veridian Credit Union Brandilynn Boulevard Approved Owner Complete

24

74

Item 7.



Department of Public Works

Operations and Maintenance Division

Monthly Report for November 2023

Streets Section:

Fall leaf sweeping took place during the month utilizing two sweeping units.
Repaired erosion issue on Union Rd near the Fieldstone Addition

Permanent repairs of three ( 3) utility repair cuts were performed.

Additional snow and ice control training took place for newer staff.
Staff responded to a snow event that occurred on November 26tn

Traffic Operations:

157 traffic control signs and labels were repaired or replaced

29 signal repairs were conducted throughout the month

Repaired large monument light on University Ave & Main roundabout

Installed battery back up on 58 & Waterloo Rd signal

Responded to three ( 3) outdoor emergency siren failures

Fleet Maintenance:

986 transactions were recorded through the City' s fuel dispensing sites

Used 13, 033 gallons of fuel 5, 582 ethanol, 7, 451 diesel)

141 work orders were processed through the fleet section for the month
Procured new equipment for snow and ice control

Public Buildings:

Completed various repairs and maintenance throughout public buildings.
Upgraded Visitors & Tourism lobby lights to energy efficient LED lights
Worked on multiple issues with HVAC units throughout public buildings

Parks:

Tree trimming and hazard tree removal took place throughout the month
Stump grinding on City ROW was performed

Completed winterization of parks and irrigation systems

Performed routine park inspection and maintenance, including trail repairs and sweeping.

Cemetery:

Performed eleven ( 11) interments; Four ( 4) at Greenwood Cemetery, five ( 5) at Fairview

Cemetery and two ( 2) at Hillside

Spaces sold; Five ( 5) at Greenwood Cemetery, nine ( 9) at Fairview Cemetery and two ( 2) at
Hillside cemetery

Refuse:

686 tons of residential solid waste was collected. 512 three- yard container dumps were
recorded. Crews responded to 88 residential bulk item collections

Crews collected 141 tons of yard waste from curbside collection, 4, 674 carts were serviced
The Transfer Station hauled 72 loads of solid waste to the Black Hawk County Landfill totaling
1, 097 tons.

A total of 92 tons of household recyclable material was collected for the month.

63. 5 tons of e- waste, scrap metal, tires and appliances were diverted from the waste stream and
recycled.

25
75

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

WATER RECLAMATION / SEWER DIVISION

MONTHLY REPORT - NOVEMBER 2023

PLANT OPERATIONS

Water Reclamation Facility performance was very good for the month. All permit effluent
requirements were met, and flows continue to be extremely low, with a 3. 25 million gallons per
day ( MGD) average, below last year' s average flow of 3. 92 MGD and the five- year average flow
of 5. 77 MGD. These low flows are due to below average rainfall, leading to low inflow and
infiltration.

PROJECTS

The UV Disinfection system was shut down on November 29th. This system is required be
operational from March 151h through November 15th. This downtime will allow WRF staff to

perform maintenance and repair work in preparation for the next spring' s startup.

Start- up of the new cutting equipment was completed at the Cedar Heights Lift Station. This
project started in the Fall of 2022 when the previous equipment failed. The new cutter was
ordered last winter, was installed in September and new electrical was installed. This new

equipment protects pumps from clogging. For most of the past year, WRF staff have been
cleaning a manual bar screen while we waited for this automated equipment to be manufactured
and installed.

Annual whole effluent toxicity testing was conducted on November 271h. This annual test
required by the Department of Natural Resources involves a series of biological tests designed
to detect trace levels of toxic chemicals and check their impact on representative species of

aquatic organisms. Results are yet to be received.

BIOSOLIDS

We were able to haul 68,000 gallons of liquid biosolids to local farm fields and another 240,000
gallons were dried through our dewatering system, and put into storage.

WRF staff completed the process of applying these dewatered Biosolids to the Sartori Farm
Fields. This is a labor-intensive process, transporting a years' worth of materials to the field for
application. This task takes 3- 5 staff members 2- 3 weeks to complete.

1. 2 tons of inorganic material were hauled to the landfill for disposal.

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM CALLS & SERVICES

We received 346 sewer locate requests from the Iowa One Call system, 61 of which required

field locating by WRF staff.

We received six residential sewer problem calls. Five were issues with private plumbing, while
one was a plugged sewer main. The plug was relieved, the DNR notified and the area was
cleaned up as required.

26

76

Item 7.



There was one after hour emergency calls for lift station issues which was quickly resolved.

We cleaned a total of 9, 917 feet ( 1. 9 miles) of sanitary sewer lines, more than last year' s 0. 22
miles, and above the five- year average of 1. 0 miles. This brings our total for the year to 44. 9
miles.

WRF staff also televised 1. 5 miles of sanitary sewer lines. This is more than last year' s 0. 1 miles
and above the five- year average of 0. 13 miles. This brings the total for the year to 11. 1 miles.

INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT

Pretreatment inspections were conducted at The University of Northern Iowa Power Plant and
Viking Pump. Both facilities were found to be in compliance.

The Tri- ennial survey is still underway.

STAFF AND TRAINING

Joe Tegtmeier was promoted to WWTP Operator 1, filling a vacancy left due to a recent
retirement. This promotion leaves a vacancy at Maintenance Worker which we will begin the
process to fill.

Maintenance Worker Jay Dietz passed the Operator I test, earning his Wastewater Operator I
Certification from the State of Iowa.

Seasonal Laborer, Jon Taiber completed his six- month tenure with the WRF. He may return in
the Spring of 2024.

27

77

Item 7.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

MONTHLY REPORT

NOVEMBER 2023

CEDAR FALLS POLICE 500

Police Statistics First Shift Second Shift Third Shift Total 400

Calls for Service 283 396 175 854 300

Traffic Stops 69 190 228 487
200

Arrests 13 13 26 52

Accidents 37 65 6 108
soo

CEDAR FALLS FIRE
Police Calls for Service

Fire Calls For Service Statistics

Fire 5
Fire Calls For Service

Rescue/ Medical 116 Fire

Service Call 6 Rescue/ Medical

Good Intent 17 Service Call

False Alarm/ Call 22 Good Intent

Special Incident 0 False Alarm

Hazardous Condition/ Spec 12 Hazard

Business Occupancy Inspections 58 Special Incident

Rental/ Residentiallnspections 62 Business Inspections

Rental Inspections

POLICE CALLS FOR SERVICE

Type of Incident( Monthly)       
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

23     ` 23     ' 23     ' 23     ' 23      ' 23     ' 23     ` 23     ' 23     ` 23     ` 23     ' 23

Group A Serious Crimes 106 93 133 117 120 129 99 117 88 93 85

Group B Other Crimes 60 82 89 84 70 69 84 74 82 55 52

Traffic Accidents 117 91 76 74 93 91 75 93 100 106 116

Other Calls 1470 1486 1874 1753 1341 1350 1552 1 1455 1634 1546 1210

CFS Totals 1753 1752 2172 2028 1624 1639 1810 1 1739 1904 1800 1463

Type of Incident( per
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

ear

Group A Serious
1468 1469 1702 1467 1437 1407 1681 1548

Crimes

Group B Other Crimes 674 579 613 683 661 565 745 741

Traffic Accidents 734 790 720 774 613 228 1030 1231

Other Calls 13, 828 12, 573 13, 244 13, 936 14, 819 14, 590 15, 856 16, 631

CFS Totals 16, 704 15, 411 16. 279 16. 860 17, 530 167790 19, 312 19, 917

FIRE RESCUE CALLS FOR SERVICE

Type of Incident    ( Monthly)      
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

23     ' 23     ` 23     ` 23     ` 23     ' 23     ` 23     ' 23     ' 23     ' 23     ' 23     ' 23

Medical & Rescue 119 110 124 120 133 108 143 153 126 128 116

Cancelled, False Alarms,       
36 28 40 40 55 44 59 45 47 46 39

Good Intent

Fire, Heat, Hazard, Weather
23 17 22 17 36 32 24 24 36 35 23

Related & Other

Totals 178 155 186 177 224 184 226 1 222 209 209 178

Type of Incident( per ear 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Non- Medical CFS 840 911 900 772 841 783 758 917

Rescue/ EMS Related 1367 1570 1437 1022 1272 1328 1541 1509

Totals 2207 2481 2337 1794 2113 2111 2299 2426

28

78

Item 7.



POLICE STATISTICS:     NOV 2023 Total 2023

Group A Crimes
Murder/ NonNeg Manslaughter 0 0

Kidnapping/ Abduction 0 2

Forcible Rape/ Sodomy/ Fondling 0 32

Robbery 0 1

Assault 9 219

Arson 2 3

Extortion/ Blackmail 0 6

Bur la  / B& E 3 111

Theft 30 463

Motor Vehicle Theft 2 29

Counterfeit/ ForgeryCounterfeit/ Forgery 0 24

Fraud 9 276

Embezzlement 0 0

Stolen Property 1 7

Vandalism 18 135

Drug Offenses 16 125

Incest 0 1

Porno/ Obscene Material 0 4

Op/ Pro/ Asst. Gambling 0 3

Weapon Law Violation 3 9

Group B Crimes
Disorderly Conduct 4 40

Driving Under Influence 14 236

Drunkenness 3 113

Non- Violent Family Offense 0 4

Liquor Law Violation 0 4

Runaway 0 12

Trespassing 1 24

All Other Offenses 30 373

Group A Total:     85 1308

Group B Total:     52 806

Total Reported Crimes: 137 2114

Traffic Accidents

Fatality 0 1

Personal Injury 15 137

Hit and Run 28 198

Property Damage 73 724

Total reported Accidents 116 1060

Calls for Service 1463 19687

Total Arrests 64 863

29

79

Item 7.



Cedar Falls Public Safety
Grid Map

Fiwohror0

Outside City Limits

F: 8P: 1

Non Specified

F: 5 P: 7

ri ; J Parks

s F: 1 P: 4

i

F: I
F: 3 F: 3

P: 17
P: 10 P: 12

F: 1 1 0 F: F: 1

P: 15 1 P. 11 P: 24

Baw De
F: 1 d,. F:   i

Qfty
P: 10 P: 29..  ..    t

F: 13
F: 9 P: 98 I

P:81P:77
F: 0

F: 4 3 s P: 771F_Ptedar

q 12 l F 5'   
r

F: 3
14    : 41 1 P 53 P: 8

P: 18

F: 4 E-   F: 8
F: 0 F 6

r} 6

1 P: z
P: 5 P. 17 P 57 F: 9

F: 9
P: 68

P: 44

F: 2       
P. 51 F. 8 P.

P: 66
F: 0 P: 12 F: 13

P. 1
F'

f/      F: 4
P: 73

P: 38 P: 52

r

F: 5 F: 5 F: 30 F: 5 i
P: 19 P: 52 P: 122 FP:13

I

F. 1

F: 3 F: 14 F: 2
P: 2

P: 22 P: 56 P: 43

30
80

Item 7.



i

Cedar Falls Public Safety Experience Survey
NOVEMBER 2023)

Cancelled, False

Alarms, Good

Intent

2%

Fire, Heat, Hazard,

Weather Related
Medical 1%

7%

Reportable Crimes

8%

Nan- Reportable

Crimes, Alcohol,  Traffic Accidents

Parking,    and Stops

Disorderly, All 34%

Other

48%

i
i
i

FIRE POLICE

31

81

Item 7.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Laudick and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  December 21, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

b) Wild Hare American Bar and Grill, 2512 Whitetail Drive, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

 

82

Item 8.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 25 

  
 

CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY20254 
Adopted January 2, 2024January 3, 2023 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

 

MISSION OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 

Continuously improve the safety and desirability of Cedar Falls through efficient delivery of public 
services, with open communication between Citizens, Council, Mayor, and City Staff.   

SHORT TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 

A. FY20254 Budget Policies. 

1). Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for 
controllable costs. 

2). City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF debt 
annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within the TIF 
Districts to better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF release 
funds from expired TIFs to economic development fund to cash-flow economic 
development projects.   

3). Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures or 
non-reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4). Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually during the annual 
budget process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the next fiscal year unless they are 
emergency in nature. Financial aid will only be provided if there is not financial hardship on 
City offered essential services and the services proposed are not duplicated. 

5). Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the Vice President 
of Administration and Finance once annually. This process ensures that all UNI projects or 
programs seeking City financial aid have been approved by UNI management and 
prioritized. 

6). All outside agencies seeking City financial support shall submit formal applications for 
review by a committee of staff members with recommendations forwarded to the Mayor 
and City Council; considerations for approval shall include timely reporting, performance, 
public benefit, funding options and service priority. 

7). Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a 
restricted account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

c. The City will continue to fully fundnot un-fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these 
include severance, payroll, liability insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, 

83

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 25 

  
 

workmen's compensation, long-term disability, and all pensions. 

8). Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by Council. 

9). Explore the use of State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General Fund 
experiences financial limitations. 

10).The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income 
generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal equal 
to the rate of inflation in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating a 
development agreement for a new hospital or a health care provider.  

11).Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay the 
required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall be used 
for operating purposes. 

12).Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use 
limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13).Consider adding General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to 
better landscape public roadways. 

14).Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set aside to 
pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users contributing 
(examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, Beach House, 
Big Woods Campground, and golf courses). 

15).The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the 
General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be set 
aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16).Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by law or 
policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 

17).Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community Foundation Trust 
accounts to support select programs, operations and capital needs. 

18).TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District will 
be allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for City TIF 
debt payments. 

19).Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association.  

20).Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment, health insurance fund support, or other one-time allocations approved by 
the City Council. 

84

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 25 

  
 

 

B. FY20254 Budget Contingency Policies. 

1). Prioritize all city services if budget reductions are required; this will allow for the most cost-
effective use of Federal Aid to pay eligible ‘essential’ service operating expenses as, if the 
operating expenses are not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  

2). Reduce City financial aid to outside agencies if funding shortfalls risk damaging the 
provision of essential services; annually notify agencies if funding reductions are 
anticipated for the next fiscal year. 

C. FY20254 Cash Reserves Policy. 

1). 1.The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by Council 
to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  
 

Fund Type Percent Minimum Absolute Minimum 

General Fund 15-25%1 Not specified 

Refuse Fund 20-30% $500,000 

Sewer Fund 65-75% $1,500,000 

Street Fund 20-30% $1,000,000 

Storm Water Fund 10-20% $200,000 

Emergency Reserve Fund N/A $1,500,000 - $2,000,000 

 

D. FY20254 Revenues Policy. 

1). Description. The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the 
departments for their specific areas. Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed 
judgments on all revenues City-wide. Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date amounts 
are used to project both the current year and next year's revenues. Information received 
from the State, County, and Iowa League of Cities is utilized to project revenue trends and 
anticipated amounts. 

2). Approval. Finance will use conservative interest rate projections, current balances and 
interest accrual information, projects interest earnings. The Mayor and City Administrator 
will review revenues, expenditures and ending fund balances to determine if any revenue 
adjustments need to be made. 

 

1 The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% and 
preferably at the 20-25% level, allowing for the seasonal cash flows. Work towards closer to 25%. 

85

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 25 

  
 

3). Revenue Source Policies.  

a. Property Taxes. The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the general 
tax levy does not exceed limits established by State law. 

b. Debt Service Levy. Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the 
amount equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, 
minus the portion paid by the enterprise funds and CFU. 

c. Tort Liability Levy. The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability 
insurance policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

d. Employee Benefits Levy. The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension 
and retirement systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently 
employed sworn officers. The City’s share of contributions for employee benefits 
budgeted under the General Fund only if the general tax levy is at the $8.10 maximum. 
Employee benefits levy tax revenues will be receipted into the Trust and Agency Fund 
and then transferred into the General Fund. 

e. Emergency Management Levy. Levy for all dispatch, 911 and emergency operation 
costs assigned to the City of Cedar Falls. 

f. Transit Levy. Transit levy taxes shall not exceed the 95-cent limit established by State 
law. Transit levy tax revenues will be receipted into the General Fund. 

g. Band Levy. Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit 
established by State law. Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted into the 
General Fund. 

h. Library Levy. Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit 
established by state law. Library levy tax revenues shall support the library. 
Approximately 50% of the levy will be used for new materials and services and 
approximately 50% will be used to lower general fund support to the library. 

i. Sales Tax. The City collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. The revenues 
and expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund. 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income 
generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism 
Division. The other 50% is devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and 
recreational/cultural facilities. 

k. Fees and Charges. The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with 
revenue bond requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing 
the services. Fees and charges shall be reviewed at least biennially.   

l. Investments. The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible 
return on all cash investments within the limits of the State law. 

86

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 25 

  
 

m. Intergovernmental Revenue. Revenues from local, State and Federal governments will 
be used according to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

n. Additional Revenue Sources. The City will continue searching for additional revenues 
to maintain a balanced budget. 

E. FY20254 Expenditures Policies. 

1). Current Service Level: Funding will be prioritized to maintain current service levels. 

2). Cost Effective Programs: Technology and capital investment programs will be leveraged to 
reduce operating expenses whenever cost-effective. 

3). Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will maintain the scheduled level of maintenance 
and replacement for City infrastructure and equipment. 

4). Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in 
accordance with the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution2.  

5). Reductions: The City will attempt to avoid service reductions when balancing the budget. 
First consideration will be given to alternatives which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts in 
service, and establish user fees. Parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no essential 
service be eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure remain intact, and 
(3) reductions will first be made in internal functions. 

F. FY20254 Long Term Debt Policies. 

1). Purpose of Debt: Debt will be used to fund the design, inspection and construction of capital 
improvement projects, rather than for annual operating expenses. 

2). Debt Limit: The total GO debt will not exceed 5% of total assessed real property value.  

3). Debt Issuance: New debt issuance shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Existing debt 
should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs, whenever possible. 

4). Self-Financing: Self-financing or cash (where allowed) will be used to fund one-time 
projects if excess cash reserves exist. 

G. FY20254 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

1). Description. The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does 
not authorize or fund projects. The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the capital 

 
2 City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, “Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used for 
property tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa during each 
fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or replacement of existing 
streets, curbs, structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within the corporate limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for the present funding levels, as authorized by the City Council of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

87

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 25 

  
 

projects program.  

2). Approvals. The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business Operations Department for 
review by the Department Directors, City Administrator, Mayor, and Planning and Zoning 
Commission; the CIP is then submitted to the City Council for approval.  

3). The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with the adopted CIP. The City 
will develop and annually update a multi-year plan for capital improvements.  

4). The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital improvement 
plan. Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in population, changes in real 
estate development, or changes in economic base will be calculated and included in capital 
budget projections. 

5). The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with development 
of the operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital improvement 
will be projected and included in operating budget forecasts.  

6). The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital improvements 
consistent with the CIP and City priorities and where operating and maintenance costs 
have been included in operating budget forecasts. 

7). The City will maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital investment 
and to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

8). The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next several 
years and will update this projection each year in order to implement a maintenance and 
replacement schedule. 

9). The City will not finance equipment or projects with a projected life span less than a bond’s 
maturity through the sale of GO bonds. 

10).The City will not finance ongoing operating expenses with GO or revenue bonds. 

11).The CIP will incorporate the least costly financing method for all new projects.  

12).The City will maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City managed” 
infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add them to the CIP when 
cost effective (if consistent with long-range growth plans). 

13).The CIP will incorporate a debt management strategy emphasizing the protection of at 
least 25-30% of the City's debt capacity.  

14).The City will develop a plan addressing competing projects, priorities and timing to meet 
this objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning & Zoning Commission to ensure 
that projects are timely, unduplicated and supportive of long-range plans. 

15).The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level, which typically ranges 
from $3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year; CFU uses the City’s bank qualified 

88

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 25 

  
 

financing capacity in off bond sale years. 

a. In FY243, the City will budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 

b. The City will use emergency reserve funds for projects identified in the CIP, with a 
balance of $1.5-2 million for emergencies. 

16).The City will incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and financially 
feasible and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning and design of 
all capital projects. 

17).The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for new recreation & quality 
of life projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to 
be executed prior to the project bid letting.  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

1. GOAL #1: Foster Organizational Excellence. Select, train, motivate and retain highly qualified 
employees who represent the city in a professional manner. 

A. Supporting Policies. 

1).  Ensure that employee wages and benefits are competitive with other municipalities in the 
state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

2). Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and staff. 

3). Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with respect. 

4). Encourage and management and supervisory employees to be creative and innovative in 
the delivery of city services. 

5). Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

6). Conduct employee survey annually beginning in 2025.every two years.  
B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

2). Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
superior staff performance and encourage the retention of high performers.  

3). Expand cross-training programs to improve service without increasing staffing. 

4). Seek methods to reduce employee health insurance costs by altering benefits, seeking 
greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of employee health 
service delivery. 

C. FY20254 Detailed Objectives. 

89

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 25 

  
 

1). Review results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate assessment / 
employee satisfaction survey to improve human resources management and employee 
relations. 

2). Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

3). Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating vacant positions. 

4). Maintain multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

5). Implement and maintain updates to the Comprehensive Pay Plan (CFD 2502.18). 

6). Continue to fund the City’s employee educational assistance program (CFD 2254). 

6).7).Continue to fund the City’s employee assistance program (CFD 2252).  
8). Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program (CFD 2257) and continue to offer 

incentives for participation.  

7).9).Encourage employees to participate in the employee DEI committee.  

8). Update the staffing plan to address employment attrition, retirements and the use of PT, 
PSOs, POCs, Police Reservists, volunteers or other cross-training programs to respond to 
long-term staffing needs. 

9).10).Develop a review Continue to use a standard review tool to annually evaluate the 
performance of the City Administrator.  

 

2. GOAL #2: Deliver Responsible Local Government. Provide a representative system which 
identifies and anticipates concerns, problems, and opportunities which are effectively addressed 
with thoughtful and decisive governmental actions for the benefit of citizens. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Provide broad direction to the City Administrator, who in turn formulates management 
decisions to provide efficient service offerings and operations. 

2). As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to City 
staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

3). Continue to provide a forum for active public engagement related to City actions through 
open public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces and broadcast 
media. 

4). Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens to 
inform them of City activities and accomplishments. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

90

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 25 

  
 

1). Continue to hold annual meetings with CFU to discuss the impacts and strategies to deal 
with the on-going transfer of Utility funds in lieu of property taxes, franchise taxes, use of 
right-of-way, TIF reimbursement, and support of entrepreneurship.  

2). Hold joint meetings with policy-making City boards such as the Library Board and the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 

3). Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black Hawk 
County Supervisors, Cedar Falls Community School District and the University of Northern 
Iowa on matters of mutual interest. 

4). Encourage the professional development of City Council members, city commissioners and 
board members through staff-facilitated work sessions, training sessions, the Iowa League 
of Cities annual conference, the Municipal Leadership Academy, and innovative project 
presentations from other cities. 

5). Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black Hawk County, 
and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public services at lower cost; 
examples include art & culture services, airport operations, public safety services, transit 
systems, economic development coordination, emergency response, sewer infrastructure, 
and shared facilities / equipment. 

6). Continue working with the Metropolitan Transit Authority and exploring other transportation 
options which meet the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-dependent residents at an 
affordable cost to the city.  

7). Continue to support the development of a five-year Community-Wide Strategic Plan (CFD 
4005) to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many stakeholders, including a 
new plan for 2025-2030. 

8). Continue using the city’s quarterly Currents newsletter, websites, cable television, social 
media and other technologies to provide relevant information about City services, activities, 
and schedules to residents. 

9). Continue expanding the Communication Specialist role and centralize efforts with other 
departments to facilitate increased communications with the public about all aspects of city 
government. 

10).Maintain an online index of major city plans, policies, and documents for reference. 

11).Continue to expand the City’s online services to take advantage of the prevalence of 
smartphones & other mobile devices in our community, while also ensuring that the less 
digitally advantaged can fully access city services.   

12).Continue to implement the Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the IDNR to update 
the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

C. FY20254 Detailed Objectives. 

91

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 25 

  
 

1). City of Waterloo Objectives. 

a. Maintain mutual aid agreements with Waterloo for faster emergency response times 
and lower callback expenses for both cities.  

b. Support coordination with Waterloo directly and through the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG) on common legislative goals.  

2). University of Northern Iowa Objectives. 

a. Continue to collaborate with UNI to address public safety, parking, College Hill 
neighborhood, equitable payment for City services, sharing of facilities and elimination 
of duplicated governmental services. 

b. Continue to explore the viability of shared service contracts with UNI for policing, fire 
protection, dispatch, street maintenance, utilities, and recreational facility development 
and usage. 

c. Continue to coordinate the development of new City open field recreational uses with 
UNI to minimize the purchase of additional land; this approach will allow City funds to 
be used for site development. 

d. Engage with Iowa Workforce Development and UNI, Cedar Falls Economic 
Development Corporation, Grow Cedar Valley, and other relevant entities to explore 
opportunities to retain recent UNI graduates in Cedar Falls. 

e. Continue to provide paid internships to UNI students as a means to promote civic 
engagement. 

3). Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) Objectives. 

a. Assist CFCSD with infrastructure improvements that create parking areas, joint 
City/Schools playgrounds, and building expansion areas. 

b. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic near public schools in 
accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools Study (CFD 4106.11); examples of such 
design are Orchard Hill Elementary, Southdale Elementary, and Lincoln Elementary.  

c. Continue to cCoordinate with CFCSD to on the completion of the new Cedar Falls High 
School; identify local, county and state facilities, programs and property which can 
minimize duplication of services. 

d. Continue to engage directly with High School student groups to introduce students to 
civic engagement (e.g. CAPS program). 

e.d.Build collaboration between CFCSD and the City to highlight and celebrate the many 
cultures in the community and how they add value to our city.  

f.e. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI. 

92

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 25 

  
 

g.f. Participate in a community-wide equity committee. 

4). Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) Objectives. 

a. Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF revenues exist) for 
CFU projects completed in City TIF districts.  

b. Support CFU in the implementation of water service programs, as CFU is the sole 
governmental entity authorized by code to provide these services.  Reimbursement 
would be subject to CFU maintaining a fair and updated annual transfer that equitably 
compensates the City for return on investment from City ownership, property taxes, 
franchise fees and use of city right-of-way (ROW). 

c. Implement public water special assessment programs (if requested by CFU) to install 
a public water system in un-serviced areas, if requested and financially supported by a 
majority of benefited property owners. Examples include parts of northern Cedar Falls, 
Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and some rural properties. 

d. Use federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding (if eligible) to pay 
for water service line connection for all residents who are income-eligible and property 
taxes to pay for fire hydrant installation; CFU will pay for all water line over-sizing and 
property owners will pay all other expenses, less any other funding sources. 

e. Continue to explore sustainability and resiliency initiatives jointly with CFU. 

5). Community Resiliency Objectives. 
a. Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan.  

b. Continue to evaluate cost effective measures to reduce damages resulting from Cedar 
River flooding.  

c. Continue to support conversion of city buildings to LED lighting, when cost-effective, to 
reduce the City’s electricity demand. 

d. Continue to support the conversion of unused City property to native tallgrass prairie 
(when practical) to reduce storm water runoff, minimize lawn maintenance 
requirements, and provide habitat for wildlife and pollinators. 

e. Continue to support the conversion of select gravel alleys to permeable alleys (when 
funds permit) to reduce gravel erosion and pollution from storm runoff. 

6). Racial Equity and Human Rights Objectives.  

a. Invest in organizational capacity and infrastructure through hiring under Human 
Resources personnel to achieve human rights and equity goals.   

b. Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health Department, Cedar 
Falls Community School District, UNI, and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated 
and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

93

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 25 

  
 

c. Build collaboration with the Cedar Falls Community School District to highlight and 
celebrate different cultures in the community and their value to the city. 

d. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI.  

e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion 
(DEI) subcommittee or determine best approach to establishing a Cedar Falls Equity 
Committee. 

f. Work towards actively building capacity to create public engagement opportunities that 
are welcoming and inclusive.  

7). General Governance Objectives. 

a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City Council, Cedar Falls residents 
and stakeholders of the status of Council priorities, City projects, upcoming activities 
and key information.  

b. Continue to specify in council agenda memos and presentations how a project or topic 
fits into the City Council’s stated goals and priorities. 

c. Maintain a directory of governmental units, neighborhood groups, and other 
stakeholders the City Council would periodically like to meet with to discuss common 
interests.  

d. Maintain an online calendar of civic events of relevance to city elected officials, 
published with as much advance notice as possible to facilitate attendance.  

e. Hold city council committee or work sessions on council meeting Mondays to discuss 
complex or potentially contentious matters. 

 

3. GOAL #3: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness. Equitably deliver services in a 
cost effective, efficient, professional, and timely manner. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Carry out the Short-Term Financial Plan.  

2). Ensure that community health, safety, and welfare are protected through provision of 
essential cost-effective, efficient, professional, and timely public services. 

3). Adopt a balanced budget reflecting the community's economic climate and needs. 

4). Continue to monitor the impacts of the State of Iowa’s roll back of commercial/industrial 
taxable values without long-term guaranteed backfill funding. 

5). Maintain a budget philosophy of self-sufficiency in all major funds. 

94

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 25 

  
 

6). Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

7). Maintain a stable property tax rate relative to the consumer price index. 

8). Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment, health insurance fund support, or other one-time allocations approved by 
the City Council. 

9).8).Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and 
value of each service, and to identify unnecessary duplication within City-sponsored 
programs. 

10).9).Identify and implement cost-effective methods to save energy within City operations. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its growing 
infrastructure. Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a contingency plan to 
respond to any long-term reductions in maintenance funds.  

2). Continue to dedicate future accumulating cash generated by mid-year budget reductions 
for one-time future expenses such as capital projects. 

3). Continue to dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future economic 
development projects.  

4). Continue to explore appropriate opportunities for privatization of city services. 

5). Continue the annual street repair program using RUT and LOST revenues.  

6). Ensure that essential services (public safety, parks, sewers, roads, refuse collection) are 
offered, while constantly exploring ways to increase efficiency in delivery. 

7). Encourage civic involvement and volunteerism by citizens to reduce costs, including 
recycling, picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with efficient snowplowing, cleaning 
sidewalks, Friends of the Library, Friends of the Hearst Center, and Police Reservists.  

8). Maintain the appropriate number of alternative staff in police and fire while improving 
services and reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting, if necessary new Police 
Reservists, volunteers, PSOs and POC staff. 

9). Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the County 
Consolidated Communications Center and CJIS. Determine the fair share of costs that 
should be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" system. 

10).Maintain the Police Community Service Officer (CSO) program to help supervisory 
personnel with office duties, allowing supervisors to work closer with the public and provide 

95

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 25 

  
 

direction in the field supervision of down-line employees. 

11).Maintain staffing levels in all departments that reduce overtime by matching staffing levels 
to specific service demands as opposed to predetermined rigid standards. 

12).Return City property to the tax base (when possible) to support revenue generation and 
economic development. 

C. FY20254 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Cost Savings Objectives. 

a. Evaluate cost-effective alternatives to keep City departments staffed and functional. 

b. Continue the review of open positions as they occur. 

c. Continue the practice of succession planning to identify talented internal candidates 
when a vacancy is expected to occur. 

d. Continue to promote cross-training programs and alternative employment practices for 
most effective use of city staff. 

e. Continue to explore the sharing of services with other jurisdictions. 

2). Public Safety Objectives. 

a. Continue to support and provide feedback on the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan for Black Hawk County (CFD 5901.20) and intergovernmental emergency 
response plans. 

b. Continue to evaluate the City’s Public Safety model, ensuring cost effective and efficient 
law enforcement, firefighting, and rescue operations. 

c. Continue to review staffing levels to ensure the most efficient use of Public Safety funds 
and personnel. 

d. Continue using supervisor performance measurement tools to hold first line supervisors 
accountable for daily staffing decisions.  

e. Use the Performance Based (Merit Based) Pay Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
supervisors who successfully respond to workload demands with decisions that 
adequately protect the safety of employees and the public while minimizing overtime 
and callback expenses. 

f. Exercise management rights to schedule full staffing to avoid overtime expenses on 
days where known special public events will tax personnel resources.  

g. Pursue the establishment of a new public safety station along W. 1st Street / Highway 
57.  

96

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 15 of 25 

  
 

h. Expand the reach of the City’s marketing and promotional campaigns regarding policing 
and racial equity efforts, beyond traditional media sources. 

i. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial 
Inspection duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

j. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, 
recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 

j.k. Investigate options for additional on staffing or contracting out for crisis intervention 
services. 

3). Code Enforcement Objectives. 

a. Continue to be proactive in code enforcement activities.  

b. Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better coordinate inspections 
while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, rental housing, and zoning and 
nuisance ordinance violations citywide with cooperative and coordinated actions by the 
City’s departments. 

c. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce property 
maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building, and nuisances. 

d. Enforce 48-hour parking laws in response to snow events, citizen complaints, habitual 
violations, and when public safety is compromised. 

e. Prioritize code enforcement on issues related to health & safety, property maintenance 
and over-crowding or over-occupancy. 

f. Continue rental inspections on a 3-year cycle. 

g. Expand building maintenance code inspections and enforcement city-wide, including in 
the College Hill area. 

h. Continue to coordinate and consolidate federally subsidized rental and minimum rental 
housing inspection duties.  

i. Continue to annually evaluate efficacy of the Landlord Accountability Ordinance. 

j. Implement traffic and parking controls based on public input meetings, test cases, 
sound engineering / best practices, and specific structural or safety limitations (street 
width, density, traffic flow and safety). 

k. Enforce laws prohibiting illegal parking on private property (front yards and non-
conforming lots). 

l. Enforce over-occupancy regulations. 

m. Enforce parking restrictions on all streets less than 31’ in width, based on the need for 

97

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 16 of 25 

  
 

public safety vehicle accessibility. 

4). Yard Waste, Refuse and Transfer Station Objectives. 

a. Determine if yard waste collection programs should be altered or expanded based on 
the efficiency of material collection, customer satisfaction and general cost efficiency. 

b. Evaluate City-operated leaf vacuum collection rates to determine if they are set at levels 
that encourage property owners with small volumes of leaves to compost, mulch or 
utilize ‘City’ container disposal methods; ensure that the rate offers a cost-effective 
option for property owners who must dispose of large volumes of leaves. 

c. Evaluate how the expansion of the hours of operation for the yard waste drop off site 
has impacted revenues and expenditures.  

d. Continue the City’s public relations program to encourage the environmentally safe 
disposal of yard waste. 

e. Continue to review refuse fees, when timely, to ensure that sufficient revenues exist to 
cover all collection costs. 

f. Continue to plan for future relocation of transfer station outside of the floodplain 

5). Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 

a. Review sewer rental fees to ensure that sufficient revenue exists in the next several 
years to pay for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements and other sewer 
projects. 

b. Continue timely review of stormwater fees to determine sufficiency of fees to pay for 
projected storm water costs outlined in the Capital Improvements Program.   

c. Actively enforce Municipal Separate Storm Sewer(MS4) Permit requirements 

6). General Legislative Objectives. 

a. Continue using lobbyists to influence municipally-related legislative action. 

(1) Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent City interests to the 
State legislature. 

(2) Continue membership in the Iowa League of Cities to lobby for all Iowa cities.  

b. Develop and annually update policies to communicate the City’s goals and desires to 
the federal and state legislators.   

c. Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into current legislative 
directions, and to apprise them of the City's revenue generation challenges, as well as 
the negative impact of legislation (including unfunded mandates, tax exempt and 

98

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 17 of 25 

  
 

rollbacks).  

d. Continue pre- and post-legislative session meetings with area representatives to 
discuss topics of mutual interest. 

 

4. GOAL #4: Promote Economic Development. Create an environment conducive to economic 
development for the long-term financial prosperity and growth of the community. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Function as a catalyst to encourage business development/expansion in Cedar Falls. 
a. Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar Falls 

and the metropolitan area. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives 

1). Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development goals 
contained in the city’s Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

2). Implement a long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts. This plan should 
include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing cooperative 
efforts with other groups and agencies. 

3). Continue the systematic and strategic buyout of flood-prone properties to retain viable 
areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation and contiguousness. 

4). Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 
benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture; the analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial assets. 

C. FY20254 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Offer economic development incentives on par with other Iowa cities to remain 
competitive in the site selection process. 

b. Continue to support and develop the city’s economic development website. 

c. Continue to use TIF funds to acquire land for development into marketable industrial 
lots. 

d. Continue to use TIF funds to provide cash incentives to developers and business 
owners when consistent with City economic development policies. 

e. Explore the establishment of a University Avenue Corridor TIF district.  

f. Review downtown incentives (following adoption of new zoning) to consider the 
increase in assessed value and to incentivize enhanced architectural design or public 
benefits.  

99

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 18 of 25 

  
 

g. Continue to provide property tax abatement (based on current schedules) for projects 
meeting adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  

h. Continue to allocate TIF funds for redevelopment projects on College Hill, in Downtown, 
and in northern Cedar Falls.  

i. Continue funding expansion of economic development marketing efforts.  

j. Continue to explore options for city support of expanded day-care options in Cedar 
Falls. 

k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently separated military members 
willing to relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s Home Base Iowa initiative. 

l. Explore the establishment of an incentive policy for residential districts.  
2). Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

a. Continue regional economic development partnership with Grow Cedar Valley. 

b. Monitor economic development cash subsidies (to CMS, CHP, GCV, and CFEDC) to 
determine value to Cedar Falls citizens and businesses.  

c. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 
in advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3). Regional Tourism Objectives. 

a. Continue to maintain a dedicated Cedar Falls Visitors & Tourism Bureau. 

b. Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts between with UNI, and with 
tourism-related organizations throughout the Cedar Valley Cedar Falls and Waterloo 
Visitors and Tourism Bureaus for all Metro tourist events. 

c. Showcase Cedar Falls as premier destination for meetings, conferences, sports and 
business travel in Iowa. 

d. Continuously evaluate and grow the budget for a sponsorship program (modeled after 
competing communities) for offering financial incentives to prospective event 
organizers. 

e. Maintain and enhance Cedar Falls as a preferred destination for leisure travelers. 

f. Encourage the development of new attractions and assets that would enhance Cedar 
Falls as a tourism destination. 

g. Advocate for the construction of a new multi-purpose indoor turf facility to meet the 
increasing demands youth and amateur athletic events and competitions.  

h. Facilitate consistent communications with members of the hospitality industry, 
providing local, statewide and national training opportunities, information and updates. 

100

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 19 of 25 

  
 

 
4). Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 

a. Develop a grading ordinance for all new and existing developments. 

b. Continue to implement the \Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12) with emphasis on: 
(1) Design standards which protect urban watersheds by encouraging developers to 

utilize natural methods of storm water control rather than traditional underground 
storm water collection and disposal systems. 

(2) Clear standards for growth, streets, street connectivity and walkability. 

(3) Low-maintenance landscaping in the city right-of-way, when cost-effective. 

(4) Trails and on-road accommodation of bicyclists, when possible. 

(5) Development of neighborhood traffic program guide 
(i)  TTraffic calming devices and design approaches to address neighborhood 

traffic concerns, when practical. 
(5)  
(6) Revise the Major Thoroughfare Plan. 

(7) Evaluate one-way streets and traffic flow 

5). Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance to update the 
Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970. Consider new zoning and traffic control 
regulations to control density and parking problems by reducing the number of multiple 
family and duplex conversions. 

(1) Continue work on College Hill zoning ordinance. 

(2) Initiate work to develop neighborhood a plan exploring the redevelopment of the old 
High School and the Sartori Hospital sites (and subsequent zoning changes, if 
identified) 

(1)(3)Develop a University Avenue neighborhood plan (and subsequent zoning 
changes, if identified) 

b. Consider changes to zoning regulations to limit the conversion of single-family 
properties to rental uses, to protect neighborhood stability and character. 

c. Consider changes to zoning regulations, policies and land use plans to restrict 
development of non-profit uses on prime commercial sites along arterial streets. 

d. Consider developing a Zoning Ordinance (and Subdivision Ordinance) to 
accommodate features that encourage mixed uses, variable building setbacks, 
walkability, sustainability and complete street concepts. 

101

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 20 of 25 

  
 

e. Support the pre-zoning of select properties for residential development and shorten the 
development timeline by identifying neighborhood concerns and responding with 
developmental limitations. 

f. Annex lands into the city (if requested by property owners) to support community growth 
and development consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

6). Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 
a. Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to residents by: 

(1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as possible, 
given HUD guidance. 

(2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as Community 
Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

(3) Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in every 
neighborhood, e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

(4) Encouraging the Housing Commission to evaluate initiatives to balance 
investments in market rate and low-income housing (e.g., tax abatements, 
forgivable loans, gap payments on rent or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

b. Review City construction standards to identify possible changes which can promote the 
construction of affordable housing. 

c. Identify existing older homes which can provide a market to meet affordable housing 
demand.  

d. Target potential developers with Requests for Proposals for affordable housing 
development, if federal or state grants can be secured.  

e. Partner with Habitat for Humanity to build/rehabilitate homes on city-owned lots.  

f. Consider the results of the Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide 
housing variety to promote housing options for all. 

g. Create educational messaging and outreach for landlords and citizens to emphasize 
the importance of healthy housing for all, along with destigmatizing affordable housing 
options such as Section 8 and Habitat for Humanity builds. 

h. Create a resource database of all federal, state and local programs that can be used to 
foster more homeownership among low- and moderate- income families and 
individuals. 

i. Create an ongoing educational program for low- and moderate-income families to 
access available homeownership assistance programs. 

j. Implement diversity, inclusion and affordability considerations and evaluation in all new 

102

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 21 of 25 

  
 

housing development plans. 

k. Continue the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental properties to owner-
occupied, expanded service area, and more qualifying expenses. 

7). Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the private development of commercial (retail & wholesale), professional office 
and industrial expansions to improve the City’s residential to commercial/industrial land 
use mix from an 80/20 assessed value split to a 50/50 assessed value split. 

b. Implement diagonal on-street parking where feasible and where parking deficiencies 
can be solved with this approach. 

c. Continue development of the city-owned properties along the relocated Highway 20 
corridor and establish a new urban renewal area if appropriate. 

8). College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Carry out the recommendations of the College Hill Parking Study (CFD 1602.19) 
b.a.Continue to enact the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (CFD 1852.12). 

9). Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to support the development of commercial uses in the northeast corner of 
Lone Tree Road/Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road interchange. 

b. Continue to promote the development of commercial growth along Center Street 
through streetscaping and beautification efforts in the ROW. 

10).Downtown Area Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Consider adopting an Urban Revitalization District in the Downtown area, following the 
adoption of new zoning ordinance.  

b. Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in conjunction with a 
feasibility study and continual re-evaluation of paid parking options. 

11).Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Create a new urban renewal area by acquiring additional land in areas that are 
attractive to the private sector for industrial development yet can be efficiently 
developed at a low public cost. 

b. Reserve TIF increment capacity to pay off debt incurred by the City/IDOT cooperative 
construction of US 58 interchanges. 

c. Continue to repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to the City debt service, economic 
development and capital project funds. 

103

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 22 of 25 

  
 

12).Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

a. Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Program: Carry out separation of sanitary sewer and 
stormwater sewer lines from the footing drains when reconstructing streets. 

b. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic systems (i.e. 
South Main Street). 

13).Street Improvement Objectives. 

a. Develop cooperative agreements with State Agencies to improve the following streets 
using Road Use Tax (RUT), Local Option Sales Tax (LOST), and General Obligation 
(GO) bonds, if necessary: 

(1) Main Street Reconstruction – Use LOST, RUT, Stormwater, ARPA, and GO bonds 
to complete this project for construction 2023-2025. 

(2) Greenhill Road/Highway 58 – Use TIFLOST funding as City match to Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s project in FY2027. 

(3) West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2024. 

(4) Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of 
Transportation’s project in FY2024-FY2025.  

(4)(5)West Viking Road Reconstruction – Use TIF and LOST to complete this project 
for construction in 2024-2025 

(5)(6) Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Intersection Improvements – Use TIF, LOST, and 
RUT for construction in FY2024-2025. 

(6)(7)Northern Cedar Heights Area – Use LOST and SCF to complete this project 

b. Explore and establishComplete the street connections per agreements with developers 
to complete the connection of the following streets: 

(1) Arbors Drive -- Aldrich Elementary to Greenhill Road 
(2) Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 
(3) Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

(4) Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

(5) West 27th Street Improvements – Use LOST, RUT, and GO bonds to complete this 
project in FY2022-2024. 

c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road from 27th Street to 
University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to complete this project.  Timing of 
project dependent on receipt of grant funding sources. 

104

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 23 of 25 

  
 

14).Miscellaneous Infrastructure Repairs. 

a. Slope Repairs. Continue to develop plans to address significant slope failure issues. 
Use storm water funds to complete these projects. 

 

5. GOAL #5: Enhance Community Quality of Life. Preserve the community’s physical, human, and 
aesthetic assets by assuring that Quality of Life services are available for leisure, educational, 
cultural and personal enrichment of residents. 

A. Supporting Council Policies.  

1). Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 
features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

2). Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

3). Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City can enhance racial and cultural 
diversity and inclusion in Cedar Falls. 

2). Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs 
and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

C. FY20254 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation. 

2). Continue to use the Recreation & Fitness Center, Operations & Facilities Needs 
Assessment (CFD 8101.18) to determine the viability of expansion. 

3). Implement, when financially feasible, an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Park and Maintenance Development Master Plan 
(CFD 86024102). 

4). Coordinate with the Cedar Falls Community School District to purchase land for future 
parks in developing areas, as appropriate.  

5). Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including dam safety 
improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

6). Continue to implement portions of the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) for the Big Woods 
Lake, Gateway Park and Cedar City sites. 

7). Improve the Big Woods Campground (cabins, campground expansion, playground, and 

105

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 24 of 25 

  
 

landscaping) as funding becomes available and as floodplain development ordinances 
allow. 

8). Develop an annual street right-of-way beautification, wayfinding signage, bike network 
signage, and city entrance signage & monument program using hotel/motel taxes. 

9). Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative roadway designs are 
appropriate based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible; typically, these 
opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction allowing the 
City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, transit, bike and 
vehicular traffic. 

10).Protect areas identified in the Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey (CFD 
4551.07) as city finances allow. 

11).Identify trails most appropriate for winter snow removal and inform the public via an 
annually published Trail and Bus Bench Snow Removal Map (CFD 4403). 

12).Develop a Great American Rail Trail Connection Plan to identify possible improvements, 
wayfinding, and other amenities along the Cedar Falls portion of this cross-country route 

13).Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a new indoor 
community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School. 

14).Encourage private development for an official Independence Day fireworks display.  

15).Continue working with private property owners to remove trees impacted by emerald ash 
borer infestation. 

16).Implement facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

17).Design and develop facility improvements to various City Parks. 

18).Continue pursuit of sister city partnerships and engagement, including in-person visits as 
part of major Iowa delegations. 

19).Implement the Bike Network Plan as funding and construction allows. 

20).Consider potential for new quality of life projects 

a. Eco Loop 

b. Campground/RV Park in Northern Cedar Falls 

c. Trail Connection (behind CFU, contingent upon railroad grant)  

d. Pickleball Courts 

e. Birdsall Park Renovations 

106

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 25 of 25 

  
 

f. Historic Reconnaissance Survey of Overman Park Neighborhood 

21).Consider funding for quality-of-life projects with other entities 

a. Historical Society 

b. UNI Dome Renovations 

c. Additional ask for High School Pool 

d. Cedar Valley Placemaking Project (bridge lighting) 
 

107

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 24 

  
 

CFD 1101: Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2025 
Adopted January 2, 2024, by the Cedar Falls City Council 

 

MISSION OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS: 

Continuously improve the safety and desirability of Cedar Falls through efficient delivery of public 
services, with open communication between Citizens, Council, Mayor, and City Staff.   

SHORT TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 

A. FY2025 Budget Policies. 

1). Limit tax increases to no more than the rate of inflation on residential properties for 
controllable costs. 

2). City staff members are directed to certify the maximum amount of legally incurred TIF debt 
annually by December 1st for all completed City and CFU construction work within the TIF 
Districts to better position the City and CFU financially. Continue to transfer TIF release 
funds from expired TIFs to economic development fund to cash-flow economic 
development projects.   

3). Use State aid (including backfill if provided) only to fund one-time capital expenditures or 
non-reoccurring expenses, rather than for operating expenses. 

4). Requests for aid from any group will only be considered once annually during the annual 
budget process. Mid-year requests will be deferred to the next fiscal year unless they are 
emergency in nature. Financial aid will only be provided if there is not financial hardship on 
City offered essential services and the services proposed are not duplicated. 

5). Applications for City funding support from UNI will only be accepted from the Vice President 
of Administration and Finance once annually. This process ensures that all UNI projects or 
programs seeking City financial aid have been approved by UNI management and 
prioritized. 

6). All outside agencies seeking City financial support shall submit formal applications for 
review by a committee of staff members with recommendations forwarded to the Mayor 
and City Council; considerations for approval shall include timely reporting, performance, 
public benefit, funding options and service priority. 

7). Escrow Fund Policies. 

a. The City will escrow funds annually to pay accrued liabilities.  

b. The City will address annually these commitments by budgeting and depositing in a 
restricted account funds to pay these liabilities when they occur.  

c. The City will continue to fully fund liabilities in escrow accounts; these include 
severance, payroll, liability insurance, vehicle replacement, data processing, 

108

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 24 

  
 

workmen's compensation, long-term disability, and all pensions. 

8). Continue to assess user fees for specific City services at rates approved by Council. 

9). Explore the use of State authorized tax levies for statutory services, if the General Fund 
experiences financial limitations. 

10).The Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund shall only budget expenditure of interest income 
generated by the fund minus an interest income contribution into the fund’s principal equal 
to the rate of inflation in health care. Principal should only be used in negotiating a 
development agreement for a new hospital or a health care provider.  

11).Interest income generated from the 411 Pension reserve fund shall be used to pay the 
required City contribution to annual 411 expenses. No portion of the principal shall be used 
for operating purposes. 

12).Road Use taxes shall only be deposited in the Street Construction fund with their use 
limited to street operations and maintenance purposes. 

13).Consider adding General Fund financial support for annual maintenance expenses to 
better landscape public roadways. 

14).Maintain capital and maintenance reserve accounts generated from user fees set aside to 
pay for future capital repairs or facility replacement of benefit to the users contributing 
(examples include the Recreation Center, Aquatic Center, Hearst Center, Beach House, 
Big Woods Campground, and golf courses). 

15).The CFU transfer made to the City in lieu of property taxes shall be deposited in the 
General Fund to off-set the cost of supplying City services. Transfer funds shall also be set 
aside in a capital account to finance various one-time capital projects. 

16).Maintain liability, work compensation and health insurance reserves as required by law or 
policy to support the City’s self-insurance programs. 

17).Evaluate annually the ability of the Library Board to utilize Community Foundation Trust 
accounts to support select programs, operations and capital needs. 

18).TIF-qualified SSMID funds collected from Downtown and College Hill SSMID District will 
be allocated to Community Main Street and College Hill Partnership rather than for City TIF 
debt payments. 

19).Coordinate and centralize all requests for grants, including the Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association.  

20).Deposit funds in excess of annual operations expenses (including released TIF funds) in a 
capital reserve account for projects, economic development, public land acquisition, 
redevelopment, health insurance fund support, or other one-time allocations approved by 
the City Council. 

109

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 24 

  
 

B. Y2025 Budget Contingency Policies. 

1). Prioritize all city services if budget reductions are required; this will allow for the most cost-
effective use of Federal Aid to pay eligible ‘essential’ service operating expenses as, if the 
operating expenses are not reoccurring or if more efficient staffing can be achieved.  

2). Reduce City financial aid to outside agencies if funding shortfalls risk damaging the 
provision of essential services; annually notify agencies if funding reductions are 
anticipated for the next fiscal year. 

C. FY2025 Cash Reserves Policy. 

1). 1.The City will maintain an unreserved balance at year-end at a level determined by Council 
to meet cash flow requirements, emergency needs, and bond rating criteria.  
 

Fund Type Percent Minimum Absolute Minimum 

General Fund 15-25%1 Not specified 

Refuse Fund 20-30% $500,000 

Sewer Fund 65-75% $1,500,000 

Street Fund 20-30% $1,000,000 

Storm Water Fund 10-20% $200,000 

Emergency Reserve Fund N/A $1,500,000 - $2,000,000 

 

D. FY2025 Revenues Policy. 

1). Description. The revenue projection process starts with estimates submitted by the 
departments for their specific areas. Finance reviews those estimates and makes informed 
judgments on all revenues City-wide. Prior year’s actual and current year-to-date amounts 
are used to project both the current year and next year's revenues. Information received 
from the State, County, and Iowa League of Cities is utilized to project revenue trends and 
anticipated amounts. 

2). Approval. Finance will use conservative interest rate projections, current balances and 
interest accrual information, projects interest earnings. The Mayor and City Administrator 
will review revenues, expenditures and ending fund balances to determine if any revenue 
adjustments need to be made. 

3). Revenue Source Policies.  

a. Property Taxes. The budget of the City of Cedar Falls shall be drawn so that the general 

 

1 The City Council established Resolution 9054 that the General Fund balance be maintained between 15 and 25% and 
preferably at the 20-25% level, allowing for the seasonal cash flows. Work towards closer to 25%. 

110

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 24 

  
 

tax levy does not exceed limits established by State law. 

b. Debt Service Levy. Taxes shall be levied each year under the Debt Service Levy in the 
amount equal to the general obligation principal and interest due in that same year, 
minus the portion paid by the enterprise funds and CFU. 

c. Tort Liability Levy. The City may levy for the expected costs of property and liability 
insurance policies and estimated claims losses held by the City. 

d. Employee Benefits Levy. The City's share of contributions to police and fire pension 
and retirement systems, at rates determined by the State of Iowa, for currently 
employed sworn officers. The City’s share of contributions for employee benefits 
budgeted under the General Fund only if the general tax levy is at the $8.10 maximum. 
Employee benefits levy tax revenues will be receipted into the Trust and Agency Fund 
and then transferred into the General Fund. 

e. Emergency Management Levy. Levy for all dispatch, 911 and emergency operation 
costs assigned to the City of Cedar Falls. 

f. Transit Levy. Transit levy taxes shall not exceed the 95-cent limit established by State 
law. Transit levy tax revenues will be receipted into the General Fund. 

g. Band Levy. Taxes levied under the Band Levy shall not exceed the 13.5-cent limit 
established by State law. Tax revenues from the band levy will be receipted into the 
General Fund. 

h. Library Levy. Taxes levied under the library levy shall not exceed the 27-cent limit 
established by state law. Library levy tax revenues shall support the library. 
Approximately 50% of the levy will be used for new materials and services and 
approximately 50% will be used to lower general fund support to the library. 

i. Sales Tax. The City collects an additional 1% in local option sales tax. The revenues 
and expenditures under this program are recorded in a separate fund. 

j. Hotel/Motel Tax. The City currently has a 7% hotel/motel tax with 50% of the income 
generated by the imposition of the tax being devoted to the Visitors and Tourism 
Division. The other 50% is devoted to programs related to parks, lakes, trails, and 
recreational/cultural facilities. 

k. Fees and Charges. The City will establish fees and charges, in accordance with 
revenue bond requirements or for covering all or part of the related costs of providing 
the services. Fees and charges shall be reviewed at least biennially.   

l. Investments. The City will invest 100% of idle funds and will obtain the best possible 
return on all cash investments within the limits of the State law. 

m. Intergovernmental Revenue. Revenues from local, State and Federal governments will 
be used according to the restrictions or intent placed on each. 

111

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 24 

  
 

n. Additional Revenue Sources. The City will continue searching for additional revenues 
to maintain a balanced budget. 

E. FY2025 Expenditures Policies. 

1). Current Service Level: Funding will be prioritized to maintain current service levels. 

2). Cost Effective Programs: Technology and capital investment programs will be leveraged to 
reduce operating expenses whenever cost-effective. 

3). Infrastructures and Equipment: The City will maintain the scheduled level of maintenance 
and replacement for City infrastructure and equipment. 

4). Local Option Sales Tax: 100% of LOST proceeds will be spent on street repair in 
accordance with the stipulations set by the voters and City Council resolution2.  

5). Reductions: The City will attempt to avoid service reductions when balancing the budget. 
First consideration will be given to alternatives which avoid employee layoffs, resist cuts in 
service, and establish user fees. Parameters for downsizing shall ensure that (1) no essential 
service be eliminated; (2) service with high public visibility and exposure remain intact, and 
(3) reductions will first be made in internal functions. 

F. FY2025 Long Term Debt Policies. 

1). Purpose of Debt: Debt will be used to fund the design, inspection and construction of capital 
improvement projects, rather than for annual operating expenses. 

2). Debt Limit: The total GO debt will not exceed 5% of total assessed real property value.  

3). Debt Issuance: New debt issuance shall not exceed a replacement debt level. Existing debt 
should be refinanced to secure the lowest possible interest costs, whenever possible. 

4). Self-Financing: Self-financing or cash (where allowed) will be used to fund one-time 
projects if excess cash reserves exist. 

G. FY2025 Capital Improvements Program Policies. 

1). Description. The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a planning document and does 
not authorize or fund projects. The projects listed in the CIP are summarized in the capital 
projects program.  

2). Approvals. The CIP is prepared by the Finance & Business Operations Department for 
review by the Department Directors, City Administrator, Mayor, and Planning and Zoning 

 
2 City Council Resolution 15,596 provides that, “Zero percent (0%) of said local sales and services tax is to be used for 
property tax relief. One hundred percent (100%) of the revenue generated in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa during each 
fiscal year from said local sales and services tax is to be allocated for reconstruction, repair or replacement of existing 
streets, curbs, structures, storm sewers and sanitary sewers as they relate to streets within the corporate limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa and not as replacement funds for the present funding levels, as authorized by the City Council of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

112

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 24 

  
 

Commission; the CIP is then submitted to the City Council for approval.  

3). The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with the adopted CIP. The City 
will develop and annually update a multi-year plan for capital improvements.  

4). The City will enact an annual capital budget based on the multi-year capital improvement 
plan. Future capital expenditures necessitated by changes in population, changes in real 
estate development, or changes in economic base will be calculated and included in capital 
budget projections. 

5). The City will coordinate development of the capital improvement budget with development 
of the operating budget. Future operating costs associated with new capital improvement 
will be projected and included in operating budget forecasts.  

6). The City will use intergovernmental assistance to finance only those capital improvements 
consistent with the CIP and City priorities and where operating and maintenance costs 
have been included in operating budget forecasts. 

7). The City will maintain all assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital investment 
and to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. 

8). The City will project its equipment replacement and maintenance needs for the next several 
years and will update this projection each year in order to implement a maintenance and 
replacement schedule. 

9). The City will not finance equipment or projects with a projected life span less than a bond’s 
maturity through the sale of GO bonds. 

10).The City will not finance ongoing operating expenses with GO or revenue bonds. 

11).The CIP will incorporate the least costly financing method for all new projects.  

12).The City will maintain a long-term financial plan to address inadequacies in “City managed” 
infrastructure in unserved areas of the City and progressively add them to the CIP when 
cost effective (if consistent with long-range growth plans). 

13).The CIP will incorporate a debt management strategy emphasizing the protection of at 
least 25-30% of the City's debt capacity.  

14).The City will develop a plan addressing competing projects, priorities and timing to meet 
this objective jointly by soliciting input from the Planning & Zoning Commission to ensure 
that projects are timely, unduplicated and supportive of long-range plans. 

15).The issuance of new debt shall not exceed a replacement debt level, which typically ranges 
from $3.0 - $4.0 million dollars every other year; CFU uses the City’s bank qualified 
financing capacity in off bond sale years. 

a. In FY24, the City will budget for a $3.0 - $4 million dollar GO bond sale. 

113

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 24 

  
 

b. The City will use emergency reserve funds for projects identified in the CIP, with a 
balance of $1.5-2 million for emergencies. 

16).The City will incorporate when timely, properly planned, safely engineered and financially 
feasible and design appropriate street and growth concepts in the planning and design of 
all capital projects. 

17).The city will seek minimum private donation match of 25% of/for new recreation & quality 
of life projects.  Funds shall be escrowed or an agreement with the City Council needs to 
be executed prior to the project bid letting.  

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES: 

1. GOAL #1: Foster Organizational Excellence. Select, train, motivate and retain highly qualified 
employees who represent the city in a professional manner. 

A. Supporting Policies. 

1).  Ensure that employee wages and benefits are competitive with other municipalities in the 
state of Iowa and private enterprise in the metro area. 

2). Maintain clear lines and methods of communication between elected officials and staff. 

3). Treat employees with respect and expect that they, in turn, will treat citizens with respect. 

4). Encourage management and supervisory employees to be creative and innovative in the 
delivery of city services. 

5). Promote continuous quality improvement in all city government operations. 

6). Conduct employee survey annually beginning in 2025.  
B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to monitor the ability to attract and retain quality staff.  

2). Continue to support the Performance Based Pay (Merit Pay) Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
superior staff performance and encourage the retention of high performers.  

3). Expand cross-training programs to improve service without increasing staffing. 

4). Seek methods to reduce employee health insurance costs by altering benefits, seeking 
greater financial contribution from employees and modify methods of employee health 
service delivery. 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Review results and consider policy changes from the workforce climate assessment / 
employee satisfaction survey to improve human resources management and employee 
relations. 

114

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 24 

  
 

2). Continue to evaluate whether to fill an opening or proposed newly created position.  

3). Explore restructuring, merging, or eliminating vacant positions. 

4). Maintain multi-year staffing and succession plans. 

5). Implement and maintain updates to the Comprehensive Pay Plan (CFD 2502.18). 

6). Continue to fund the City’s employee educational assistance program (CFD 2254). 

7). Continue to fund the City’s employee assistance program (CFD 2252).  
8). Encourage employees to use the City’s wellness program (CFD 2257) and continue to offer 

incentives for participation.  

9). Encourage employees to participate in the employee DEI committee.  

10).Continue to use a standard review tool to annually evaluate the performance of the City 
Administrator.  

 

2. GOAL #2: Deliver Responsible Local Government. Provide a representative system which 
identifies and anticipates concerns, problems, and opportunities which are effectively addressed 
with thoughtful and decisive governmental actions for the benefit of citizens. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Provide broad direction to the City Administrator, who in turn formulates management 
decisions to provide efficient service offerings and operations. 

2). As a policy-making body, interpret community needs and values and convey them to City 
staff through consistent legislative and policy actions. 

3). Continue to provide a forum for active public engagement related to City actions through 
open public meetings, hearings, committees, commissions, task forces and broadcast 
media. 

4). Continually explore and evaluate improved methods of communication with citizens to 
inform them of City activities and accomplishments. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to hold annual meetings with CFU to discuss the impacts and strategies to deal 
with the on-going transfer of Utility funds in lieu of property taxes, franchise taxes, use of 
right-of-way, TIF reimbursement, and support of entrepreneurship.  

2). Hold joint meetings with policy-making City boards such as the Library Board and the 
Planning & Zoning Commission. 

115

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 24 

  
 

3). Consider holding when timely, joint meetings with the Waterloo City Council, Black Hawk 
County Supervisors, Cedar Falls Community School District and the University of Northern 
Iowa on matters of mutual interest. 

4). Encourage the professional development of City Council members, city commissioners and 
board members through staff-facilitated work sessions, training sessions, the Iowa League 
of Cities annual conference, the Municipal Leadership Academy, and innovative project 
presentations from other cities. 

5). Expand on existing collaborations with the City of Waterloo, CFU, UNI, Black Hawk County, 
and other governmental bodies to provide high-quality public services at lower cost; 
examples include art & culture services, airport operations, public safety services, transit 
systems, economic development coordination, emergency response, sewer infrastructure, 
and shared facilities / equipment. 

6). Continue working with the Metropolitan Transit Authority and exploring other transportation 
options which meet the needs of Cedar Falls’ public transit-dependent residents at an 
affordable cost to the city.  

7). Continue to support the development of a five-year Community-Wide Strategic Plan (CFD 
4005) to help coordinate the long-term efforts of the City’s many stakeholders, including a 
new plan for 2025-2030. 

8). Continue using the city’s quarterly Currents newsletter, websites, cable television, social 
media and other technologies to provide relevant information about City services, activities, 
and schedules to residents. 

9). Continue expanding the Communication Specialist role and centralize efforts with other 
departments to facilitate increased communications with the public about all aspects of city 
government. 

10).Maintain an online index of major city plans, policies, and documents for reference. 

11).Continue to expand the City’s online services to take advantage of the prevalence of 
smartphones & other mobile devices in our community, while also ensuring that the less 
digitally advantaged can fully access city services.   

12).Continue to implement the Nutrient Reduction Strategy as submitted to the IDNR to update 
the existing Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). City of Waterloo Objectives. 

a. Maintain mutual aid agreements with Waterloo for faster emergency response times 
and lower callback expenses for both cities.  

b. Support coordination with Waterloo directly and through the Iowa Northland Regional 
Council of Governments (INRCOG) on common legislative goals.  

116

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 24 

  
 

2). University of Northern Iowa Objectives. 

a. Continue to collaborate with UNI to address public safety, parking, College Hill 
neighborhood, equitable payment for City services, sharing of facilities and elimination 
of duplicated governmental services. 

b. Continue to explore the viability of shared service contracts with UNI for policing, fire 
protection, dispatch, street maintenance, utilities, and recreational facility development 
and usage. 

c. Continue to coordinate the development of new City open field recreational uses with 
UNI to minimize the purchase of additional land; this approach will allow City funds to 
be used for site development. 

d. Engage with Iowa Workforce Development and UNI, Cedar Falls Economic 
Development Corporation, Grow Cedar Valley, and other relevant entities to explore 
opportunities to retain recent UNI graduates in Cedar Falls. 

e. Continue to provide paid internships to UNI students as a means to promote civic 
engagement. 

3). Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) Objectives. 

a. Assist CFCSD with infrastructure improvements that create parking areas, joint 
City/Schools playgrounds, and building expansion areas. 

b. Support improvements to parking and pedestrian traffic near public schools in 
accordance with the Safe Routes to Schools Study (CFD 4106.11); examples of such 
design are Orchard Hill Elementary, Southdale Elementary, and Lincoln Elementary.  

c. Continue to coordinate with CFCSD to identify local, county and state facilities, 
programs and property which can minimize duplication of services. 

d. Continue to engage directly with High School student groups to introduce students to 
civic engagement (e.g. CAPS program).  

e. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI. 

f. Participate in a community-wide equity committee. 

4). Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) Objectives. 

a. Annually consider repaying eligible CFU expenses (if excess TIF revenues exist) for 
CFU projects completed in City TIF districts.  

b. Support CFU in the implementation of water service programs, as CFU is the sole 
governmental entity authorized by code to provide these services.  Reimbursement 
would be subject to CFU maintaining a fair and updated annual transfer that equitably 
compensates the City for return on investment from City ownership, property taxes, 

117

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 24 

  
 

franchise fees and use of city right-of-way (ROW). 

c. Implement public water special assessment programs (if requested by CFU) to install 
a public water system in un-serviced areas, if requested and financially supported by a 
majority of benefited property owners. Examples include parts of northern Cedar Falls, 
Viking Place, Horseshoe Drive and some rural properties. 

d. Use property taxes to pay for fire hydrant installation; CFU will pay for all water line 
over-sizing and property owners will pay all other expenses, less any other funding 
sources. 

e. Continue to explore sustainability and resiliency initiatives jointly with CFU. 

5). Community Resiliency Objectives. 
a. Continue to implement the Island Park Revitalization Plan.  

b. Continue to evaluate cost effective measures to reduce damages resulting from Cedar 
River flooding.  

c. Continue to support conversion of city buildings to LED lighting, when cost-effective, to 
reduce the City’s electricity demand. 

d. Continue to support the conversion of unused City property to native tallgrass prairie 
(when practical) to reduce storm water runoff, minimize lawn maintenance 
requirements, and provide habitat for wildlife and pollinators. 

e. Continue to support the conversion of select gravel alleys to permeable alleys (when 
funds permit) to reduce gravel erosion and pollution from storm runoff. 

6). Racial Equity and Human Rights Objectives.  

a. Invest in organizational capacity and infrastructure through hiring Human Resources 
personnel to achieve human rights and equity goals.   

b. Continue to actively partner with the Black Hawk County Health Department, Cedar 
Falls Community School District, UNI, and Grow Cedar Valley to develop coordinated 
and supporting equity plans and initiatives. 

c. Build collaboration with the Cedar Falls Community School District to highlight and 
celebrate different cultures in the community and their value to the city. 

d. Create pathways and collaborative equity discussions between businesses and UNI.  

e. Work with Human Rights Commission about forming a Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion 
(DEI) subcommittee or determine best approach to establishing a Cedar Falls Equity 
Committee. 

f. Work towards actively building capacity to create public engagement opportunities that 
are welcoming and inclusive.  

118

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 24 

  
 

7). General Governance Objectives. 

a. Continue support for ‘Mayor’s Updates’ to inform the City Council, Cedar Falls residents 
and stakeholders of the status of Council priorities, City projects, upcoming activities 
and key information.  

b. Continue to specify in council agenda memos and presentations how a project or topic 
fits into the City Council’s stated goals and priorities. 

c. Maintain a directory of governmental units, neighborhood groups, and other 
stakeholders the City Council would periodically like to meet with to discuss common 
interests.  

d. Maintain an online calendar of civic events of relevance to city elected officials, 
published with as much advance notice as possible to facilitate attendance.  

e. Hold city council committee or work sessions on council meeting Mondays to discuss 
complex or potentially contentious matters. 

 

3. GOAL #3: Ensure Government Efficiency and Effectiveness. Equitably deliver services in a 
cost effective, efficient, professional, and timely manner. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Carry out the Short-Term Financial Plan.  

2). Ensure that community health, safety, and welfare are protected through provision of 
essential cost-effective, efficient, professional, and timely public services. 

3). Adopt a balanced budget reflecting the community's economic climate and needs. 

4). Continue to monitor the impacts of the State of Iowa’s roll back of commercial/industrial 
taxable values without long-term guaranteed backfill funding. 

5). Maintain a budget philosophy of self-sufficiency in all major funds. 

6). Adopt a Capital Improvements Program annually which coordinates major capital 
expenditures and is responsive to property tax levies and the City's debt restrictions. 

7). Maintain a stable property tax rate relative to the consumer price index. 

8). Evaluate each newly proposed service to determine the cost, relative importance and value 
of each service, and to identify unnecessary duplication within City-sponsored programs. 

9). Identify and implement cost-effective methods to save energy within City operations. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

119

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 24 

  
 

1). Continue to monitor the City's capacity to provide adequate maintenance of its growing 
infrastructure. Maintain a long-term maintenance plan, including a contingency plan to 
respond to any long-term reductions in maintenance funds.  

2). Continue to dedicate future accumulating cash generated by mid-year budget reductions 
for one-time future expenses such as capital projects. 

3). Continue to dedicate TIF release dollars generated by expired TIF areas to future economic 
development projects.  

4). Continue to explore appropriate opportunities for privatization of city services. 

5). Continue the annual street repair program using RUT and LOST revenues.  

6). Ensure that essential services (public safety, parks, sewers, roads, refuse collection) are 
offered, while constantly exploring ways to increase efficiency in delivery. 

7). Encourage civic involvement and volunteerism by citizens to reduce costs, including 
recycling, picking up leaves, moving cars to assist with efficient snowplowing, cleaning 
sidewalks, Friends of the Library, Friends of the Hearst Center, and Police Reservists.  

8). Maintain the appropriate number of alternative staff in police and fire while improving 
services and reducing overtime costs by annually recruiting, if necessary, new Police 
Reservists, volunteers, PSOs and POC staff. 

9). Periodically conduct an evaluation of the costs and benefits of participation in the County 
Consolidated Communications Center and CJIS. Determine the fair share of costs that 
should be assigned to Cedar Falls while exploring a "county funded" system. 

10).Maintain the Police Community Service Officer (CSO) program to help supervisory 
personnel with office duties, allowing supervisors to work closer with the public and provide 
direction in the field supervision of down-line employees. 

11).Maintain staffing levels in all departments that reduce overtime by matching staffing levels 
to specific service demands as opposed to predetermined rigid standards. 

12).Return City property to the tax base (when possible) to support revenue generation and 
economic development. 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Cost Savings Objectives. 

a. Evaluate cost-effective alternatives to keep City departments staffed and functional. 

b. Continue the review of open positions as they occur. 

c. Continue the practice of succession planning to identify talented internal candidates 
when a vacancy is expected to occur. 

120

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 24 

  
 

d. Continue to promote cross-training programs and alternative employment practices for 
most effective use of city staff. 

e. Continue to explore the sharing of services with other jurisdictions. 

2). Public Safety Objectives. 

a. Continue to support and provide feedback on the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation 
Plan for Black Hawk County (CFD 5901.20) and intergovernmental emergency 
response plans. 

b. Continue to evaluate the City’s Public Safety model, ensuring cost effective and efficient 
law enforcement, firefighting, and rescue operations. 

c. Continue to review staffing levels to ensure the most efficient use of Public Safety funds 
and personnel. 

d. Continue using supervisor performance measurement tools to hold first line supervisors 
accountable for daily staffing decisions.  

e. Use the Performance Based (Merit Based) Pay Policy (CFD 2154) to reward 
supervisors who successfully respond to workload demands with decisions that 
adequately protect the safety of employees and the public while minimizing overtime 
and callback expenses. 

f. Exercise management rights to schedule full staffing to avoid overtime expenses on 
days where known special public events will tax personnel resources.  

g. Pursue the establishment of a new public safety station along W. 1st Street / Highway 
57.  

h. Expand the reach of the City’s marketing and promotional campaigns regarding policing 
and racial equity efforts, beyond traditional media sources. 

i. Continue to assign Minimum Rental Housing, Section 8 Rental and Commercial 
Inspection duties to Fire shift personnel whenever possible. 

j. Continue annual smoke detector inspections in businesses and residences, 
recognizing that smoke detectors identify fire hazards as early as possible. 

k. Investigate options for additional staffing or contracting out for crisis intervention 
services. 

3). Code Enforcement Objectives. 

a. Continue to be proactive in code enforcement activities.  

b. Continue to identify and implement methods designed to better coordinate inspections 
while enforcing land use, property maintenance codes, rental housing, and zoning and 
nuisance ordinance violations citywide with cooperative and coordinated actions by the 

121

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 15 of 24 

  
 

City’s departments. 

c. Continue the full-time Code Enforcement Officer position to enforce property 
maintenance, snow removal, zoning, housing, building, and nuisances. 

d. Enforce 48-hour parking laws in response to snow events, citizen complaints, habitual 
violations, and when public safety is compromised. 

e. Prioritize code enforcement on issues related to health & safety, property maintenance 
and over-crowding or over-occupancy. 

f. Continue rental inspections on a 3-year cycle. 

g. Expand building maintenance code inspections and enforcement city-wide, including in 
the College Hill area. 

h. Continue to coordinate and consolidate federally subsidized rental and minimum rental 
housing inspection duties.  

i. Continue to annually evaluate efficacy of the Landlord Accountability Ordinance. 

j. Implement traffic and parking controls based on public input meetings, test cases, 
sound engineering / best practices, and specific structural or safety limitations (street 
width, density, traffic flow and safety). 

k. Enforce laws prohibiting illegal parking on private property (front yards and non-
conforming lots). 

l. Enforce over-occupancy regulations. 

m. Enforce parking restrictions on all streets less than 31’ in width, based on the need for 
public safety vehicle accessibility. 

4). Yard Waste, Refuse and Transfer Station Objectives. 

a. Determine if yard waste collection programs should be altered or expanded based on 
the efficiency of material collection, customer satisfaction and general cost efficiency. 

b. Evaluate City-operated leaf vacuum collection rates to determine if they are set at levels 
that encourage property owners with small volumes of leaves to compost, mulch or 
utilize ‘City’ container disposal methods; ensure that the rate offers a cost-effective 
option for property owners who must dispose of large volumes of leaves. 

c. Evaluate how the expansion of the hours of operation for the yard waste drop off site 
has impacted revenues and expenditures.  

d. Continue the City’s public relations program to encourage the environmentally safe 
disposal of yard waste. 

122

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 16 of 24 

  
 

e. Continue to review refuse fees, when timely, to ensure that sufficient revenues exist to 
cover all collection costs. 

f. Continue to plan for future relocation of transfer station outside of the floodplain. 

5). Stormwater and Wastewater Objectives. 

a. Review sewer rental fees to ensure that sufficient revenue exists in the next several 
years to pay for EPA mandated treatment plant improvements and other sewer 
projects. 

b. Continue timely review of stormwater fees to determine sufficiency of fees to pay for 
projected storm water costs outlined in the Capital Improvements Program.   

c. Actively enforce Municipal Separate Storm Sewer (MS4) Permit requirements 

6). General Legislative Objectives. 

a. Continue using lobbyists to influence municipally-related legislative action. 

(1) Continue to contract with a professional lobbyist to represent City interests to the 
State legislature. 

(2) Continue membership in the Iowa League of Cities to lobby for all Iowa cities.  

b. Develop and annually update policies to communicate the City’s goals and desires to 
the federal and state legislators.   

c. Continue to meet with legislators to increase rapport, gain insight into current legislative 
directions, and to apprise them of the City's revenue generation challenges, as well as 
the negative impact of legislation (including unfunded mandates, tax exempt and 
rollbacks).  

d. Continue pre- and post-legislative session meetings with area representatives to 
discuss topics of mutual interest. 

 

4. GOAL #4: Promote Economic Development. Create an environment conducive to economic 
development for the long-term financial prosperity and growth of the community. 

A. Supporting Council Policies. 

1). Function as a catalyst to encourage business development/expansion in Cedar Falls. 
a. Continue to support public and private economic development efforts in Cedar Falls 

and the metropolitan area. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives 

123

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 17 of 24 

  
 

1). Develop initiatives, when financially feasible, to support the economic development goals 
contained in the city’s Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

2). Implement a long-term plan for the development of future TIF districts. This plan should 
include ways to acquire land and provide adequate infrastructure utilizing cooperative 
efforts with other groups and agencies. 

3). Continue the systematic and strategic buyout of flood-prone properties to retain viable 
areas based on quality of infrastructure, elevation and contiguousness. 

4). Prepare on a project–by-project basis an in-depth analysis of the long-term economic 
benefits vs. public investment/risk for each private/public cooperative economic 
development venture; the analysis must conclude that the long-term financial benefit 
derived by Cedar Falls taxpayers clearly out-weighs the risk of public financial assets. 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). General Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Offer economic development incentives on par with other Iowa cities to remain 
competitive in the site selection process. 

b. Continue to support and develop the city’s economic development website. 

c. Continue to use TIF funds to acquire land for development into marketable industrial 
lots. 

d. Continue to use TIF funds to provide cash incentives to developers and business 
owners when consistent with City economic development policies. 

e. Explore the establishment of a University Avenue Corridor TIF district.  

f. Review downtown incentives (following adoption of new zoning) to consider the 
increase in assessed value and to incentivize enhanced architectural design or public 
benefits.  

g. Continue to provide property tax abatement (based on current schedules) for projects 
meeting adopted job creation and tax base growth criteria.  

h. Continue to allocate TIF funds for redevelopment projects on College Hill, in Downtown, 
and in northern Cedar Falls.  

i. Continue funding expansion of economic development marketing efforts.  

j. Continue to explore options for city support of expanded day-care options in Cedar 
Falls. 

k. Pursue expanded benefits and incentives to recently separated military members 
willing to relocate to Cedar Falls, as part of the state’s Home Base Iowa initiative. 

l. Explore the establishment of an incentive policy for residential districts.  
2). Regional Economic Development Organization Objectives. 

a. Continue regional economic development partnership with Grow Cedar Valley. 
124

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 18 of 24 

  
 

b. Monitor economic development cash subsidies (to CMS, CHP, GCV, and CFEDC) to 
determine value to Cedar Falls citizens and businesses.  

c. Continue to support the efforts of the Cedar Falls Economic Development Corporation 
in advancing Cedar Falls’ economic interests. 

3). Regional Tourism Objectives. 

a. Continue to maintain a dedicated Cedar Falls Visitors & Tourism Bureau. 

b. Continue to coordinate marketing and programming efforts with UNI and with tourism-
related organizations throughout the Cedar Valley. 

c. Showcase Cedar Falls as premier destination for meetings, conferences, sports and 
business travel in Iowa. 

d. Continuously evaluate and grow the budget for a sponsorship program (modeled after 
competing communities) for offering financial incentives to prospective event 
organizers. 

e. Maintain and enhance Cedar Falls as a preferred destination for leisure travelers. 

f. Encourage the development of new attractions and assets that would enhance Cedar 
Falls as a tourism destination. 

g. Advocate for the construction of a new multi-purpose indoor turf facility to meet the 
increasing demands of youth and amateur athletic events and competitions.  

h. Facilitate consistent communications with members of the hospitality industry, 
providing local, statewide and national training opportunities, information and updates. 

 
4). Comprehensive Planning, Engineering and Building Objectives. 

a. Develop a grading ordinance for all new and existing developments. 

b. Continue to implement the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12) with emphasis on: 
(1) Design standards which protect urban watersheds by encouraging developers to 

utilize natural methods of storm water control rather than traditional underground 
storm water collection and disposal systems. 

(2) Clear standards for growth, streets, street connectivity and walkability. 

(3) Low-maintenance landscaping in the city right-of-way, when cost-effective. 

(4) Trails and on-road accommodation of bicyclists, when possible. 

(5) Development of neighborhood traffic program guide 
(i)  Traffic calming devices and design approaches to address neighborhood traffic 

concerns, when practical. 
125

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 19 of 24 

  
 

(6) Revise the Major Thoroughfare Plan. 

(7) Evaluate one-way streets and traffic flow. 

5). Zoning Ordinance Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the development of a comprehensive new Zoning Ordinance to update the 
Zoning Ordinance first adopted in 1970. Consider new zoning and traffic control 
regulations to control density and parking problems by reducing the number of multiple 
family and duplex conversions. 

(1) Continue work on College Hill zoning ordinance. 

(2) Initiate work to develop neighborhood a plan exploring the redevelopment of the old 
High School and the Sartori Hospital sites (and subsequent zoning changes, if 
identified) 

(3) Develop a University Avenue neighborhood plan (and subsequent zoning changes, 
if identified) 

b. Consider changes to zoning regulations to limit the conversion of single-family 
properties to rental uses, to protect neighborhood stability and character. 

c. Consider changes to zoning regulations, policies and land use plans to restrict 
development of non-profit uses on prime commercial sites along arterial streets. 

d. Consider developing a Zoning Ordinance (and Subdivision Ordinance) to 
accommodate features that encourage mixed uses, variable building setbacks, 
walkability, sustainability and complete street concepts. 

e. Support the pre-zoning of select properties for residential development and shorten the 
development timeline by identifying neighborhood concerns and responding with 
developmental limitations. 

f. Annex lands into the city (if requested by property owners) to support community growth 
and development consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (CFD 4101.12). 

6). Affordable Housing Development Objectives. 
a. Continue to seek ways in to provide affordable housing options to residents by: 

(1) Maximizing Section 8 funds available to provide as many vouchers as possible, 
given HUD guidance. 

(2) Incentivizing improvements in Section 8 housing (with tools such as Community 
Development Block Grant rental rehabilitation program). 

(3) Revising zoning codes to encourage a variety of housing types in every 
neighborhood, e.g., allow for Habitat for Humanity builds. 

126

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 20 of 24 

  
 

(4) Encouraging the Housing Commission to evaluate initiatives to balance 
investments in market rate and low-income housing (e.g., tax abatements, 
forgivable loans, gap payments on rent or mortgage, housing trust fund). 

b. Review City construction standards to identify possible changes which can promote the 
construction of affordable housing. 

c. Identify existing older homes which can provide a market to meet affordable housing 
demand.  

d. Target potential developers with Requests for Proposals for affordable housing 
development, if federal or state grants can be secured.  

e. Partner with Habitat for Humanity to build/rehabilitate homes on city-owned lots.  

f. Consider the results of the Housing Needs Assessment, focusing on how to provide 
housing variety to promote housing options for all. 

g. Create educational messaging and outreach for landlords and citizens to emphasize 
the importance of healthy housing for all, along with destigmatizing affordable housing 
options such as Section 8 and Habitat for Humanity builds. 

h. Create a resource database of all federal, state and local programs that can be used to 
foster more homeownership among low- and moderate- income families and 
individuals. 

i. Create an ongoing educational program for low- and moderate-income families to 
access available homeownership assistance programs. 

j. Implement diversity, inclusion and affordability considerations and evaluation in all new 
housing development plans. 

k. Continue the forgivable loan program for conversion of rental properties to owner-
occupied, expanded service area, and more qualifying expenses. 

7). Commercial and Office Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Support the private development of commercial (retail & wholesale), professional office 
and industrial expansions to improve the City’s residential to commercial/industrial land 
use mix from an 80/20 assessed value split to a 50/50 assessed value split. 

b. Implement diagonal on-street parking where feasible and where parking deficiencies 
can be solved with this approach. 

c. Continue development of the city-owned properties along the relocated Highway 20 
corridor and establish a new urban renewal area if appropriate. 

8). College Hill Economic Development Objectives. 

127

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 21 of 24 

  
 

a. Continue to enact the College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan (CFD 1852.12). 

9). Northern Cedar Falls Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Continue to support the development of commercial uses in the northeast corner of 
Lone Tree Road/Center Street and at the Lone Tree Road interchange. 

10).Downtown Area Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Consider adopting an Urban Revitalization District in the Downtown area, following the 
adoption of new zoning ordinance.  

b. Explore all options to building a downtown parking structure, in conjunction with a 
feasibility study and continual re-evaluation of paid parking options. 

11).Industrial Economic Development Objectives. 

a. Create a new urban renewal area by acquiring additional land in areas that are 
attractive to the private sector for industrial development yet can be efficiently 
developed at a low public cost. 

b. Reserve TIF increment capacity to pay off debt incurred by the City/IDOT cooperative 
construction of US 58 interchanges. 

c. Continue to repay Industrial Park TIF debt owed to the City debt service, economic 
development and capital project funds. 

12).Flood Control, Storm Water, Sanitary Sewer and Water Improvement Objectives. 

a. Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Program: Carry out separation of sanitary sewer and 
stormwater sewer lines from the footing drains when reconstructing streets. 

b. Extend sanitary sewer to areas that are unserved and remain on septic systems (i.e. 
South Main Street). 

13).Street Improvement Objectives. 

a. Develop cooperative agreements with State Agencies to improve the following streets 
using Road Use Tax (RUT), Local Option Sales Tax (LOST), and General Obligation 
(GO) bonds, if necessary: 

(1) Main Street Reconstruction – Use LOST, RUT, Stormwater, ARPA, and GO bonds 
to complete this project for construction 2023-2025. 

(2) Greenhill Road/Highway 58 – Use LOST funding as City match to Iowa Department 
of Transportation’s project in FY2027. 

(3) West 23rd Street Improvements – Use LOST, Assessment, and GO bonds to 
complete this project in FY2024. 

128

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 22 of 24 

  
 

(4) Ridgeway & 58 – Use TIF funding as City match to Iowa Department of 
Transportation’s project in FY2024-FY2025.  

(5) West Viking Road Reconstruction – Use TIF and LOST to complete this project for 
construction in 2024-2025 

(6)  Prairie Parkway & Viking Road Intersection Improvements – Use TIF, LOST, and 
RUT for construction in 2024-2025. 

(7) Northern Cedar Heights Area – Use LOST and SCF to complete this project. 

b. Complete the street connections per agreements with developers of the following 
streets: 

(1) Arbors Drive -- Aldrich Elementary to Greenhill Road 
(2) Ashworth Drive – Prairie Winds to Hudson Road 
(3) Ashworth Drive – Connection to Arbor Drive 

(4) Ironwood Drive – Connection to Greenhill Road 

c. Continue to develop the plans for the reconstruction of Union Road from 27th Street to 
University Avenue - Use LOST and RUT funds to complete this project.  Timing of 
project dependent on receipt of grant funding sources. 

14).Miscellaneous Infrastructure Repairs. 

a. Slope Repairs. Continue to develop plans to address significant slope failure issues. 
Use storm water funds to complete these projects. 

 

5. GOAL #5: Enhance Community Quality of Life. Preserve the community’s physical, human, and 
aesthetic assets by assuring that Quality of Life services are available for leisure, educational, 
cultural and personal enrichment of residents. 

A. Supporting Council Policies.  

1). Actively support the development of cultural, educational, recreational, and natural 
features, which make Cedar Falls distinctive. 

2). Endorse planned community growth, which protects the unique, natural, and historic 
features of Cedar Falls. 

3). Continue evaluating and implementing pedestrian safety measures. 

B. Long-Term and Ongoing Objectives. 

1). Continue to review and evaluate the ways in which the City can enhance racial and cultural 
diversity and inclusion in Cedar Falls. 

129

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 23 of 24 

  
 

2). Update the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) to account for city growth, changing needs 
and desires of the public, and updating of equipment and facilities. 

C. FY2025 Detailed Objectives. 

1). Continue planning for Hearst Center expansion/relocation. 

2). Continue to use the Recreation & Fitness Center, Operations & Facilities Needs 
Assessment (CFD 8101.18) to determine the viability of expansion. 

3). Implement, when financially feasible, an enhanced riverfront as a visitor attraction 
consistent with the Northern Cedar Falls Park and Maintenance Plan (CFD 8602). 

4). Coordinate with the Cedar Falls Community School District to purchase land for future 
parks in developing areas, as appropriate.  

5). Assist in the solicitation of grants and development of the Cedar River including dam safety 
improvements, riverbank improvements, and recreational features. 

6). Continue to implement portions of the Park Master Plan (CFD 8601.06) for the Big Woods 
Lake, Gateway Park and Cedar City sites. 

7). Improve the Big Woods Campground (cabins, campground expansion, playground, and 
landscaping) as funding becomes available and as floodplain development ordinances 
allow. 

8). Develop an annual street right-of-way beautification, wayfinding signage, bike network 
signage, and city entrance signage & monument program using hotel/motel taxes. 

9). Consider recommendations from City staff when alternative roadway designs are 
appropriate based on safety, roadway efficiency and financially feasible; typically, these 
opportunities arise when a street is scheduled for resurfacing or reconstruction allowing the 
City to address issues involving landscaping, pedestrian movements, transit, bike and 
vehicular traffic. 

10).Protect areas identified in the Cedar Falls Environmentally Sensitive Lands Survey (CFD 
4551.07) as city finances allow. 

11).Identify trails most appropriate for winter snow removal and inform the public via an 
annually published Trail and Bus Bench Snow Removal Map (CFD 4403). 

12).Develop a Great American Rail Trail Connection Plan to identify possible improvements, 
wayfinding, and other amenities along the Cedar Falls portion of this cross-country route. 

13).Continue collaboration with CFCSD on the development of plans for a new indoor 
community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School. 

14).Encourage private development for an official Independence Day fireworks display.  

15).Continue working with private property owners to remove trees impacted by emerald ash 

130

Item 10.



CFD 1101.XX – Council Goals, Work Program, and Financial Plan for FY2024 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 24 of 24 

  
 

borer infestation. 

16).Implement facility improvements to Seerley Park. 

17).Design and develop facility improvements to various City Parks. 

18).Continue pursuit of sister city partnerships and engagement, including in-person visits as 
part of major Iowa delegations. 

19).Implement the Bike Network Plan as funding and construction allows. 

20).Consider potential for new quality of life projects. 

a. Eco Loop 

b. Campground/RV Park in Northern Cedar Falls 

c. Trail Connection (behind CFU, contingent upon railroad grant)  

d. Pickleball Courts 

e. Birdsall Park Renovations 

f. Historic Reconnaissance Survey of Overman Park Neighborhood 

21).Consider funding for quality-of-life projects with other entities. 

a. Historical Society 

b. UNI Dome Renovations 

c. Additional ask for High School Pool 

 

131

Item 10.



132

Item 11.



133

Item 11.



134

Item 11.



135

Item 11.



136

Item 11.



137

Item 11.



138

Item 11.



139

Item 11.



140

Item 11.



141

Item 11.



142

Item 11.



143

Item 11.



144

Item 11.



145

Item 11.



146

Item 11.



147

Item 11.



148

Item 11.



149

Item 11.



150

Item 11.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

 FROM: Brenda Balvanz, Human Resources Specialist 

 DATE: December 20, 2023 

 SUBJECT:  New Job Classification – Policy & Administration Specialist 
 
 
Attached for your review is a Policy & Administration Specialist job classification, a new 
non-exempt level Administration Division position reviewed by Carlson Dettmann, the 
City’s job classification and pay plan consultant.  
 
This position will oversee and support a broad range of programs, projects, and activities 
involving city government administration.  The position will provide executive level support 
to the City Administrator’s office and independently perform a variety of complex, highly 
responsible, professional duties involving the administration and analysis of municipal 
programs, projects, and policies.  Duties will evolve and may include handling special 
projects as assigned.    
 
Staff recommends approval of the attached at the January 2, 2024, City Council meeting.  
If you have questions regarding the attached, please contact me at 319-268-5112 or 
Jennifer Rodenbeck at 319-268-5108. 
 
 
Attachment 

151

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   1

Job Title Policy & Administration Specialist  Job Code 012 

Department Administration  Pay Band 9 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 10/16/23  Adopted 1/02/24 

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by employees 
in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
Under the general direction of the City Administrator, oversee and support a broad range of programs, 
projects, and other activities involving city government administration.  This position provides executive 
level support to the City Administrator’s office and independently performs a variety of complex, highly 
responsible, professional work involving the administration and analysis of municipal programs, projects, 
and policies.  Duties are constantly evolving and changing and may include handling special projects as 
assigned.  
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from the City Administrator. 
 
This position has no direct supervisory responsibilities.  
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Conduct research for special projects; monitor and report on department initiatives and strategic 
planning process.   
 

 Assist City departments in special projects included in the City’s five-year Capital Improvements 
Program (CIP).  
 

 Assist with media relations, publication and communication efforts utilizing a variety of multimedia 
formats.  
 

 Research potential grant opportunities and complete applications as needed.  Complete required 
grant reporting as required.  

152

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   2

 Research trends within municipal management/operations nationwide and track pertinent State 
and Federal legislation that may impact city operations.  

 
 Collect information for use in policy development by the City Administrator, City Attorney, and the 

Mayor.  
 

 Prepare and coordinate correspondence, reports, memoranda, media communications, and 
directives for the City Administrator. 
 

 Work with senior management to maintain accurate, timely schedules of major projects for City 
Council and public consumption.  
 

 Collaborate with Human Resources on employee engagement, satisfaction and/or climate surveys 
and initiatives to improve overall culture. Also assist in Human Resources in expanded recruitment 
efforts and diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) related programs and initiatives. 
 

 Assist Economic Development Coordinator with special projects.  
 

 Assist administration in conducting various citizen surveys and public outreach programs.  
 

 May act as liaison to city boards and commissions or other community organizations.  
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with Commissioners, City Council, City 
Mayor, City Administrator, City Department Directors, Managers and Supervisors, City employees, 
business and community groups, and representatives of the media and public.  

 
 
OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Attend and make presentations at City Council, board and commission meetings as required; 
attend and participate in professional group meetings; stay abreast of new trends and innovations 
in the field of social justice. 

 
 Participate in the work of subordinate level staff as necessary; process various paperwork and 

data; input information into the computer, access files, and maintain records.  
 

 Assist with the operating budgets for the offices of City Administrator and Mayor and assist in 
monitoring budgeted expenditures.  
 

 Assist the Human Resources division with general HR/DEI duties as needed. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

153

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   3

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 

 
 Understanding of municipal governments, city regulations/codes and ordinances.  

 
 Principles and practices of public administration, policy development, and operational functions 

within a municipality.  
 

 Modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment. 
 

 Principles of project management.  
 

 Principles of business letter writing and report preparation. 
 

 English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation. 
 

 Pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations. 
 

 Municipal record keeping policies and procedures.  
 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 

 
 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 

implement recommendations in support of goals. 
 

 Handle confidential information in a sensitive manner.  
 

 Work independently on projects and research assignments.  
 

 Interpret and apply federal, state and local policies, laws and regulations. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
 

 Ability to listen, identify, and understand information and ideas of another person. 
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

154

Item 12.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification –Policy & Administration Specialist   4

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Experience in public policy, business administration, or municipal operations is preferred.  Internships in 
these areas may count as experience.  
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university in public administration, political science, 
business administration, or a related field.   
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of an appropriate, valid driver’s license.    
 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 
 
Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers; 
sensitive deadlines and irregular work hours. 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for sitting, standing, or walking 
for prolonged periods of time; general manual dexterity required for typing for prolonged periods of time. 

155

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Recreation Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Mayor Laudick & City Council 

 FROM: Mike Soppe, Recreation & Community Programs Manager 

 DATE: December 27, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Recreation Fee Proposal 

 

         

Attached are the Recreation Team’s proposed fees.  If adopted, any fee changes would go into 
effect for any program or service January 2, 2024.  
 
On the attached sheets is a history of fees. Any item proposed to change from the FY24 
adopted fee schedule, is highlighted in yellow for easy identification.  
 
Several minimal fee increases are proposed to keep up with operational costs.  Several new 
fees are proposed for newer activities.  Activities that have not been offered for years are 
proposed for removal.  A summary of the proposed changes is as follows:  
 
 

o Added a Pickleball league at $60 (new) 
o Removed Chew & View (haven’t offered this activity for multiple years) 
o Removed Parents night out (haven’t offered this activity for multiple years) 
o Removed Birthday Party/ Theme Package (haven’t offered this activity for 

multiple years) 
o Removed Hot Shot Basketball (haven’t offered this activity for multiple years) 
o Removed Hockey (haven’t offered this activity for multiple years) 
o Cleaned up options in Camp Cedar Falls, no longer offer daily, weekly, or extra 

childcare.  
o An increase of $2 for Youth Indoor Pool Fee Daily Admission 
o An increase of $2 for Adult Indoor Pool Fee Daily Admission 
o Remove Child Care Provider Pool Pass (would be same price as regular pass so 

no longer needed) 
o Remove Family Pass for Indoor Pool Season (wanting to stay consistent with our 

Outdoor Pool Pass) 
o Remove Aqua Trim (haven’t offered this activity for multiple years) 
o An increase of $2 for Lap Swim Daily Admission 
o An increase of $15 for our Lifeguard Certification Class 
o An increase of $14 for the recertification of our Lifeguard Class 
o Changed the age for youth and student admission at the Rec to stay consistent 

with The Falls (Youth is 17 and under, Adult is (18 and over)) 

156

Item 13.



o Added a Pickleball Court Reservation fee of $4 per half hour (new) 
 
 

Thank you in advance for considering this proposal.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions or need additional information.  

 

157

Item 13.



City of Cedar Falls  Fee updates Dec 2023‐Rec only

SCHEDULE	OF	FEES ADDITIONAL	INFORMATION

ADULT	PROGRAMS
Basketball Leagues $370.00 Each Team 10 games (plus tax)
Basketball Call Your Own League $120.00 Each Team 10 games (plus tax)
Volleyball League $140.00 Each team 14 games (plus tax)
Spring Volleyball $80.00 Each team 6 games (plus tax)
Softball Leagues – 12 games
Registration $355.00 Each team (plus tax)
Player Fees $70.00 Each team (plus tax)
Mixed League Softball - Fall or Summer Plus $25.00 (plus tax)
Softball Call Your Own League 12 games $175.00 (plus tax)
Player Fees $50.00 (plus tax)
Ball Field Rental (field as is) $6.00 Per hour (plus tax)
      Week Day Evening $20.00 (plus tax)
      Multiple Rentals (Max. 75 per season) $500 Max (plus tax)
Fall Softball League – 10 games $255.00 (plus tax)

Player Fees $60.00 Each team (plus tax)

Fall Softball League (Call your own) – 10 games $160.00 (plus tax)

Player Fees $40.00 Each team (plus tax)
Softball Field Rental

  One Field - One Day (with lights or on weekend) $50.00 (plus tax)

Complex (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00 (plus tax)
Plus any additional staff cost over the initial field 
preparation

Pfeiffer (weekend 1 & 2 day) $130.00 (plus tax)
Plus any additional staff cost over the initial field 
preparation

Pickleball League $60.00 (plus tax) New fee for new pickleball league
Kickball League $75.00 (plus tax)

Player Fees $10.00 (plus tax)
Flag Football League – 4 on 4 $100.00 Each team

Player Fee $15.00 Each player
Dodgeball $80.00 (plus tax)
Tournaments Cost Plus $20.00
Beach House (all day) N/A

Weekend (Friday-Sunday, Holidays) N/A
     Full Facility $275.00
Weekday (Monday-Thursday)
     Full Facility $175.00
     Deposit $500.00

Shelter Rental - All Day $25.00
Up to 6 hours N/A
Over 6 hours N/A

Gateway Shelter (10am-10:30pm)
Monday - Thursday $70.00
Friday-Sunday & Holidays $110.00
     Deposit $75.00

Orchard Hill Pickleball Court
     Single Court Per Hour $10.00 (plus tax)
     Whole Complex Per Hour $80.00 (plus tax)
Racquetball League – 11 games
     Singles $35.00 (plus tax)
Racquetball Lessons – 6 lessons $33.00
Table Tennis League $16.00 (plus tax)
Bags League $45.00 (plus tax)

EXERCISE	CLASSES

Specialty Classes
Instructor + 

$10.00
Exercise Tryouts N/A
Fitness Pass w/o Rec Membership

4 months unlimited N/A
1 month unlimited N/A

Fitness Pass w/ Rec Membership
4 months unlimited N/A
1 month unlimited N/A

Circuit Weight Training
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $32.00
Circuit Weight Training
w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

2 x Per Week - Per Month $16.00
Cardio Cycling - Per Month
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

RECREATION	DIVISION	PROGRAM	FEES
CHAPTER	17,	CEDAR	FALLS	PARKS	AND	RECREATION

RATE

Page 1

158

Item 13.



City of Cedar Falls  Fee updates Dec 2023‐Rec only

SCHEDULE	OF	FEES ADDITIONAL	INFORMATIONRATE
3 x Per Week - Per Month $44.00

Cardio Cycling - Per Month
w/ Fitness Pass/Rec Membership

3 x Per Week - Per Month $22.00
Rec Xfit - Monthly
w/Fitness Pass/Rec Membership
3 x Per Week $29.00
Rec Xfit - Monthly
w/o Fitness Pass/Rec Membership
3 x Per Week $58.00
Special Fitness Classes (without FP or RCM)
2 x Per Week Per Month

$60.00

Special Fitness Classes (with FP or RCM)
2 x Per Week Per Month

$30.00

Teen Weight Lifting Training
(2) 2-hour classes $28.00

*RCM	‐	Rec	Center	Membership
*FP	‐	Fitness	Pass
YOUTH	PROGRAMS

Boys Baseball T-ball
Registration $40.00
Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 1
Registration $45.00
Sponsor $250.00

Boys Baseball 2-3
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $500.00

Boys Baseball 4-5
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $600.00

Girls Softball T-ball
Registration $40.00
Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball Kind. & 1
Registration $45.00
Sponsor $250.00

Girls Softball 2-3
Registration $45.00
Sponsor $500.00

Girls Softball 4-6
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $500.00

Kindergarten Basketball
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $200.00

Boys Basketball 5-6
Registration $44.00
Sponsor $500.00

Boys Basketball 3-4
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $300.00

Boys Basketball 1-2
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 5-6 (format change)
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $250.00

Girls Basketball 3-4
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $300.00

Girls Basketball 1-2
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $300.00

Summer Track
Registration $50.00
Sponsor $300.00

Volleyball 3-6 (format change) (8 weeks)
Registration $46.00
Sponsor $400.00

Flag Football K-2 (8 weeks)
Registration $51.00
Sponsor $200.00

Flag Football 3-4
Registration $51.00
Sponsor $300.00

Page 2

159

Item 13.



City of Cedar Falls  Fee updates Dec 2023‐Rec only

SCHEDULE	OF	FEES ADDITIONAL	INFORMATIONRATE
Flag Football 5-6

Registration $51.00
Sponsor $500.00
Baseball Club - Wrecking Crew $60.00
Softball Club - Wrecking Crew $60.00
Baseball Shortstops $35.00
Softball Shortstops $35.00

Soccer K, 1 & 2
Registration $39.00
Sponsor $350.00

Golf Lessons N/A
Tennis Lessons N/A
Tot Lot 

One Week $32.00
Six Weeks $150.00
One Day $9.00

Open Gym in schools No Charge
Special Events Cost Plus $5.00
Tournaments Cost Plus 0-10%
Indoor Park, 1-5 years $28.00

Full Session (18- 22 times) $40.00
Mini Session $18.00
Daily $3.00

Chew & View – 2 hours $6.00 REMOVE LINE
Parents Night Out – 2 hours $8.00 REMOVE LINE
Birthday Party $125.00 REMOVE LINE
Birthday Party - Theme Package $155.00 REMOVE LINE
   Add Pizza $30.00 REMOVE LINE
3 on 3 Basketball Tourney $30.00 Per Team
Soccer Tournament $20.00
Hot Shot Basketball $5.00 REMOVE LINE
Free Throw Contest $5.00
Karate $32.00
New Sports & Active Programs Charge Comparable
Sack Lunch Days $28.00
Tumbling - 5 sessions $32.00
Hockey – Inline REMOVE LINE

Registration N/A REMOVE LINE
Sponsor N/A REMOVE LINE

Camp Cedar Falls
One Week $150.00
Full Summer 8 weeks (1 week free) $1,050.00
Full Summer 9 weeks (1 week free) $1,200.00
Whole Summer (weeks x $120) REMOVE LINE
Pre and Post Care REMOVE LINE

Daily $5.00 REMOVE LINE
Weekly $20.00 REMOVE LINE

Note: Sponsorship determined by cost of t-shirts 
adjusted up to the nearest $50.00 increment.

SWIM	POOL	FEES
Daily Admission – Indoor

Infant (under 2) $3.00
Youth (3-17) $7.00 Previously $5
Adult (18 & Up) $7.00 Previously $5

Daily Admission – The Falls
Infant (under 2) $3.00
Youth (3-17) $12.00 (sales tax included)
Adult (18 & Up) $10.00 (sales tax included)
Summer
Memorial	Day‐1st	Day	of	School
Family Season Pass

Resident** N/A
Non-Resident** N/A
Child Care Provider Pool Pass - Mon-Fri $40.00 (plus tax) Remove

Adult Season Pass
Resident $40.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $60.00 (plus tax)

Youth Season Pass 
Resident $50.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $60.00 (plus tax)

Lap Swim – Indoor
Resident $40.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $60.00 (plus tax)
Winter	Indoor
1st	Day	of	School‐Memorial	Day

Page 3

160

Item 13.



City of Cedar Falls  Fee updates Dec 2023‐Rec only

SCHEDULE	OF	FEES ADDITIONAL	INFORMATIONRATE
Family Season Pass

Resident $135.00 (plus tax) Remove this option
Non-Resident $145.00 (plus tax) Remove this option

Adult Season Pass
Resident $100.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $105.00 (plus tax)

Youth Season Pass - 17 & Under
Resident $80.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident $85.00 (plus tax)

*RCM	‐	Rec	Center	Membership
Swim Lesson – Youth $36.00
Swim Lesson – Adult $38.00
WSI N/A
Aqua Trim $36.00
Deep Water Aqua Trim $36.00
Aqua Trim Tryout $5.00 Remove this line
Stretching Aqua Trim $36.00
Lap Swim – Daily Indoor $7.00 Or Pass Preiuosly $5 and changed to match increase
Life Guarding $150.00 Previously $135
Lifeguard Recertification $100.00 Previously $86
Scuba Diving Cost Plus $10.00
Pool Rental ID, 1-75 people $75/hr. (plus tax)
Pool Rental ID, 76 or more people $90/hr. (plus tax)
Pool Rental OD

Zero Depth – 2 hours $240.00 (plus tax)
Zero Depth / Lazy River /
2 Waterslides -- 2 hours

$465.00 (plus tax)

Lap Pool / Lazy River /
2 Waterslides – 2 hours

$565.00 (plus tax)

Lap Pool – 2 hours $365.00 (plus tax)
Entire Facility – 2 hours

No Concessions $665.00
Concessions Sold $45.00/hr.

Cost - Programs that are listed, as cost will be 
charged on the basis of direct program costs 
excluding administration and office costs.

New programs will be charged a comparable fee 
to other similar activities
Sponsor fee may change in some cases depending 
on the registration, program changes or sponsor 
charge.

RECREATION	CENTER
Admission

Daily Resident
 17 & Under = $5.00 (sales tax included) getting consistent with age at The Falls
Student (18 - 23) $5.00 (sales tax included) changed last year, just updating fee schedule
Adult 25 & Over $10.00 (sales tax included)
Senior Citizen $5.00 (sales tax included)
Veteran $5.00 (sales tax included)
Holiday Special Event Admission $3.00 (sales tax included) Per person – Any age

Resident Yearly Memberships**
Individual

17 & Under $115.00 (plus tax) Previously 12th grade and under, match the Falls
Student (18 - 23) $155.00 (plus tax) changed last year, just updating fee schedule
Adult $175.00 (plus tax)
Senior Citizen $155.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $155.00 (plus tax)

Family $260.00 (plus tax)
Non-Resident Yearly Memberships**

Individual
17 & Under $210.00 (plus tax) getting consistent with age at The Falls
Adult $355.00 (plus tax)
Senior Citizen $290.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $290.00 (plus tax)

Family $465.00 (plus tax)
Monthly Membership - Resident

17 & Under $20.00 (plus tax) getting consistent with age at The Falls
University Student (19-23) $25.00 (plus tax)
Adult 18 & Over $30.00 (plus tax) getting consistent with age at The Falls
Family $45.00 (plus tax)
Senior Citizen $25.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $20.00 (plus tax)

Monthly Membership - Non-Resident
17 & Under $35.00 (plus tax) getting consistent with age at The Falls
Adult 18 & Over $55.00 (plus tax) getting consistent with age at The Falls

Page 4

161

Item 13.



City of Cedar Falls  Fee updates Dec 2023‐Rec only

SCHEDULE	OF	FEES ADDITIONAL	INFORMATIONRATE
Family $70.00 (plus tax)
Senior Citizen $40.00 (plus tax)
Veteran $40.00 (plus tax)

Replace I.D. Card $9.00 (plus tax)
Corporate Rate

Individual $235.00 (plus tax)
Family $310.00 (plus tax)

Racquetball
Drop-in, per hour $0.00 Each
Reservation, per hour $2.00 Each
10 Punch Card $17.00 to $20.00 Value

Child Care
2-hour stay $3.00
20-Punch Card $40.00

Rentals
Resident Non-profit Organizations

Entire facility w/ adequate approved adult 
supervision 1:20 ratio

Per Hour $125.00 (plus tax)
Each additional hour N/A
Maximum cost (12 hr. max.) N/A

Meeting Room $10.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
Multi-Purpose Room $25.00 Per hour (plus tax)

Gym Rental
Fit Gym $40.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
Main Gym
     Half $40.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
     All $75.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)

Activity Room $25.00 Per hour + staff cost (plus tax)
Orchard Hill Pickleball Courts $4.00 Per 1/2 hour (plus tax) Orchard Hill Pickleball Court Reservation Fee
Locker Rental per Month $5.00
Locker Rental per Year $50.00

*s.c. - Staff Cost (if needed) $25.00
** Memberships include free towel usage and all 
drop-in fitness classes, as pandemic conditions 
allow.

CITY	EMPLOYEE	WELLNESS	RATES
Recreation Center Membership

Individual $30.00 (plus tax)
Family $40.00 (plus tax)

Summer Swim Pass
Individual Youth $30.00 (plus tax)
Individual Adult $30.00 (plus tax)
Lap Swim/Water Walking Pass $30.00 (plus tax)

Winter Swim Pass, purchased after August 14
Individual $40.00 (plus tax)
Family $60.00 (plus tax)
A full list of drop in fitness classes now included 
under the membership can be found on the web 
at www.cedarfalls.com/fitness

Page 5

162

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, Planner III 
 

 DATE: January 2, 2024 

SUBJECT: Property Acquisition: Mikayla Leah Hageman  
 
On November 6, 2023, City Council approved the execution of the Offer to Buy Real Estate 
and Acceptance for 8,712 sq. ft. (0.20 ac.) of land at 523 W 1st Street from Mikayla Leah 
Hageman. The purchase price was $97,000. City Legal staff completed the closing of the 
property on Friday, December 8, 2023. 
 

Now that the closing has been completed, City Council will need to accept the Warranty 
Deed that will be recorded at the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office. Staff recommends 
that the City Council adopt the following: 
 
 1. Resolution Approving and Accepting a Warranty Deed for the purchase of 

8,712 sq. ft. (0.20 ac.) of real estate located at 523 W 1st Street, owned by 
Mikayla Leah Hegeman. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 

xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

163

Item 14.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5184 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ACCEPTING A WARRANTY DEED FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF 8,712 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS, OF REAL ESTATE 

LOCATED AT 523 W 1ST STREET OWNED BY MIKAYLA LEAH HAGEMAN 

 
 WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, previously approved execution of 

an Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and Mikayla Leah 

Hageman for the purchase of 8,712 square feet, more or less, of real estate located at 523 W 1st Street 

owned by Mikayla Leah Hageman; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to said Offer to Buy Real Estate and Acceptance, the real estate transaction 

recently closed, and Mikayla Leah Hageman has tendered a Warranty Deed in fulfillment of said Offer to 

Buy Real Estate and Acceptance, a copy of which Warranty Deed accompanies this Resolution, to the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it in the best interests of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve and accept said Warranty Deed. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that said Warranty Deed conveying 8,712 square feet, more or less, of real 

estate located at 523 W 1st Street by Mikayla Leah Hageman, to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

approved and accepted, and the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause said Warranty Deed 

to be recorded with the Black Hawk County Recorder. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of January 2024. 

 
       

____________________________________________ 

Daniel Laudick, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________________ 

Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk 

164

Item 14.



 2 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Kim Kerr, CMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above and 

foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the 

City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

  

 

 

  

Kim Kerr, CMC 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

165

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 

  

 
  

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: December 21, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Grant Agreement: Black Hawk County Gaming Association 
  Community Natatorium Grant 

 
The City and School District have jointly operated and maintained the two junior high 
pools for over 40 years.  They are outdated and experiencing increased maintenance 
needs. A new community pool has been a collaborative planning effort for several years 
Recently, there have been a variety of actions related to the new pool. In September 
2023, the Council approved submitting two grants for the new high school pool (Gaming 
and the State of Iowa’s Community Attraction & Tourism grants).  In June 2023, Council 
passed Resolution 23,234 adopting a new 28E Agreement for Swimming Pool Use, 
Operation and Maintenance.  This resolution included City funding of $4,000,000 in 
FY24 and $4,000,000 FY25. The community natatorium is being built in two phases: 

 Phase 1 - building shell and associated site improvements of the sidewalks and 
parking lot (a contract has been signed, permit obtained, and work is underway) 

 Phase 2 is the pool and infrastructure to open and operate a functional pool (next 
phase, pending grants are obtained anticipate bidding in early 2024)  

The total project cost is estimated to be $21,200,000. 
 
A grant request for $900,000 was submitted to the Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association in October 2023.  Gaming recently awarded $500,000 to the project.  
Attached is the proposed funding agreement. 
 
A grant request to the State of Iowa’s Community Attraction & Tourism (CAT) Grant 
program is pending.  We anticipate hearing the outcome by March.  After we are 
notified, we will then be able to determine the scope of Phase 2 to fit within the funding 
secured.  The School District will bid and oversee completion of the pool project. 
 
Two goals in the adopted Council Goals, Work Program and Financial Plan for FY24 
are achieved with this project:  

2.C.3)c. Coordinate with CFCSD on the completion of the new Cedar Falls High 
School; identify local, county and state facilities, programs and property which 
can minimize duplication of services and 120 Item  

166

Item 15.



15. 5.C.13) Continue collaboration CFCSD on the development of plans for a 
new indoor community pool, co-located with the new Cedar Falls High School.  

 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council 
approve: 

1) The grant agreement with the Black Hawk County Gaming Association for the 
community natatorium project, and 

2) Authorize the Director of Community Development to electronically sign and 
submit the grant agreement. 

167

Item 15.



12/21/23, 2:22 PM Follow Up - Grant Lifecycle Manager

https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/FollowUp?request=10195963&submission=33603883&atRequestTabs=ContactTab 1/4

 FOLLOWUP PACKET   QUESTION LIST

If your organization information does not appear correct, please contact the funder. Thank you.

Due by 12/22/2023 12:00 AM CST.

Fields with an asterisk (*) are required.

Question Group

Project Name*

Community Natatorium

Amount Awarded

Follow Up
Community Natatorium
Process: FY24 - Fall

 PUBLIC PROFILE

Contact Info Request  Award Details Documents 3

Applicant:
Ms. Stephanie Houk Sheetz
stephanie.sheetz@cedarfalls.com
319-268-5151
220 Clay St.
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 Black Hawk Contact Email History
Organization:
City of Cedar Falls
42-6004332
319-273-8600
220 Clay St.
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 Black Hawk

 LOI  Application  Follow Up

500,000.00

168

Item 15.

https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/Print?submission=33603883
https://www.grantinterface.com/Form/Preview/QuestionList?urlkey=blackhawk&form=1075333&request=10195963
https://www.grantinterface.com/Connect/PublicProfile?taxId=42-6004332&request=10195963&organization=a0bc0437-f9c1-471b-9c04-ae513b06889b
https://www.grantinterface.com/User/Update/Index/1930849
https://www.grantinterface.com/User/Update/Index/1930849
https://www.grantinterface.com/Email/History?actor=d06355d5-53bd-4f46-aa66-048ca802a5bb
http://www.cedarfalls.com/
http://www.cedarfalls.com/
https://www.grantinterface.com/Organization/View?organization=a0bc0437-f9c1-471b-9c04-ae513b06889b
https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/ViewSubmissionSideBySide?viewSubmission=32586708
https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/ViewSubmissionSideBySide?viewSubmission=32602518


12/21/23, 2:22 PM Follow Up - Grant Lifecycle Manager

https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/FollowUp?request=10195963&submission=33603883&atRequestTabs=ContactTab 2/4

Total Project Budget

Upon acceptance of this grant the grantee agrees to the following:

GENERAL PROVISIONS*

Funds granted by the Black Hawk County Gaming Association shall be used by the grantee within 12
months of the o�cial public announcement, unless otherwise speci�ed or agreed to at the time of
the grant award, or by subsequent action of the Black Hawk County Gaming Association. Projects
must be started and completed on time and completed as presented. Failure to do so may be cause
for the Board to suspend future payments and demand refund of payments rendered. A request for
an extension must be submitted to the Black Hawk County Gaming Association in writing prior to the
expiration date specifying valid reasons.

I agree to the above

USE OF FUNDS*

This award is to be used exclusively for the purposes speci�ed in the grant, which may represent all,
or any of the projects(s) speci�ed in the grant application. It is further agreed that should the grant
project be altered subsequent to the award, including but not limited to content, description, total
project cost or percentage the award amount represents of the total cost, the grantee shall promptly
notify the Black Hawk County Gaming Association. The Board may change the award amount
depending upon the circumstances presented.

I agree to the above

GRANTEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT*

The Grantee will acknowledge the contribution of Black Hawk County Gaming Association to the
program or project wherever and whenever appropriate. This will include, but not be limited to news
releases, social media posts, construction signage, plaques for project sites, decals, brochure or
programs, etc. (For example: This program project made possible by funds contributed by the Black
Hawk County Gaming Association). Please submit copies of these acknowledgements to the Black
Hawk County Gaming Association—for more information please refer to the BHCGA Publicity Guide.

I agree to the above

TAX STATUS*

The grantee shall be a public entity or 501c3 tax exempt entity at the time of the award.

I agree to the above

5,700,000.00

169

Item 15.

https://bhcga.sharepoint.com/sites/FileShare/Shared%20Documents/Guidelines,%20Policies,%20Board%20Roles/Publicity%20Guide/Publicity%20Guide%202023.pdf


12/21/23, 2:22 PM Follow Up - Grant Lifecycle Manager

https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/FollowUp?request=10195963&submission=33603883&atRequestTabs=ContactTab 3/4

PAYMENT OF GRANT AWARD*

Grants made in the amount of $500,000 or less will be disbursed in two payments: 
1) 75% is paid a) within 30 business days following receipt of the Grant Agreement or b) the actual
start date of the Project, whichever occurs later. 
2) The remaining 25% will be paid within 30 business days following receipt of the Grant
Accountability Report. 

To receive the second payment, documentation of the expenditure of the funds, acceptable to Black
Hawk County Gaming Association must be submitted. If the grant is for capital or other purchased
services, invoices, or signed accepted bids/contracts, acceptable to Black Hawk County Gaming
Association must be submitted to obtain payment. If the grant covers consultant and or/contracted
services, submit a statement, acceptable to Black Hawk County Gaming Association, verifying that
the services were provided and itemizing the expense incurred. The billing must be signed by an
authorized agent of the organization and contain the grant number listed above. 

If unused funds remain outstanding, the Grantee will identify such in the Accountability Report and
the BHCGA will withhold the unused portion from the remaining balance of the grant. Otherwise,
unused funds are to be returned to the BHCGA upon submission of the Final Grant Report. 

I agree to the above

GRANT REPORTING*

Grantee shall maintain its books and records in a manner that provides the BHCGA with su�cient
detail to further review the Grantee’s expenditures relating to the Grant, even if the project is
conducted over multiple �scal years. The grantee shall make such records available for review by the
BHCGA upon reasonable notice during the grant period and two years from the date of the  Final
Grant Report. 

Upon completion of the project, the organization must submit a grant report through Foundant. On
the report, the organization is required to include a list of expenditures and proof of payment before
the �nal installment is released.

I agree to the above.

ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS*

This grant is conditional upon Grantee's acceptance of the terms and conditions set forth above. By
selecting the "I accept grant terms and conditions" below, Grantee agrees to accept and comply with
the stated terms and conditions of the grant. 

I accept Grant Terms and Conditions
I decline Grant Terms and Conditions

NAME AND TITLE OF INDIVIDUAL ENTERING AGREEMENT*

By typing in your name and title, you con�rm you are authorized to make legal contracts for the
Grantee and that you enter into this agreement by electronic means. 

170

Item 15.



12/21/23, 2:22 PM Follow Up - Grant Lifecycle Manager

https://www.grantinterface.com/Request/Submission/FollowUp?request=10195963&submission=33603883&atRequestTabs=ContactTab 4/4

SAVE FOLLOW UP  SUBMIT FOLLOW UP

GRANTEE SIGNATURE DATE*

Due by 12/22/2023 12:00 AM CST.

171

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 

www.cedarfalls.com MEMORANDUM 
 

Engineering Division 
 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 

FROM: Brett Armstrong, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 

DATE: January 2, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: Union Road Recreational Trail Project 
Project No. RT-000-3217 
Iowa DOT Project No. TAP-U-1185(654)—8I-07 
Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work 

 
Attached is the Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work Agreement for 
the Union Road Recreational Trail Project. This project is completed and ready for final 
acceptance of work. The attached Certificate of Statement of Completion and Final 
Acceptance of Work Agreement form must be approved by the City Council and signed 
by the Mayor. I am recommending proceeding with this approval. 

 
The Union Road Recreational Trail Project included placement of a new PCC trail along 
the East side of Union Road from W. 12th Street to W. 27th Street. 

 
The Union Road Recreational Trail Project has been completed in reasonable 
compliance with the project plans and specifications. I recommend that the city Council 
approve and accept this project. 

 

 
 

xc: David Wicke, P.E., 
Chase Schrage, P.E., Public Works Director 

Brett Armstrong, EI 

12/19/2023 

Date 

172

Item 16.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


City of Cedar Falls

Mayor

173

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Daniel Laudick and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 2nd, 2024 
 
 SUBJECT: 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3325 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Specifications and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

We recommend setting Tuesday, January 16, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project, and Friday, January 19, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. as the date 
and time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be 
published by Thursday, January 4, 2024. The Specifications will be ready for distribution 
to contractors on Wednesday, January 3, 2024, allowing for two (2) weeks of review 
before contract letting. 
 

This project consists of installing a cured in place liner within existing 8-inch diameter 
sewer lines in selected areas of the City. The total project involves approximately 2,873 
linear feet and 66 sewer service taps. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $141,109.00. The project 
will be funded by Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Sewer Rental Funds 
(SRF). 
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Specifications and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

174

Item 17.



1 

  
 

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 
FOR 

2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER 
REHABILITATION PROJECT 

PROJECT No. SA-000-3325  
  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
 
 

 
ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 
________________________________________ Date:  ________ 
           Iowa License No. 25684 
My license renewal date is December 31st, 2024. 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:  All  
 

 
 

 

12/21/2023

175

Item 17.



2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2 - 3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5 - 7 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 
 

01 Definition & Terms 8 
 02 Qualification of the Bidder 8 - 9  

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 9 
04 Taxes  9 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security               9 -10  
Form of Proposal 11 -12 
Bid Bond  13  
Bidder Status Form 14 - 15 

           Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 16 
Form of Contract 17 - 18 
Performance Bond 19 - 22 

 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

01 Award of Contract 23 
02 Availability of Site 23 
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 23 
04 Contract Time 24 
05 Weekly record of Working Days 24 
06 Liquidated Damages 24 
07 Progress Payments 24 
08 Pollution Prevention Plan 24-25 
09 Method of Measurement 26 
10 Basis of Payment 26 

176

Item 17.



3 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2023 edition of the Iowa “Statewide 
Urban Design and Specifications” (SUDAS) as the City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This “Standard Specification” is amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ 2023 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2023 edition of the Iowa “Statewide Urban 
Design and Specifications” (SUDAS). 

 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards   
 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 27 - 29 
 

2024 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Plan 
 
List of Locations  30 
 

 
DIVISION 5 – CDBG Funded    31 - 97 

A. Wage Determination (8 pages) 
B. CDBG Management Guide (58 Pages) 

a. Section 3 Addendum 
b. Civil Rights and Fair Housing Addendums 
c. Labor Standards Addendum 
d. Required Contract Language and Provisions 

C. Project Sign Board (1 Page) 
 

 

177

Item 17.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


4 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE 

2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 
IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimate of 

Cost for the construction of the 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project in said 

City at 7:00 p.m. on the 16th day of January 2024, said meeting to be held in the Council 

Chambers in the City Hall in said City. 

Said Plans, Specifications, and Form of Contract are now on file in the office of the 

City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected by any persons 

interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications or Contract or the cost of 

making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

                              

    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
    By: _______________________________ 
       Kim Kerr, CMC 
            City Clerk

178

Item 17.



5 

     

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 

IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

Time and Place for Filing Electronic Proposals: Electronic proposals will be received for 2024 CDBG Sanitary 
Sewer Rehabilitation Project online on QuestCDN until 10:00 a.m. on the 19th day of January 2024. 
 

Time and Place Electronic Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Electronic proposals will be opened 
and read online at 10:00 a.m. on the 19th day of January 2024 for consideration by the City of Cedar Falls 
City Council at its meeting at 7:00 p.m. on the 5th day of February 2024 or at such later time and place as 
may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves the right to reject any and all proposals including without 
limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
  

Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall commence 
within ten (10) calendar weeks after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed 
regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. The project must be completed by March 27th, 
2024.  
 

Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied by a proposal guaranty in QuestCDN as defined 
in Division 1 Section 05.  
 

Contract Documents: The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN and  
www.questCDN.com. This contract is QuestCDN project number 8891383. A contractor may view the 
contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder. To be considered a Planholder for 
bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com. Registering as a planholder is recommended for all 
prime contractors and subcontractors as Planholders will receive automatic notice of addenda and other 
contract document updates via QuestCDN. Contact QuestCDNCustomer Support at (952)233-1632 or 
info@questcdn.com for assistance in membership registration, downloading digital project information and 
vBid online bid submittal questions. Bids will only be received and accepted via the online electronic bid 
service through QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and 
click on the online bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page. Prospective bidders must be on the 
Planholder list through QuestCDN for bids to be accepted.  
  
Downloading electronic contract documents is strongly encouraged, but hard copies of the project 
documents may be obtained from the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 at  
no cost. Those desiring to obtain hard copies must make an appointment to pick up the documents by calling 
319-268-5161 and ask for Melissa Malone. No drop-ins will be allowed.  
 
Below is a link to the televised sanitary sewer line videos and reports.  
  
https://cityofcedarfalls.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/CedarFallsEngineering-PublicAccess/ErM7EEq4IjhKjX_g3GU7mzsBrG-
QifzN0St7P34ik1-_fw?e=yldfAX 
 

 
If any prospective bidder is in doubt as the true meaning of any parts of the contract documents, the  
bidder may request an interpretation from the Water Reclamation Manager or Engineer, in writing, through 
email. Questions received less than five (5) days prior to the date for opening bids may not be answered. 
 
Contact individual(s) are as follows: 
Tyler Griffin 
tyler.griffin@cedarfalls.com 

179

Item 17.

https://cityofcedarfalls.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/CedarFallsEngineering-PublicAccess/ErM7EEq4IjhKjX_g3GU7mzsBrG-QifzN0St7P34ik1-_fw?e=yldfAX
https://cityofcedarfalls.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/CedarFallsEngineering-PublicAccess/ErM7EEq4IjhKjX_g3GU7mzsBrG-QifzN0St7P34ik1-_fw?e=yldfAX
mailto:tyler.griffin@cedarfalls.com


6 

(319) 273-8633 
Water Reclamation Manager 
 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 

Preference for Iowa Products and Labor: The Contractor shall give preference to Iowa domestic labor in the 

construction or building of such public improvement or works in accordance with Section 73 of the Code of 
Iowa. 
 

Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption Certification to 
purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of this project. Products 
utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Iowa Code Sections 423.2 
and 423.45. 
 
CDBG Funded: This project is being funded in part by Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) dollars 
originating from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  Therefore, this 
project is subject to federal labor standard requirements, including Davis Bacon-Act (federal prevailing wage 
requirements for laborers and mechanics on site) and HUD Section 3 Hiring (low-income persons 
employment) provisions.  Bidders should submit completed and signed “Intent to Comply with Section 3 
Requirements” form as part of their bid documentation.  The Intent to Comply form as well as details on other 
federal requirements, including prevailing wage rates, are included in the Specifications. 
 
Section 3 Language for Procurement Documents:  

A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of section 3 of the 
Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (section 3). The 
purpose of section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by 
HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, 
be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD 
assistance for housing. 

 
B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135, which 

implement section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to this contract 
certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent them from 
complying with the part 135 regulations. 

 
C. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the 

contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the 
labor organization or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under this section 3 
clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both 
employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. The notice shall 
describe the section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, 
availability of apprenticeship and training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and 
location of the person(s) taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the 
work shall begin. 

 
D. The contractor agrees to include this section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with 

regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable 
provision of the subcontract or in this section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in 
violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any 
subcontractor where the contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in 

180

Item 17.



7 

violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 
 
E. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are 

filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) with persons 
other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR part 135 require employment opportunities to be 
directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 

 
F. Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, termination of this 

contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts. 
 
G. With respect to work performed in connection with section 3 covered Indian housing assistance, 

section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also 
applies to the work to be performed under this contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest 
extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, 
and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations 
and Indian-owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that are subject to the provisions of 
section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in 
derogation of compliance with section 7(b). 

 
Section 3 Businesses are encouraged to respond to this proposal.  A Section 3 business is a business that 
is: 
 

51% owned by Section 3 residents* 
 
Whose permanent, full-time staff is comprised of at least 30% Section 3 residents* 
 
Has committed 25% of the dollar amount of its subcontracts to Section 3 businesses 
 

*A Section 3 resident is defined as a public housing resident or someone with a household income that is 
less than 80% of the area median income. 
 
Businesses that believe they meet the Section 3 criteria are encouraged to register as a Section 3 Business 
through HUD’s website: https://portalapps.hud.gov/Sec3BusReg/BRegistry/RegisterBusiness  
 
Project Description: This work shall consist of furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8-
inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the contract documents. Total 
project involves approximately 2,873 linear feet and 66 service taps. A complete list of sewers to be 
rehabilitated and TV inspection reports for most lines are available.  Contractors may wish to perform their 
own evaluation prior to the bid. 

 
Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
      BY: __________________________ 
                Kim Kerr, CMC 

    City Clerk  

 
 

 

181

Item 17.



8 

DIVISION I – Instruction to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project shall be constructed in 
accordance with the 2023 edition of the Iowa “SUDAS” and as further modified by the City of Cedar 
Falls’ 2023 Supplemental Specifications and the special provisions included in the contract 
documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said Standard 
Specifications.  
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General Provisions and 
Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, bonding, contract execution, 
and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all documents have been completed properly; as 
failure to complete and sign all documents and to comply with the requirements listed below can 
cause your bid not to be read. 
 
01 Definition & Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative. 
 
Project Manager: The Water Reclamation Manager of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized 
representative.  
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project: 2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project; Project No. SA-000-3325 
 

02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners request, 
bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years engaged in the 
contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the state where incorporated; A 
list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to evaluate if the bidder can complete the 
work in accordance with the bidding documents; A financial statement of the bidder showing that the 
bidder has the financial resources to meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s 
performance record giving the description, location, and telephone number of similar projects 
constructed in a satisfactory manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the 
approximate contract amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which 
resulted in lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not 
the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A list of 

182

Item 17.



9 

officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous firms, were 
associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed for bankruptcy; The 
technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in responsible charge of the work 
stating whether the personnel have or have not performed satisfactorily on other contracts of like 
nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at similar rate of progress; Such additional 
information as will assist the Owner in determining whether the bidder is adequately prepared to 
fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract entered into 
pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity 
to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of 
race, color or national origin in consideration for an award. 
 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained electronically online with QuestCDN, 
project number 8891383 Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk.  
 

Downloading electronic contract documents is strongly encouraged, but hard copies of the project 
documents may be obtained from the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 at  
no cost. Those desiring to obtain hard copies must make an appointment to pick up the documents 
by calling 319-268-5161 and ask for Melissa Malone. No drop-ins will be allowed. 
 
Below is a link to the televised sanitary sewer line videos and reports. 
  
https://cityofcedarfalls.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/CedarFallsEngineering-
PublicAccess/ErM7EEq4IjhKjX_g3GU7mzsBrG-QifzN0St7P34ik1-_fw?e=yldfAX 
 
04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption Certification to 
purchase building materials, supplies or equipment in the performance of this project. Products 
utilized in the construction of this project will be exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa 
Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder & Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all add 
alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates).  Bid security shall be in the form of a 
cashier’s check, a certified check, or a bank money order drawn on a FDIC insured bank in Iowa 

183

Item 17.

https://cityofcedarfalls.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/CedarFallsEngineering-PublicAccess/ErM7EEq4IjhKjX_g3GU7mzsBrG-QifzN0St7P34ik1-_fw?e=yldfAX
https://cityofcedarfalls.sharepoint.com/:f:/s/CedarFallsEngineering-PublicAccess/ErM7EEq4IjhKjX_g3GU7mzsBrG-QifzN0St7P34ik1-_fw?e=yldfAX


10 

or drawn on a FDIC insured bank chartered under the laws of the United States; or a certified 
share draft drawn on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United States; or a 
bid bond executed by a corporation authorized to contract as a surety in Iowa or satisfactory to the 
Jurisdiction.  The bid bond must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid 
bond forms are acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; 
facsimile (fax) of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid 
bond shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by persons, 
firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable bid security. 
 
The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer printed 
proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. The bidder 
shall not alter the quantity, unit price, or the extension that has been provided for items that have 
been predetermined by the contracting authority. 
 
If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of Proposal,” 
followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and the bidder's name. 
The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and units and their quantities. The 
bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and cents for all pay items, the extensions for 
the respective unit prices and quantities in figures in a column provided for the purpose, and the 
total amount of the proposal obtained by adding the amounts of the several items. The form shall 
then conclude with the bidder's name, that of its representative and the representative's signature. 
 
The computer-generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included herewith, 
which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name of the bidder and its 
official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, and title. Also the total bid shall 
be completed with the entry of "see attached." 
 
The Proposal shall be submitted on QuestCDN project number 8891383 separate from the Bid 
Security, Bidder Status Form, and the Non-Collusion Affidavit.  
   

 

184

Item 17.



11 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
PROJECT NO. SA-000-3325 

 
To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that _________________________ have personally and carefully 

examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract annexed hereto.  Having 

made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to construct the improvements for the 

2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the plans and 

specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the published Notice to Bidders and the Form of 

Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of 

final acceptance thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

Item 
No. 

Item Code Description 
Item Quantity 

and Units 

Unit Price Amount 

Dollars Cents Dollars Cents 

1 4050-108-A-0 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch   2,873 LF     

2 
4050-108-B-0 

 
Building Sanitary Sewer 
Service Reconnection 

66 Each     

3 
4050-108-B-0 

 
Grouting Service Laterals 66 Each     

4 11020-108-A-0 Mobilization 1 LS     

Total Bid   

 
 
 
Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items constitute 
one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. Bids shall be submitted for all of the items. The 
successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit a 
bid on any item shall be just cause for disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled 

185

Item 17.



12 

in ink, typed or computer generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to 
delete any part or all of any item. 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further reserves the right to reject the 
bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to be non-responsible. The 
Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the Owner believes that it would not be in the best 
interest of the project to make an award to that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive 
all informalities not involving price time or changes in the work. 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned within 
thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this bid is 
withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the prescribed form and 
furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the Contract is presented to him for 
signature, and start work within ten (10) calendar days after "Notice to Proceed" is issued. 
 

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
 

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 

Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
Addendum No.  ______________     Date _____________ 
 

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 1001. 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  

 

 
 

186

Item 17.



13 

BID BOND 
PROJECT NO. SA-000-3325 

 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, 
and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying 
bid dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for 
______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and 

shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing 
labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement 
created by the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of 
this obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates, and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                                  Attorney-in-fact 

                
 
 
 
 

187

Item 17.



14 

 
 
 

188

Item 17.



15 

 
 
 
 
 

189

Item 17.



16 

    NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER           
 PROJECT NO. SA-000-3325 

 
 
STATE OF _______________________  

                           ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________          
  (owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)   Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees or 
parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the Contract 
for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Contract, or has 
in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or conference with any 
other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other Bidder, or, to fix any 
overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any 
person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)   The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me. 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________. 

 
 

190

Item 17.



17 

 

FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2024, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the Owner, 

and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials, and equipment and 

construct the public improvement consisting of:  2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER 

REHABILITATION PROJECT; PROJECT NO. SA-000-3325 all in the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

Resolution duly passed on the 18th day of December, 2023 and shown and described in the 

Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said 2024 CDBG SANITARY 

SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract 

as fully as though set out herein verbatim: 

a. Resolution of Necessity 
b. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
c. Plans 
d. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
e. Notice to Bidders 
f. Instructions to Bidders 
g. Supplemental Conditions 
h. General Conditions 
i. Project Specifications 
j. Form of Proposal 
k. Performance Bond 
l. Maintenance Bond 
m. Form of Contract 

191

Item 17.



18 

n. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
o. Bidder Status Form 
 

On completion of the said improvement, the Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor the prices 

set out in the Form of Proposal of the Contractor, said payment to be made in the manner 

stated in the published Notice to Bidders. 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first herein 

written.   

 
 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

   Daniel Laudick, Mayor City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Kim Kerr, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

192

Item 17.



19 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.           

 

 

 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

  

 That we, __________________________, as Principal (hereinafter the “Contractor” or “Principal” and 

____________________________________________________ as Surety are held and firmly bound unto CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who may be 

injured by any breach of any of the conditions of this Bond in the penal sum of 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

($_______________), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, 

we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these presents. 

  

 The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner, bearing date the _______ day of __________, 2024, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 

undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 

2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 
PROJECT No. SA-000-3325 

 
and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a good 

and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.   
 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 

part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 
 
1. PERFORMANCE:  The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by   each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a part 

hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner from all 

outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to perform as 

required.  The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as required under the 

Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or employees furnishing 

materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 
     
 2. PAYMENT:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted by 

persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 

performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims for 

all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and tools, 

consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of the 

portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but the 

Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of said 

claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law.  The 

Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 573 of 

the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 
     
    3. MAINTENANCE:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed under 

the Contract within the period of   2   year (s) from the date of acceptance of the work 

193

Item 17.



20 

under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in construction of 

said work; 

 

   B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 

   C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 

Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 

 4. GENERAL:  Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 

   A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 

Contract; 

 

   B.  To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which thereby 

increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all such changes 

do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total contract price, and 

that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and  

 

    C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the Contract 

is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an extension 

thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the liquidated 

damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 
        D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to     less than 

five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this Bond. 
     
        E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way but 

shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 

interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 

would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 

rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of the 

Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 

Owner.  It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 

claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in the 

Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the Contract 

and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be fulfilled, and that 

the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position it would have been in 

had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 
     

In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim as 

to which the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement of the 

promises given by the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved change 

orders, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in this Bond, 

194

Item 17.



21 

the Contractor and Surety agree that they will make the Owner whole for all such outlay and 

expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under this bond shall not exceed 125% of the 

penal sum of this bond. 

  

In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue thereof 

shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, State of Iowa.  If legal action is required by the Owner 

to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of the Owner, the 

Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred therefor by 

the Owner.  All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and not alternative and 

shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law.  The Owner may proceed against 

surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the Contractor or whether Contractor 

is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 

promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 

then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this Bond, 

the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract Documents, it 

shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not defined in the 

Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction 

industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be interpreted or 

construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 

hereunder.  The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

 

 

195

Item 17.



22 

         Project No. SA-000-3325 

 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this _______ day of ____________, 2024. 

 

  Surety Countersigned By:                                PRINCIPAL: 

 

     ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
      Signature of Agent                 Contractor 

  

 

 By:    _________________________________  

                                      Signature 

     ___________________________________                   _________________________________          

                  Printed Name of Agent                       Title 

 

 ___________________________________  SURETY: 
                          Company Name           

 

 ___________________________________                   _________________________________ 
                        Company Address                                       Surety Company 

 

 ___________________________________   By:    _________________________________ 
                        City, State, Zip Code                                             Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 

 ______________________________________    ____________________________________ 
                  Company Telephone Number                               Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 

                                                                                            _________________________________ 
                            Company Name 

 

                                                                                         _________________________________ 
                                                Company Address 

  FORM APPROVED BY: 

                                                                                                             _________________________________ 
                     City, State, Zip Code 

 

 ________________________________________________   _____________________________________________ 

                         Attorney for Owner                                                              Company Telephone Number 

 

 

 

NOTE: 

  

 1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 

 2.  This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

 3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

 4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 
 
 
 
 

196

Item 17.



23 

 
 
 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the “SUDAS” Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The lowest responsive bidder will be required to furnish a performance, payment, and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of two 
(2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor will be required to coordinate all work 
operations with the Department of Community development, City project contractors, and / or 
others involved with, but not limited to, the following events: 
 

1) Public Works garbage collection operations 
2) Public Works snow clearing operations 
2) Cedar Falls Util. Co. electrical, communications, gas & water main projects 

 
03 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01: 
 
The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than fifty (50%) 
percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. An item designated as a specialty 
item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as performed 
by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the amount of work 
required by the Contractor's organization. 
 

04 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 

197

Item 17.



24 

The work under the proposed contract shall commence within ten (10) calendar weeks after 
the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly and 
diligently throughout the duration of the project. There is no specified number of allotted 
working days for this contract; however, much of this work is in conjunction with street 
reconstruction or resurfacing. To minimize conflicts, and avoid encountering a situation that 
may require a possible spot repair under a newly laid street, Contractor should plan to finish 
by March 27th, 2024 
 
05 Weekly Record of Working Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset.  
 
06 Liquidated Damages 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 
Liquidated damages in the amount of $1,000 dollars per working day will be assessed for 
each working day that the work remains uncompleted after the expiration of the contract time.  
 
07 Progress Payments 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the first (1st) and third (3rd) 
Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment for the work may be made in three parts, if requested by the Contractor.  The 
Contractor may request from the Owner a progress payment when the job is 33% complete 
and another when the job is 66% complete. Final payment will be made upon satisfactory 
completion of this contract.  Payment will be in accordance with the prices set forth in the 
proposal for the quantity of work performed.  This shall include any additional expenses 
preapproved by the Owner. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain ten (10) percent of the project cost from the 
last payment for a period of ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, 
unless satisfied that material and laborers have been paid for in full. 
 
08 Pollution Prevention Plan 
 
1. Project Description 
 

This work shall consist furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 inch 

198

Item 17.



25 

diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with the contract 
documents. Total project involves approximately 2,873 feet of lining and 66 service taps. 
This project encompasses multiple locations within the city.   

 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 
 
All contractors and subcontractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent 
contamination of storm water runoff, groundwater, and soils by hazardous material and / or 
pollutants caused by their operations or encountered in their work. All waste materials and 
supplies must be removed from the site(s). If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on any site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 

1. Execute Contractor’s part of the pollution prevention plan as described. 
 

2. Conduct all work activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 
stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs with 
no additional cost to the Owner. 
 

 3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control measures 
that may be needed during construction. 

 
3. Certification Statement  
 

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION 
 
The contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions of 
the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that authorizes 
the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the construction site as part 
of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract for this work, the contractor 
understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with the owner(s) and other 
contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural Resources NPDES 
General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with Industrial Activity for 
Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the contractor understands that 
they and their company are legally required under the Clean Water Act and the Code of Iowa, 
to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the Storm Pollution Prevention Plan 
developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of this NPDES permit. 
 

199

Item 17.



26 

09 METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 
The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the 2024 CDBG SANITARY SEWER 
REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the 2023 edition of the Iowa “Statewide 
Urban Design and Specifications” (SUDAS) for public improvements and as further modified 
by the City of Cedar Falls’ 2023 Supplemental Specifications, except as amended or 
supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 3 – Grouting Service Laterals 
The number of grouting service laterals will be measured on a per each location basis.  
 
10  BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement will be determined by multiplying 
the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit price as bid on 
the proposal form in accordance with the 2023 edition of the Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN 
DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ 2023 
Supplemental Specifications to the 2023 edition of the Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN 
AND  SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended or supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 3 – Grouting Service Laterals 
The Contractor will be paid the contract unit price per each measured.  

 

200

Item 17.



27 

DIVISION 4 - SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the 2024 CDBG 
SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT in accordance with the 2023 Edition of the 
Iowa “STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS) as amended by the 
City of Cedar Falls’ 2023 Supplemental Specifications to the 2023 edition of the Iowa 
“STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS” (SUDAS), except as amended or 
supplemented as follows: 
 
Item No. 1 – Pipe Lining, 8 Inch 
 
Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid items. 
Any preparatory work, including cleaning, televising and protruding tap removal, along with 
any necessary bypassing of sewage shall be incidental the bid items. The cleanup of the work 
site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of surfaces such as paving, seeding, 
sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged.  
 
Follow SUDAS 4050, 2.03 for Cured-In-Place Pipe (CIPP) Main Lining specifications. Follow 
guidance from ASTM F1216 with regards to gravity pipe conditions.  
 
Water-tight end seals are required. Sealing is incidental to lining. The Contractor is 
responsible for using one or more of the following methods to achieve a watertight seal at both 
ends of the liner: 
 
 1. Install gasketed stainless steel bands (LMK or pre-approved equal) inside each end 
of the host pipe prior to lining. This method shall be the only acceptable method for pipes 18” 
or larger in diameter, or those subject to hydrostatic pressure (ground water table) at any time 
of the year. 
  
 2. Apply a hydrophilic sealing material (Hydrotite or pre-approved equal) 360 degrees 
inside the circumference of the host pipe at each end.   
 
 3. Chemical pressure grout between the exterior of the pipe and annulus of the liner 
after lining at the manhole.   
 
The Contractor shall provide liner "coupon" specimens for testing to the Owner after 
installation.  The Owner will pay all expenses for the testing of these specimens.  The cost of 
retests made necessary by the failure of the samples of specimens to meet the specified 
requirements shall be paid for by the Contractor. Any liner installed failing this test shall be 
replaced at the Contractor’s expense. 
 

201

Item 17.



28 

The Contractor shall furnish a general purpose felt/unsaturated polyester resin and catalyst 
system that meets ASTM Test Procedures D-638 and D-790 and the finished formed physical 
strengths specified herein. The Formed liner shall conform to the minimum structural 
standards as listed below: 
 

Physical Characteristics Test Procedure Pipe Material Felt/Resin 

Tensile Strength ASTM D-638 3000 psi 

Tensile Modulus ASTM D-638 300000 psi 

 
If, due to broken or offset pipe at the manhole wall, the pipe liner fails to make a tight seal, the 
Contractor shall apply a seal at that point.  The seal shall be of a resin mixture compatible with 
the liner pipe material. 
 
After insertion is completed, the Contractor shall supply suitable heat source equipment.  The 
equipment shall be capable of delivering the appropriate heat source through the lining section 
to uniformly raise the temperature to effect forming of the cured-in-place liner.  This 
temperature shall be determined by the system employed. 
 
Any steam for processing shall utilize monitoring methods and forming period as 
recommended by the liner manufacturer. If water is utilized, the water temperature in the line 
during the forming period shall be as recommended by the liner manufacturer. 
 
If the liner fails to form, the Contractor shall remove the failed liner and replace it with a new 
liner.  This work shall be performed without additional cost to Owner. 
 
Any defects which will affect in the foreseeable future or warranty period, the integrity or 
strength of the liner pipe shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense.  Allowance shall be 
given for excess pipe (rib) when the cross-sectional area has been reduced due to offset 
joints, partial collapse, out of round sections, etc. 
 
Item No. 2 – Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconnection 
 

Traffic control as per I.D.O.T. Specification Section 2528.12 shall be incidental to bid items. 
The cleanup of the work site is incidental to the bid items including maintenance of surfaces 
such as paving, seeding, sodding and graveling, as needed, if damaged.  
 
After the pipe liner has been formed in place, the Contractor shall reconnect the existing active 
service connections as designated by the Owner.  This shall be done without excavation, and 
in the case of non-man entry pipes, from the interior of the pipeline by means of a television 
camera and a cutting device that re-establishes the service connections to not less than 90 
percent capacity.  The CCTV inspection of the formed liner shall show a "dimple effect", which 
is an indication that there is a tight fit of the liner against the host pipe.  If this is not the case, 
the liner must be reprocessed until there is a good definition of a "dimple" at the service 
connection, before reconnecting the service connection.  

202

Item 17.



29 

Item No. 3 – Grouting of Service Lines 
 
Chemical grouting equipment shall consist of a closed-circuit television system, necessary 
chemical sealant containers, pumps, regulators, valves, hoses, etc., and lateral connection 
sealing packers for the various sizes of sewer pipes. 
 
Grout packer shall be cylindrical and have a diameter less than the pipe size and have 
cables attached at each end to pull it through the line.  The same equipment shall be used 
for both testing and sealing sewer lateral connections.  The packer shall contain a lateral 
sealing inversion tube.  This tube should be designed to accommodate two sizes of 
laterals, 4” and 6” diameters.  The inversion tubes are one length to facilitate sealing of 
approximately 2’ of the lateral. 
 
Sewer main shall be televised before service line is grouted; testing of grouted service will 
also be televised. 
 
The chemical grout shall be a type which has a documented record of satisfactory 
performance in sewer usage.  All grouting materials shall be delivered to the job site in the 
original, labeled, and unopened containers.  Grouts shall be Acrylic base gel chemical 
sealing material – Avanti AV-100 or equal.   
 
Laterals shall be air tested by isolating the area to be tested with the packer and applying 
positive pressure into the isolated “void” area.  The test procedure will consist of applying 
air pressure into each isolated void area.  The packer ends will be inflated to isolate the 
lateral and insert and inflatable inversion tube.  The lateral shall be tested with a gauge 
pressure of one-half (1/2) psi. per foot of depth of sewer or a minimum of four (4) psi., 
whichever is larger.  The void pressure will be observed during this test for a minimum of 
10 seconds.  If the void pressure drop is greater than 1 psi in 10 seconds, the lateral is 
considered to have failed the air test.  If no pressure can be built up, the connection will 
also have failed the test.  Any connection failing the test shall be sealed and retested 
utilizing the same method and procedures until it does pass the test.  The cost of retesting 
lateral connections shall be considered incidental and included in the cost of sealing 
sanitary sewer lateral connection. 
 
 
 

203

Item 17.



30 

 

 

2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation List 
ID Street Length Taps Description 

Line Size 
(Inches) 

Main ID 

1 Calumett 303 10 800 Blk, MH 64 (7'1"), to MH 65 (8'4") 8 313 

2 Calumett 349 8 900 Blk, MH 65 (8'4") to MH 63 (8'6") 8 305 

3 Colorado 116 3 200 Blk, MH 554 (5'9") to MH 555 (5'11") 8 262 

4 Colorado 283 5 300 Blk, MH 555 (5'11") to MH 1266 (8'0") 8 1899 

5 Colorado 282 3 300 Blk, MH 1266 (8'0") to MH 1267 (8'4") 8 1898 

6 Lilac 363 10 700 Blk, MH 1642 (7'0") to MH 68 (6'4") 8 307 

7 Lilac 353 10 800 Blk, MH 67 (7'6") to MH 68 (6'8") 8 314 

8 Lilac 308 9 1000 Blk, MH 62 (7'8") to MH (7'6") 8 303 

9 Pridemore 202 0 3300 Blk, MH 3089 (8'7") to MH 3090 (8'9") 8 1866 

10 Tremont 314 8 2500 Blk, MH 2855 () to MH 2856 () 8 1393 

Totals 2873 66  

204

Item 17.



          "General Decision Number: IA20230081 02/24/2023

State: Iowa

Construction Types: Heavy and Highway

Counties: Adair, Adams, Allamakee, Appanoose, Audubon, 
Benton, Black Hawk, Boone, Bremer, Buchanan, Buena Vista, 
Butler, Calhoun, Carroll, Cass, Cedar, Cerro Gordo, Cherokee, 
Chickasaw, Clarke, Clay, Clayton, Clinton, Crawford, Dallas, 
Davis, Decatur, Delaware, Des Moines, Dickinson, Dubuque, 
Emmet, Fayette, Floyd, Franklin, Fremont, Greene, Grundy, 
Guthrie, Hamilton, Hancock, Hardin, Harrison, Henry, Howard, 
Humboldt, Ida, Iowa, Jackson, Jasper, Jefferson, Johnson, 
Jones, Keokuk, Kossuth, Lee, Linn, Louisa, Lucas, Lyon, 
Madison, Mahaska, Marion, Marshall, Mills, Mitchell, Monona, 
Monroe, Montgomery, Muscatine, O'Brien, Osceola, Page, Palo 
Alto, Plymouth, Pocahontas, Polk, Pottawattamie, Poweshiek, 
Ringgold, Sac, Shelby, Sioux, Story, Tama, Taylor, Union, Van 
Buren, Wapello, Warren, Washington, Wayne, Webster, Winnebago, 
Winneshiek, Woodbury, Worth and Wright Counties in Iowa.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS and HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS
Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally
required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate
required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658.
Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered
contracts entered into by the federal government that are
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to
contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts,
including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60).

______________________________________________________________

|If the contract is entered    |� Executive Order 14026      |
|into on or after January 30,  |  generally applies to the   |
|2022, or the contract is      |  contract.                  |

|renewed or extended (e.g., an |� The contractor must pay    |
|option is exercised) on or    |  all covered workers at     |
|after January 30, 2022:       |  least $16.20 per hour (or  |
|                              |  the applicable wage rate   |
|                              |  listed on this wage        |
|                              |  determination, if it is    |
|                              |  higher) for all hours      |
|                              |  spent performing on the    |
|                              |  contract in 2023.          |
|______________________________|_____________________________|

|If the contract was awarded on|� Executive Order 13658      |
|or between January 1, 2015 and|  generally applies to the   |
|January 29, 2022, and the     |  contract.                  |

|contract is not renewed or    |� The contractor must pay all|
|extended on or after January  |  covered workers at least   |
|30, 2022:                     |  $12.15 per hour (or the    |
|                              |  applicable wage rate listed|
|                              |  on this wage determination,|
|                              |  if it is higher) for all   |
|                              |  hours performing on that   |
|                              |  contract in 2023.          |
|______________________________|_____________________________|

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be
205

Item 17.



adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the
Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for
performance of work on the contract does not appear on this
wage determination, the contractor must still submit a
conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker
protections under the Executive Orders is available at
http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number     Publication Date
          0              02/24/2023

  SUIA2023-001 02/01/2023

                                  Rates          Fringes

BRICKLAYER (BRICKLAYER/STONE   
MASON)  
     ZONE 1......................$ 34.00            17.62
     ZONE 2......................$ 34.00            17.62
     ZONE 3......................$ 34.00            17.62
     ZONE 4......................$ 32.75            16.09
     ZONE 5......................$ 29.65            16.09

Carpenter & Piledrivermen  
     ZONE 1......................$ 31.27            15.83
     ZONE 2......................$ 29.80            15.98
     ZONE 3......................$ 29.68            15.98
     ZONE 4......................$ 29.20            13.30
     ZONE 5**....................$ 28.15            11.70

CONCRETE FINISHER  
     ZONE 1......................$ 29.55            13.10
     ZONE 2......................$ 29.55            13.10
     ZONE 3......................$ 29.55            13.10
     ZONE 4......................$ 27.70             9.20
     ZONE 5......................$ 26.65             9.20

ELECTRICIAN (STREET AND   
HIGHWAY LIGHTING AND TRAFFIC   
SIGNALS)  
     ZONE 1, 2, AND 3............$ 36.40            14.80
     ZONE 4......................$ 35.10            13.80
     ZONE 5......................$ 33.45            13.05

IRONWORKER (SETTING OF   
STRUCTURAL STEEL)  
     ZONE 1......................$ 32.25            14.85
     ZONE 2......................$ 30.16            15.30
     ZONE 3......................$ 30.16            15.45
     ZONE 4......................$ 28.00            14.50
     ZONE 5**....................$ 26.15            13.70

LABORER  
     ZONE 1, 2  AND 3
      GROUP A....................$ 24.82            12.01
      GROUP AA...................$ 27.20            12.01
      GROUP B....................$ 22.97            12.01
      GROUP C....................$ 19.89            12.01
     ZONE 4

206

Item 17.



      GROUP A....................$ 23.12            11.32
      GROUP AA...................$ 25.12            11.32
      GROUP B....................$ 21.55            11.32
      GROUP C....................$ 18.92            11.32
     ZONE 5
      GROUP A....................$ 23.52             9.87
      GROUP AA...................$ 25.52             9.87
      GROUP B....................$ 20.78             9.87
      GROUP C....................$ 19.93             9.87

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR  
     ZONE 1
      GROUP A....................$ 35.50            16.50
      GROUP B....................$ 33.95            16.50
      GROUP C....................$ 31.45            16.50
      GROUP D....................$ 31.45            16.50
     ZONE 2
      GROUP A....................$ 35.30            16.50
      GROUP B....................$ 33.70            16.50
      GROUP C....................$ 31.15            16.50
      GROUP D....................$ 31.15            16.50
     ZONE 3
      GROUP A....................$ 32.50            28.20
      GROUP B....................$ 30.70            28.20
      GROUP C....................$ 29.70            28.20
      GROUP D....................$ 29.70            28.20
     ZONE 4
      GROUP A....................$ 32.85            16.95
      GROUP B....................$ 31.71            16.95
      GROUP C....................$ 29.63            16.95
      GROUP D....................$ 29.63            16.95
     ZONE 5
      GROUP A....................$ 30.87            13.25
      GROUP B....................$ 29.83            13.25
      GROUP C....................$ 28.10            13.25
      GROUP D....................$ 27.10            13.25

TRUCK DRIVER (AND PAVEMENT   
MARKING DRIVER/SWITCHPERSON)  
     ZONE 1......................$ 26.26            12.59
     ZONE 2
.................................$ 26.26            12.59
     ZONE 3......................$ 26.26            12.59
     ZONE 4......................$ 26.26             9.04
     ZONE 5
.................................$ 24.50             9.04

ZONE DEFINITIONS
  ZONE 1 The Counties of Polk, Warren, and Dallas for all
  Crafts, and Linn County Carpenters only.
  ZONE 2 The Counties of Dubuque for all Crafts and Linn County
  for all Crafts except Carpenters.
  ZONE 3 The Cities of Burlington (including West Burlington),
  Clinton, Fort Madison, Keokuk, and Middleton (including the
  Iowa Army Ammunition Plant) and Muscatine (and abutting
  municipalities of any such cities).
  ZONE 4 Story, Black Hawk, Cedar, Jasper, Jones, Jackson,
  Louisa, Madison, and Marion Counties; Clinton County
  (except the City of Clinton), Johnson County, Muscatine
  County (except the City of Muscatine), the City of Council
  Bluffs, Lee County and Des Moines County.
ZONE 5 All areas of the state not listed above.

207

Item 17.



LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS - ALL ZONES
  GROUP AA  - Skilled pipelayer (sewer, water, and conduits)
  and tunnel laborers; asbestos abatement worker

  GROUP A - Carpenter tender on bridges and box culverts; CCTV*
  sewer inspection operator; curb machine (without a seat);
  deck hand; diamond & core drills; drill operator on air
  tracs, wagon drills, and similar drills; form
  setter/stringman on paving work; gunnite nozzleman; joint
  sealer kettleman; laser operator; mason tender
  (brick/stone), powderman tender; powderman/blaster; sign
  erector; saw operator; {(Zones 4 and 5) Skilled pipelayer
  (sewer, water, and conduits); tunnel laborer; asbestos
  abatement worker}. *new labor classification (CCTV: closed
  circuit television)

  GROUP B - Air, gas, electric tool operator; barco hammer;
  carpenter tender; caulker; chain sawman; compressor (under
  400 cfm); concrete finisher tender; concrete processing
  materials and monitors; cutting torch on demolition; drill
  tender; dumpmen; electric drills; fence erectors; form line
  expansion joint assembler; form tamper; general laborer;
  grade checker; handling and placing metal mesh, dowel bars,
  reinforcing bars and chairs; hot asphalt laborer;
  installing temporary traffic control devices;
  jackhammerman; mechanical grouter; painter (all except
  stripers); paving breaker; planting trees, shrubs and
  flowers; power broom (not self-propelled); power buggyman;
  rakers; rodman (tying reinforcing steel); sandblaster;
  seeding and mulching; sewer utility topman/bottom man;
  spaders; stressor or stretcherman on pre or post tensioned
  concrete; stringman on re/surfacing/no grade control;
  swinging stage, tagline, or block and tackle; tampers;
  timberman; tool room men and checkers; tree climber; tree
  groundman; underpinning and shoring caissons over twelve
  feet deep; vibrators; walk behind trencher; walk behind
  paint stripers; walk behind vibrating compactor; water
  pumps (under three inch); work from bosun chair.

  GROUP C - Scale weigh person; traffic control/flagger,
  surveillance or monitor; water carrier.

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR CLASSIFICATIONS - ALL ZONES
  GROUP A -  All terrain (off road) forklift; asphalt breakdown
  roller (vibratory); asphalt laydown machine; asphalt plant;
  asphalt screed; bulldozer (finish); central mix plant;
  concrete pump; crane; crawler tractor pulling scraper;
  directional drill (60,000 (lbs) pullback and above);
  dragline and power shovel; dredge engineer; excavator (over

� cu. yd.); front end loader (4 cy and over); horizontal
  boring machine; master mechanic; milling machine (over 350
  hp); motor grader (finish); push cat; rubber tired backhoe

  (over � cu. yd.); scraper (12 cu. yd. and over or finish);
  Self-propelled rotary mixer/road reclaimer; sidebroom
  tractor; slipform portland concrete paver; tow or push
  boat; trenching machine (Cleveland 80 or similar)
.
  GROUP B - Articulated off road hauler, asphalt heater/planer;
  asphalt material transfer vehicle; asphalt roller; belt
  loader or similar loader; bulldozer (rough); churn or
  rotary drill; concrete curb machine; crawler tractor

208

Item 17.



  pulling ripper, disk or roller; deck hand/oiler;
  directional drill (less than 60,000 (lbs) pullback);
  distributor; excavator (1/2 cu. yd. and under); form riding
  concrete paver; front end loader (2 to less than 4 cu.
  yd.); group equipment greaser; mechanic; milling machine
  (350 hp. and less); paving breaker; portland concrete dry
  batch plant; rubber tired backhoe (1/2 cu. yd. and under);
  scraper (under 12 cu. yd.); screening, washing and crushing
  plant (mobile, portable or stationary); shoulder machine;
  skid loader (l cu. yd. and over); subgrader or trimmer;
  trenching machine; water wagon on compaction.

  GROUP C - Boom & winch truck; concrete spreader/belt placer;
  deep wells for dewatering; farm type tractor (over 75 hp.)
  pulling disc or roller; forklift; front end loader (under 2
  cu. yd.); motor grader (rough); pile hammer power unit;
  pump (greater than three inch diameter); pumps on well
  points; safety boat; self-propelled roller (other than
  asphalt); self-propelled sand blaster or shot blaster,
  water blaster or striping grinder/remover; skid loader
  (under 1 cu. yd.); truck mounted post driver.

  GROUP D - Boiler; compressor; cure and texture machine; dow
  box; farm type or utility tractor (under 75 hp.) pulling
  disk, roller or other attachments; group greaser tender;
  light plants; mechanic tender; mechanical broom; mechanical
  heaters; oiler; pumps (under three inch diameter); tree
  chipping machine; truck crane driver/oiler.

** CARPENTERS AND PILEDRIVERMEN, or IRONWORKERS (ZONE 5)
  Setting of structural steel; any welding incidental to bridge
  or culvert construction; setting concrete beams.

----------------------------------------------------------------

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

================================================================

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses

209

Item 17.



(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

----------------------------------------------------------------

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
(weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or
""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number,
005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing
the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification.  As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the
wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010
08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union

210

Item 17.



average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.

----------------------------------------------------------------

                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

*  an existing published wage determination
*  a survey underlying a wage determination
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
   a wage determination matter
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
National Office because National Office has responsibility for
the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this
initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described
in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal
process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to:

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

            Wage and Hour Administrator
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice material,
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to:

            Administrative Review Board
211

Item 17.



            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

================================================================

          END OF GENERAL DECISIO"

212

Item 17.



213

Item 17.



214

Item 17.



215

Item 17.



216

Item 17.



217

Item 17.



218

Item 17.



219

Item 17.



220

Item 17.



221

Item 17.



222

Item 17.



223

Item 17.



224

Item 17.



225

Item 17.



226

Item 17.



227

Item 17.



228

Item 17.



229

Item 17.



230

Item 17.



231

Item 17.



232

Item 17.



233

Item 17.



234

Item 17.



235

Item 17.



236

Item 17.



237

Item 17.



238

Item 17.



239

Item 17.



240

Item 17.



241

Item 17.



242

Item 17.



243

Item 17.



244

Item 17.



245

Item 17.



246

Item 17.



247

Item 17.



Contractor Clearance Form 

Instructions: The information below is required by the City of Cedar Falls’ Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement program, under which the sanitary sewer lining project is funded. Please 

fill out the following information and mail/fax/email the completed form to Brian Schoon at the INRCOG 

office using the contact information provided below. Thank you! 

 

Brian Schoon 

Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments 

229 East Park Avenue | Waterloo, IA 50703 

Phone: (319) 235-0311 | Fax: (319) 235-2891 

Email: bschoon@inrcog.org  

 

Business Name: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Contractor/Officer/Owner Name: _________________________________________________________ 

Iowa Contractor Registration Number: _____________________________________________________ 

Contractor Tax ID: _____________________________________________________________________ 

Is this contractor a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)?     Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is this contractor a Women Business Enterprise (WBE)?      Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is the owner of this business of Hispanic origin?                    Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is the owner of this business a Targeted Small Business?     Yes or No (please circle one) 

Is this business a Section 3 business? (see below)                  Yes or No (please circle one) 

• Section 3 Business: A business that meets one of these criteria: 1) 51% of the business is owned 

by section 3 residents; 2) 30% of current full-time staff are section 3 residents; or 3) business 

commits to provide 25% of total dollar amount of subcontracts to section 3 businesses (for 

prime contractors only)? 

• Section 3 Resident: A person who meets one of these criteria: 1) are public housing residents; or 

2) are low and very-low income persons who live in the metropolitan area or non-metropolitan 

area where a HUD-assisted project for housing or community development is located. 

Number of Employees Employed by the Business: ____________________________________________ 

Number of New Employees Hired to Work on this Project: ___________________________ 

 

 

__________________________________________                      _________________________________ 

Signature    Title                Date 

248

Item 17.

mailto:bschoon@inrcog.org


249

Item 17.



250

Item 17.



251

Item 17.



252

Item 17.



253

Item 17.



254

Item 17.



255

Item 17.



256

Item 17.



257

Item 17.



258

Item 17.



259

Item 17.



260

Item 17.



261

Item 17.



262

Item 17.



263

Item 17.



264

Item 17.



265

Item 17.



266

Item 17.



267

Item 17.



268

Item 17.



269

Item 17.



270

Item 17.



Project Sign Board

271

Item 17.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL
NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 4050-108-A-0 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch L.F. $33.00 2873.0 $94,809.00

2 4050-108-B-0 Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconection EACH $100.00 66.0 $6,600.00

3 4050-108-B-0 Grouting Service Laterals EACH $450.00 66.0 $29,700.00

4 11020-108-A-0 Mobilization L.S. $10,000.00 1.0 $10,000.00

$141,109.00TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

12/21/2023

2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
CITY PROJECT NO. SA-000-3325

Engineers Estimate 

272

Item 17.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Laudick and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: December 18, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY2024-2029 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

 

Attached is the required notice for the proposed FY2024-2029 Capital Improvements 
Program (CIP) hearing.   The CIP will be presented at committee on January 2nd.     
 
The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 
that the hearing be set for January 16, 2024. 
 
If you have any questions about the CIP or the process, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 

273

Item 18.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE  

FY2024-2029 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM (CIP) 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Cedar Falls City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa will conduct a public hearing on the proposed FY2024-2029 Capital 

Improvements Program (CIP) at 7:00 p.m. on the 16th day of January 2024, said 

meeting to be held in the Council Chamber in City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 

Iowa. 

 

Copies of the foregoing described document are on file in the office of the City 

Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa and may be inspected by any persons 

interested.  Written comments to said proposed Capital Improvements Program may be 

filed with the City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa on or before the date of hearing, 

and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

By: Kim Kerr, City Clerk 

274

Item 18.



275

Item 19.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 01/02/24 COUNCIL MEETING



276

Item 19.



277

Item 19.



278

Item 19.



279

Item 19.



280

Item 19.



281

Item 19.



282

Item 19.



283

Item 19.



284

Item 19.



285

Item 19.



286

Item 19.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 01/02/24 MEETING



287

Item 19.



288

Item 19.



289

Item 19.



290

Item 19.



291

Item 19.



292

Item 19.



293

Item 19.



294

Item 19.



295

Item 19.



296

Item 19.



297

Item 19.



298

Item 19.



299

Item 19.



300

Item 19.



301

Item 19.



302

Item 19.



303

Item 19.



304

Item 19.



305

Item 19.



306

Item 19.



307

Item 19.



308

Item 19.



309

Item 19.



310

Item 19.



311

Item 19.


	Top
	Item 1.	Minutes-12/18/23
	231218MINUTES

	Item 2.	Mayor Pro Tem Appointment
	2023-12-21_DesignationOfMayorProTem

	Item 3.	Standing committee Appointments
	2023-12-21_AnnualAppointmentofStandingCommitteeMembers

	Item 4.	Conflict of Interest-Elected Officials
	Conflict of Interest forms

	Item 5.	Goal Setting Report
	Goal Setting report

	Item 6.	Boards & Commissions Reappointments
	2023-12-21_HSG_LarsonWinterhofReappoint

	Item 7.	Departmental Monthly Report
	11 - November 2023 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 8.	Retail alcohol 01-02-24
	Retail alcohol 1-2-24

	Item 10.	FY25 Council Goals
	CFD 1101.XX - Council Goals Work Program and Short-Term Financial Plan for FY2025 redline
	CFD 1101.XX - Council Goals Work Program and Short-Term Financial Plan for FY2025 final

	Item 11.	Assessment-925 West 22nd St.
	925 W 22nd St.-Assessment

	Item 12.	Policy & Administration Specialist Job Classification
	Policy & Admin Specialist 1-2-24 Council Memo
	Policy & Administration Specialist 1-2-24 final

	Item 13.	Recreation Fee Proposal
	Memo PR fees 2024
	Fee updates Dec 2023-Rec only

	Item 14.	Acceptance of Deed-523 W 1st Street
	1_Memo Approving Warranty Deed
	2_Resolution Accepting Deed for Hageman Property 

	Item 15.	Grant Agreement: Black Hawk County Gaming Association
	1. Council memo-grant agreement 1-2-24
	2. Grant Agreement-BHCG 12-21-23

	Item 16.	Union Road Recreational Trail Project -Final Acceptance
	1. Memo Union Road Trail Final Acceptance of Work
	2. Statement of Completion and Final Acceptance of Work

	Item 17.	2024 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - PSE
	1. Memo PSE - 2024 CDBG Sewer Rehab
	2. Specifications - 2024 CDBG San Sewer
	3. Est - 2024 CDBG Sanitary

	Item 18.	Setting date of hearing for CIP
	1-CIP hearing notice council.mem
	2-PHNOTICE-CIP 2024

	Item 19.	Bills and Claims-01/02/24
	1 Daily Invoices 010224
	2 Council Invoices 010224

	Bottom

